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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37th Annual General Meeting of the members of Super Tannery Limited will be held
on Thursday the 30th September 2021 at 9:00 a.m. at 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208 010, the registered office
ofthe Company to transactthe following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Profil & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March 2021 the
Balance Sheet as on that date and the reportis of Directors' and Auditors' thereon,

2. ToDeclare Dividend.

3. Toappoint adirectorin place of Mr. Imran Siddiqui, who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

4, To appoint M/s Rajeev Prem & Associates Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the Company and fix their
remuneration,

SPECIALBUSINESS:

5.. To consider and, if thought fit, o pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the members be and is hereby
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to donate to charitable and other funds not directly related tothe
business of the Company or the welfare of its employees up io the extent of Rs. 30.00 lacs (Rupees thirty lacs only)
during the financial year ending 31st March, 2022.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
for Super Tannery Limited
Place : Kanpur R.K. Awasthi

Date : 7" Aug. 2021 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

» AMEMBERENTITLED TOATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT APROXY TO
ATTENDAND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELFAND A PROXY NEED NOT BEAMEMBER OF THE COMPANY.
THE PROXY IN OREDR TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE DEPOSITEDAT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY NOT LESSTHAN FORTY-EIGHTHOURS BEFORETHE COMMENCEMENT OF THEMEETING.

» Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative 1o attend the meeting are requested 1o
send a cerlified copy ofthe Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at
the meeting.

¥ The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Special
Businesses is annexed hereto.

» The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 168" September to
30" September 2021 (both inclusive date).

» Members holding shares in identical order of names in more than one folio are requested to write to the Company,
enclosing the Shares Cerlificate for consolidation oftheir holding into one folio.

» Members holding Shares in physical form are requested to nofify the followings to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agentio facilitate better services,

1. Any change in their address under their signature clearly quoting, their folio numbers, old address
along with the changed address with Pin code.

2. Share certificate(s) held in multiple accounts in identical names or joint accounts in the same order of
the names for consolidation of such shareholding into one account.

3. Members holding shares in electronic form may inform any change in address to their Depository
Participant.

» Members holding Shares in electronic form are requested to provide their Client-ID and DP-ID numbers at the
meeting for easy identification.

» Members desirous of obtaining any information/clarification concerning the Accounts and Operation of the
Company are requested o address their queries in writing to the Company Secretary at least seven days before
the annual General Meeting, so that the desired information may be made available at the Annual general
Meeting, ifthe Chairman permits to do so.

» The Shares of the Company are compulsorily fradable in demat form except in case of request received for
transmission or transposition of Securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical
Shares and o ease of portfolio Management members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider
converting their holding to dematenalized form. The equity Shares of the Company have been assigned ISIN
INE460D01020. Members are requested to get their Shares dematerialized at the earliest to make them
tradable.

Members are requested 1o note that, dividend if notin cashed for a consecutive period of 7 years from the
date of transfer to unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are liable to be transferred to the Investor
Education and protection Fund ("IEPF” The shares in respect of such un claimed dividends are also liable to
betransferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this Members/claimants are requested to
claim their dividends from the Company, within the stipulated timeline, the dividend unpaicd or unclaimed for
the Financial Year 2013-14 may be claimed by the shareholders on or before 5th November 2021.
Thereafter, such amount shall be transferred to the “Investor Education and Protection Fund”, Kindly note
that once the unclaimed or unpaid Dividend is transferred to “Investor Education and Protection Fund” no
claim shall lie with the company in respect thereof. The Members whose unclaimed dividends/shares have
been transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an application to the IEPF Authority, in Form No .
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IEPF 5 available on www.iepf.gov.in. The Members/claimants can file only one consolidated claim in a
Financial Year as per IEPF Rules.

As you may be aware Board of Directors of your Company at their meeting held on June 19, 2021, have
declared a Dividend of Rs. 0.05/- per equity share (having a nominal value of Re. 01/- each) for the Financial
Year202-21.

As you may be aware, in terms of the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (‘the Act'), as amended by the
Finance Act, 2020, dividend declared, paid and distributed bu a Company on or after 1st April, 2020 shall be
taxable in the hands of the shareholders. The Company will, therefore, be required 1o deduct tax at source at
the time of payment ofthe dividend atthe applicable rates as per the provisions ofthe said Act.

» Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 shareholders are entiled to make nomination in respect of
share held by them in physical form. Shareholders desirous of making nomination are requested to send their
request in the prescribed Form 1o the Registrar and Transfer Agents, M/s. KFin Technologies Pvi. Lid.,
Hyderabad. Members holding shares in electronic mode are requested to consult/contact with their respective
Depository Participant (DF) for availing nomination facility.

» Members are requested to notify immediately change in their address, PIN code, if any to company at its
registered office by quoting their folio number.

» Members' proxies are requested to bring attendance slip duly completed for attending the meeting.

» Brief Resume of all Directors including those proposed to be appointed, nature of their experiise in specific
functional areas, names of companies in which they hold Directorships and Memberships / Chairmanships and
Relationships between Directors inter—se as stipulated under Regulation27 of the listing agreement with the
Stock Exchangesin India, are provided in the report on Corporate Governance forming part ofthe Annual Report.

¥ Voting through electronic means:

¥ In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Managementand Administration) Rule 2014, the Company is pleased to inform that all the resolutions as stated
inthe notice can be transacted by electronic voting system and the company has provided members with facility
to exercise their right to vote at the 37" Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means through e-voting
services provided by KFin Technologies Pvi.LTD.:

¥ Theinstructions for e-voting are as under:

¥ In case a Member receives an email from KFin Technologies Pvi Lid.[for members whose email |1Ds are
registered with the Company/ Depository Participants (s)]:

¥ Launchinternet browser by typing the URL: hitp:/evoting.kfintech.com

# Enterthe login credentials (i.e. User |D and password mentioned below). Your Folio No. / DP ID- Client |d will be
your User ID. However, if you are already registered with Karvy for e-voting, you can use your existing User |D
and password for casting your vote.

»  After entering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN”.

¥ You will now reach password change Menuwherein you are required to mandatorily change your password. The
new password shall comprise of minimum & characters with atleast one upper case (A- Z), one lower case (a-z),
one numeric value (0-8) and a special character (@ .#,8, etc.,). The system will prompt you to change your
password and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID ete. on first login. You may also enter a
secret question and answer of your choice 1o retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is strongly
recommended that you do not share your password with any other person and that you take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.

# Youneediologin again with the new credentials.
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¥ Onsuccessful login, the system will promptyou to select the *EVENT”i.e., Super Tannery Limited *,

» On the voting page, enter the number of shares (which represents the number of votes) as on the Cut off Date
under “FOR/AGAINST' or alternatively, you may partially enter any number in “FOR” and partially "AGAINST" but
the total numberin “FOR/AGAINST” taken together not exceeding your total shareholding as mentioned herein
above. You may also choose the option ABSTAIN. If the shareholder does not indicate either “FOR” or
“AGAINST” it will be treated as “ABSTAIN" and the shares held will notbe counted under eitherhead.

# Shareholders holding multiple folios/ demat accounts shall choose the voling process separately for each folio/
demat accounts.

¥ Voling has to be done for each item of the notice separately. In case you do not desire to cast your vote on any
specificitem it will be treated as abstained,

» Youmaythen castyourvote by selecting an appropriate option and click on “Submit”.

¥ Aconfirmation box will be displayed. Click "OK" to confirm else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you have voted on
the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During the voting period, Members can login any
number oftimes till they have voted on the Resolution(s).

¥ Corporate/ Institutional Members (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRl etc.,) are also required to send scanned
certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board Resolution/ Authority Letter efc., together with attested specimen
signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s), 1o the Scrutinizer al e mail kn.shridhar@gmail.com with a
copy marked to evoling@kfintech.com. The scanned image of the above mentioned documents should be in the
naming format"Super Tannery Limited" 37th Annual General Meeting.

# |. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [ for members whose email IDs are not
registered with the Company/ Depository Participants (s) can request physical copy].

¥ User|D andinitial Password as provided below.
¥ Pleasefollow all steps from Sl. No. (i) to Sl. No. (xii) above, to castvote.

¥ Incase of any queries relating to e-voling please visit Help & FAQ section of hitp://evoting kfintech.com{Karvy
Website).

# Youcan alsoupdate your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used for
sending future communication(s).

# The e-voting period commences on 27.09.2021 (9.00 AM) and ends on 29.09.2021 (5.00PM).During this
period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form,
as on the cut-off date 16.09.2021, may cast their vote electronically in the manner and process set out
herein above. The e-voting module shall be disabled for voting thereafter. Once the vote on aresolution
is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. Furtherthe Members
who have casted their vote electronically shall not vote by way of poll, ifheld at the meeting.

¥ The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the
Company as on the cut-off date 16.09.2021.

¥ The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. K.N.Shridhar, Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer to
scrutinize the e-volting process in a fair and transparent manner.

¥ The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the conclusion of the e-voting
period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) withesses not in the employment of the Company and
make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes castin favor or against, if any, forth with to the Chairman of the Company.

# The Results shall be declared on or after the AGM of the Company and the resolution will be deemed to be
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passed on the AGM date subjectto receipt ofthe requisite number of votes in favour of the Resolution(s).
# The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's report shall be placed on the Company's Website:

www.supertannery.com and on the website of the service provider (http:/evoting.karvy.com) within two(2) days
of passing ofthe resolutions at the AGM of the Company and communicated to the BSE Limited.

EVEN (E Voting Event Number) User ID Password

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
{Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

ITEM No.:

ITEMNO 5:

Ithas been the policy of the company 1o contribute in those charitable funds, which serve the society at large orforthe
welfare of its employees, whether such charitable institution are directly related or not with the business of the
Company, the action of the Board is taken keeping in mind the responsibility thatthe Company owes to society as well
as to full fill the requirement of CSR by way of promoting preventive health care, promoting education, including
special education etc. Sometimes contribution so made exceed the limit prescribed by the section 181 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Board can not do such welfare work, beyond prescribed limit, without the approval of the
members. The aggregate of such contribution during the year ending 31.03.2022 is likely to exceed the limit as
prescribe by the Act. Therefore, your permission is requested.

The Directors recommend the resolution setoutin item no 5 ofthe Notice for approval of members.

Norie of the Director of the Company in any way whether, directly or indirectly, except as trustee of frust which receive
the fund, isinterested orconcerned in this resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

for Super Tannery Limited

R.K. Awasthi

Place : Kanpur Company Secretary
Date: 7" Aug 2021
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Dear Shareholder,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in presenting the 37th Annual Report on the business and operations
ofthe Company together withAudited Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March 2021:

Year ended Year ended
FINANCIAL RESULTS 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Rsin lacs Rs in lacs
PROFITS:
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & extra-ordinary iteams 1820.05 1715.40
Less: | Interest 533.15 870.33
Depreciation 585.30 570.28
Exchange Fluctuation Loss/{gains) 30.34 19.55
Bad Dabts written off 68.39 1227.18 90.75 1350.91
Profit before tax 592.87 384.49
Less: | Provislon for cumrent tax 131.00 100.00
Provision for defermed tax {2.98) (182.99
Incoma Tax relating to earlier Years 3.69 131.71 1.75 {84.74)
Profit after tax 461.18 449.23
Add: | Profit brought forward from previous year 2242.79 1834.13
Other Comprehensive Income 14.81 (40.57)
2257.60 1793.56
Profit available for approprigtion 2718.76 2242.79 |

NOTE : Figures of the previous year have been re-grouped/re-aranged in order to make them comparable.

DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors of your Company take pleasure to recommend a dividend of Rs.0.05(5%) per equity shares of
Re.1/each for the year ended 31 March, 2021.subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual general
Meeting. The dividend if approved, shall result in a payout of 11.71% current year profit available for appropriation.
This makes the Management Investor friendly and creates more confidence to keep the Investors interest at heart.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
The extract of Annual Return as provided under sub-section (3)of section 92 of the Companies Act,2013('the Actin
prescribed form MGT-9is enclosed as Annexure “A™o this report.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

During the year under review, the income from operation of the company was Rs 19,202.72 lacs as against
Rs 18,333.051acs during the last financial year, shows improvementin the operational income by Rs. 869.67
lacs . The company overall growth is satisfactory despite recession in the market.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

The Company has Five subsidiaries namely: Super Corporation Limited, , Aarifi Tanners Limited, Secure
Safety Limited, Super Tannery (UK) Limited and Super Italia s.r.l. The Financial statement including
Consolidated Financial statement and separate statement in respect of each of its subsidiaries have also
been placed on the website of the Company. A statemenf containing salient feature of the Financial
Statement of subsidiaries/associates companies is forming part of Annual Financial statement. The Annual
Accounts of the subsidiary companies will be kept open for inspection by any investor at the head office of
the Company and the subsidiary concerned.

INDUSTRIALRELATIONS:
During the period industrial relations have been extremely cordial. Employees' cooperation and co-ordination had
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been animportant factorin the growth ofthe organization.

FIXED DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted/renewed any deposit during the year under review, under the provisions of the
CompaniesAct 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT:

Employees are vital to the Company. We have created a favorable work environment that encourages humble
relationship. We have also set up a scalable recruitment and human resources management process, which enables
us to attract and retain high caliber employees. The Company also has started with collaboration of UP Leather
Industries Association a training center for recruiting irained labor's.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL ACT, 2013:

Your Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every individual
working for the Company through various intervention and practices. It is the continuous endeavor of the
Management of the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees that is free from
discrimination and harassmentincluding Sexual harassment.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, no complaint pertaining 1o sexual harassmentwas received by the Company.

GLOBAL HEALTH PANDEMIC FROM COVID-19

The World Health Organization declared a global pandemic of the Novel Coronavirus disease (Covid-19) on February
11, 2020.In enforcing social distancing to contain the spread of the disease, To effectively respond and manage our
operations through this crisis, the company friggered its business continuity management program, chaired by the
Chief Operating Officer. In keeping with its employee-safety-first approach, the Company quickly instituted measures
totrace all employees and be assured oftheirwell-being,

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
Astatement of particulars of employees as specified under the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time, is
setoutin the Annexure forming part of Directors' Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, and FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING &
OUTGO:

The particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption etc. pursuantto Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Rule 8 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set outin the Annexure forming part of this
Repori.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THEREGULATORS ORCOURTS ORTRIBUNALS:
No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals during the previous year which
may impact the going concern status of the Company's Operation in the future.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/VIGIL MECHANISIM:

To create enduring value for all stakeholders and ensure the highest level of honesty, and ethical behavior in all its
operations, the Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism named as SUPER Whistle Blower Policy' in addition to
the existing code of conduct that governs the action of its employees. This Whistleblower policy aspires to encourage
all employees to report suspected or actual occurrence(s) of illegal, Unethical or inappropriate events (behaviors or
practices) that effect Company's interest/image. A copy of the Policy is available on the website of the Company and
may be accessed through the web link www:htpp;//supertannery.com

DIRECTORS & KMP:
In terms of Article 125 of the Articles of Association ofthe Company, Mr. Imran Siddiqui, Director of the Company retire
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself for his re-appointment. Brief
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resume of all the Directors, their expertise in specific functional areas and names of other companies in which
Directorship held and the membership of commitiee ofthe Board as stipulated under the listing Agreement are given
in corporate governance annexure, attached to this report,

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet
with the criteria ofindependence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Companies Act,2013.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND REMUNRATION:

For the purpose of selection of any Director, the Nomination &Remuneration Commitiee identifies persons of
integrity who posses' relevant experlise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and also takes
into consideration recommendation, if any received from any member of the Board. The Committee also ensures that
the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other gualifications as laid down under the Companies
Act, 2013 orother applicable laws.

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination &Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection,
appointment and remuneration of Directors &senior Management.

The Remuneration policy ofthe Company is disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms a part of the
report.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FORTHEINDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 27 of the listing Agreement, the Company has put in place a
Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with the Company, their roles rights
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the Company in which Company operates, business model efc.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Pursuant to Regulation 27 of the Listing Agreement, a report on Corporate Governance is given in Annexure to this
report.

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) read with section 134(3)( ¢ ) of the Companies Act, 2013 with
respectio Directors' Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

(i) Thatin the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2021, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(i) Thatthe Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a frue and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company atthe end of the financial year and ofthe profit orloss of the Company for that period;

(iii) Thatthe Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) Thatthe Directors have prepared the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2021 on a going concern
basis.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

In accordance with Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements, your directors have
pleasure in attaching the Consolidated Financial Statements which form part of Annual Reports and
Accounts. These consolidated financial statements include accounts of Super Tannery (U.K.) Limited, Aarifi
Tanners Limited, Super Corporation Limited Secure Safety Limited, and Superlitalias.r.L

AUDITORS: M/s. Rajeev Prem & Associates Chartered Accountants, Kanpur {(Registration No 008805C) the
statutory Auditors of the Company are refiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, we
recommend their re-appointment. They have furnished a cerificate o the effectthattheir re-appointment if made, will
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be in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,2013.

COST AUDITOR:
As requires under the Companies {Cost Accounting Records) Rules 2011, the requirement of Cost Audit report does
not applicable to the Company as per MCA circular. Hence no report was filed.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS;

Pursuant fo the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/S K.N. Shridhar, &Associates,
Company secretary Kanpur to undertake the secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Secretarial Audit Reportis annexed herewith as “annexure B”
The Audit Report and the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2020-21 does not contain any qualification,

reservation or adverse remark by the Auditors.

LOANS, GURANTEES &INVESTMENTS:
The particulars of Loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
The policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is available on the website of the Company
WWwW.supertannery.com.

All contracts/arrangements entered by the Company during the previous financial year with the related parties were in
the ordinary course of business and on arm's length basis. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors reviewed
the transaction (which are repetitive in nature) and the Audit Committee granted approval for such transactions.

The disclosures as required under AS-18 have been made in notes forming part of the standalone financial
statement. The particulars of contracts or arrangements entered in to by the company with related parties referred to
in sub-section (1) of section 188of the companies Act, 2013 has been disclosed in Form No.AOC-2 which is annexed
hereto.

AUDITORS'REPORT:
The comments ofthe Auditors in their Audit Report and reference to “Notes on Accounts” forming part of the Financial
Results are self-explanatory and need no further comments.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your directors would like to express their gratitude and appreciation for the continued support and co-operation
received from State Bank of India, Central & State Govermment Authorities, Regulatory Bodies, Stock Exchanges and
Shareholders.

Your directors wish to place their deep sense of appreciation on record for the devoted
services of the officers, staff and workers of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date: 07.08.2021 Managing Director Director (Finance} & CFO
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ANNEXURE | TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Statement as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule & of the
Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 .
(a) Conservation of Energy:

(1)

(2)
3)

4

Energy conservation measurestaken;

Upgradation of power generation and distribution systems for long term energy savings. Special
emphasishas been laid on boiler and steam generation.

Additional investments and proposal, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption ofenergy:
Introduction of energy saving devices and systems in process machines.

Impact of the measures at (1) & (2) above for the reduction of energy consumption and consequent
impact on the cost of production of goods:

Energy conservation measures have helped in generation of required quantity of steam at a minimum
costwhich resulted inimproving efficiencies and reduction in costs.

Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form Aof the Annexure
inrespect ofindustries specified in the Schedule thereto: NotApplicable

(b} TechnologyAbsorption: Research and Development (R & D):

(1

(2)

3)

Specificareain which R & D carried outby the Company:

(a) New productdevelopment based on differentraw hides/skins.

(p) Apartfrom production of safety footwear establishing standard products for fashion shoes/sandals.
Benefits derived as aresult ofthe above R& D:

(a) Costreduction and betterunitrealization.

(b) Better product acceptance.

Future plan of action:

Tocontinuetoinvestin R & D forfaster introduction of new products.

(4) ExpenditureonR&D:
2020-21 2019-20
(Rsinlacs) (Rsinlacs)
(a) Capital cooo cooo
(b) Recurring 1.79 15.83
{c) Total 1.79 15.93
(d) Total R & D Expenditure as % ofturnover 0.01% 0.08%

Technology Absorption, Adoption And Innovation:
(1) Efforts,in brief, made towards technology absorption, adoption and innovation:

The Company is using indigenous technology and is developing in house technology and is not
dependant on any outside technology / source.

(2) Benefits derived as aresult ofthe above efforts: NotApplicable
(3) Incase of imported technology {Imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the

financial year):

(a) Technologyimported

(p) Yearofimport

{c) Hastechnology been fully absorbed?

(d) Ifnotfully absorbed, areas where nottaken place,
reasonstherefore and future plan ofaction

Not Applicable

ot et St ot

(c) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO:

(1)

(2)

Activities relating to exports, initiative taken to increase exports, development of new export markets or
products and export plans:

On Export front, Company's performance is gquite satisfactory and it is expected o be strong in the time
to come.

Total foreign exchange earned & used:

2020-21 2019-20

{Rsinlacs) (Rsinlacs)
(a)Foreign exchange earned (FOB value of exports) 15,067.75 13,292.02
(b)Foreign exchange used 3,056.69 2,607.31
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(d) STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF MANAGING AND JOINT MANAGING DIRECTORS FORMING
PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT:

Name Designation | Gross Qualification |Experience | Date of Age Particulars
Remuneration (Years) Commencement | (Years) |of previous
of employment employment
Mr. Managing Post 36 06.02.1984 63 Promoter
Iftikharul | Director Re24:00,000 Graduate

Amin

Mr. Igbal | Jt.Managing Graduate 32 21.12.1988 60 Promoter

Ahsan Director Rs. 24,00,000
Mr. Director Leather 30 01.01.1990 58 Promoter
Veqgarul 00 Technologist

Amin
Notes:

1. Mr. [ftikharul Amin, Mr. Igbal Ahsan and Mr. Vegarul Amin being brothers are related 1o each other within the

meaning of schedule |Aof Companies Act, 2013.
2. Remuneration includes salary and perquisites as per rules of the company and recorded under the Income

TaxAct, 1961.
On behalfofthe Board of Directors
Place: KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date: 07.08.2021 Managing Director Whole Time Director
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ANNEXURE -l TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

In accordance with the Regulation 17-to 270of { LODR) Regulation 2015 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchanges in India (Regulation27) and some of the best practices followed internationally on Corporate
Governance, the report containing the details of governance system and processes at Super Tannery Limited is as
under:

Corporate Governance Philosophy

At Super Tannery Limited it is our belief that as we move closer towards our aspirations of becoming a global
corporation our corporate governance standard must be globally benchmarked. That gives us confidence of having
put in the right building blocks for future growth and ensuring thal we achieve our ambitions in a prudent and
sustainable manner.

Shareholders Communications

The Board recognizes the importance of two-way communication with shareholders for giving a balanced report of
results & progress and responds to the questions and issues raised in a timely and consistent manner. Shareholders
seeking information may contact the Company directly throughout the year. They also have an opportunity to ask
gquestions in person at the Annual General Meeting. Shareholders can contact the company via dedicated
shareholder contact points as provided with this report or through any of Investor Service Centre of the Company's
Registrars and Transfer Agents. The company ensures that queries, complaints and suggestions are respondedin a
timely and consistentmanner.

Role of Company Secretary in Overall Governance Process

The Company Secretary holds akey role in ensuring thatthe Board Procedures are followed and regularly reviewed.
The Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and documents are made available 1o the
directors and senior management for effective decision making at the meeting. The Company Secretary is primarily
responsible to ensure compliance with applicable statutory requirements and is the interface between the
management and regulatory authorities for governance matters. All the Directors of the company have access to the
advice and services ofthe Company Secretary.

Observance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India

The Institute of the Company Secretaries of India (ICS), one of the premier professional bodies in India, has issued
Secretarial Standards on imporiant aspects like Board Meetings, General Meeting, Paymenil of Dividend,
Maintenance of Registers and records, Minutes of Meetings, Transmission of Shares and Debentures, Passing of
Resolution By Circulation, Affixing of Common Seal, Forfeiture of Shares and Board's Report although these
standards are recommendatory in nature, the Company substantially adheres tothe standards voluntarily.

1. BOARDOF DIRECTORS:

(i) The Board of Directors comprises a Managing Director, and Joint Managing Director five Executive and Six
Non-Executive Directors. Out of 11 Directors Four directors are Independent and Non-executive Directors,
Women director is Independent non-executive Chairperson and two is non-Independent and non-Executive
directors.

(i) None of the directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees or Chairman of more than 5
committees as specified in the regulation across all the Companies in which hefshe is a director. Necessary
disclosure about position in other public companies as on 31% March 2021 has been made by the Director.

(ii) Thenames and categories ofthe Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board meetings held during the
year and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanship/Membership held by them in other
companies is given below. Other directorships do not include alternate directorship and directorship of
private limited companies, Chairmanship/Membership of Board Committees included on Audit,
Remuneration and Shareholder/Investors Grievances committees.

(iv) The present strength of the Board is 11 comprises Five execulive and Six non-execulive directors. During
the year 2020-21, the Board met 4 times (as against the minimum requirement of four meetings) on the
following dates: 30" July 2020,22" Aug 2020,13" November,2020, and 13" Feb 2021, the maximum time gap
between any two board meetings was not more than one hundred and twenty days.
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The following table gives details of directors' attendance atthe Board meetings and at the last Annual General
Meeting, number of memberships held by director in the Board/Committees of various companies:

Name Catagory | Attendance Particulars | Number of other Directorships
Committee Member/Chaiman
Board Last AGM Director- er Committee
Mestings ships %:hmmlttae Chalrman
embership
Iftikharul Amin MD 4 Yos 5 1
Igbal Ahsan JMD 4 Yes 6 1
Vegarul Amin NED- 4 Yos 3
Imran Siddiqul ED 4 Yos 2
Arshad Khan ED 4 YES
Mohd. Imran ED 4 YES 2
| Yogendra Singh Kativar ED 3 Yes
Kumud Behari Seth NED-I 2 3 1
P. K. Sinha NED-I 2 1 3 1
Sadia Kamal NED-1 4 2
Aftab Ahmad NED-I 4 2 3 1

MD-Managing Director; JMD-Joint Managing Director; ED-Executive Director; NED-I-Non-
Executive Director —Independent.

None of the Director is member of more than 10 committees or Chairman of more than 5 committees across all
companies in which he/she is Director. Briefresume of Directors seeking re-appointment, nature of their expertise
in specific functional area, is given here under:

a. Mr. Imran Siddigui: Mr. Imran Siddiqui, Age 63 years is a Chemical Engineer and has been associated with
the Company for the last 36 years and closely involved in the Operations of the Company. He was introduced
in the Board in the year 1992-93 as a alternate Director later in the year 1928-89 he was appointed as awhole
time Director. He has vast experience of leather and leather products. He has visited many countries for this
purpose and gained rich experience. Mr. Imran Siddiquiis also director in Secure safety Limited.

3. AUDITCOMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee consists of three Members - Mr. Kumud Behari Seth (Non-Executive Independent Director)
acts as Chairman, Mr.Aftab Ahmad (Non-Executive Independent Director) member and Mr .P.K. Sinha (Non-
Executive Independent Director) member of the committee, During the year 4 meetings were held one of which
was before finalization of annual accounts. The said meetings were held on 30" July,2020 22" Aug,2020, 13th
Nov. 2020, 13" February 2021. The meetings of the committee were attended by the members of the committee.
Mr. Kumud Behari Seth has financial and accounting knowledge.

The meetings of Audit Committee were attended by the heads of accounts & finance and other respective
functional heads and statutory auditors as invitees. Members held discussion with the statutory auditors during
the meetings of the Committee and half yearly and annual audited financial accounts of the company were
reviewed by the Audit Committee before consideration and approval by the Board. The Committee reviewed the
internal control systemalso.

The terms ofreference specified by the Board to the Audit Committee are as contained under Regulation 17-27 of
(LODR)ofthe Listing Agreement. They are as follows:

a Oversight ofthe company's financial reporting process and the disclosure ofits financial information.
b. Recommending the appointment and removal of external auditors, fixation of audit fee and also
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approval for paymentfor any otherservices.

c. Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board, (i) the
going concern assumption (i) compliance with accounting standards (iii) compliance with stock
exchange and legal requirements concerning financial statements.

d. Reviewing the adequacy ofintemal audit functions.

Discussion with intemal auditors any significant findings and follow-up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there

is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and

reporting the matter to the Board.

g: Discussion with external auditors before the audit commences nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

o

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
For better compliance of Corporate Governance, the Remuneration Committee of the Company has been
designed to determine Company's policy on specific remuneration package of Executive Directors on the basis of
their performance. The Remuneration and Commission decided by the Committee are paid in accordance with
the Companies Act, 2013. The Composition of Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Name Status
Mr. AftabAhmad {Non Executive Director - Independent) Chairman
Mr. Kumud Behari Seth  (Non Executive Director - Independent) Member
Mr. P.K.Sinha {Non Executive Director - Independent) Member

Detalls of remuneration pald to Directors are glven below:

Name of Director Salary | Slitting Fees Total

Including {Rs3In lacs)
perquisites

Mr. Htikharul Amin 24,00,000 == 24,00,000

Mr. Ighal Ahsan 24,00,000 == 24,00,000

Mr. Vegarul Amin - == ==

Mr. Imran Siddiqui 708000 == 706000

Mr. Mohd. Imran 399000 - 399000

Mr. Arshad Khan 394000 - 394000

The Non-Executive Directors are not paid any remuneration.

5. SHAREHOLDERSYINVESTORS'GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee (the committee), comprising Mr.
P.K.Sinha, Chairman, Mr, Iftikharul Amin and Mr. Igbal Ahsan. The Committee, inter-alia, approves issue of
duplicate certificates and reviews all matters connected with the securities transfer. The Commitiee also looks
into redressing of Shareholders' / Investors' Complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-
receipt of dividends etc. Mr R.K. Awasthi, the Company Secretary acts as a Secretary of the Committee as well as
Compliance Officer. Total No. of complaints received and replied to the satisfaction of shareholders during the
year was 79. No outstanding complaints were lying unresolved as on 31st March 2021. No investors' grievances
are pending for a period exceeding one month with the Company.

CSRCOMMITTEE:

The Company has constituted CSR Committee (the committee), comprising Mr. Kumud Behari Seth, Chairman,
Mr, Mohd. Imran, and Mr. Igbal Ahsan. The Committee, inter-alia, approves the CSR aclivities as run by the
Company through its Amin Welfare Trust, Besides this it has been the policy of the Company to take up activities
such as healthcare including preventive healthcare, education etc. During the year company has spend more
than 2%of the average net profit of the Company through its Hospital and Schools. The basic aim of the Company
CSRpolicy toimprove the lives of the local Community.
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6. GENERALBODY MEETINGS:

During the last three years, following Annual General Meetings (AGM) & Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM)

were held:
Year Location Date Time
2017-18 (AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 27.09.2018 9.00AM
201 8-19(AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.09.2019 9.00A.M
201 9-20(AGM) 187/170 Jajmau Kanpur 30.09.2020 9.00A.M

7. DISCLOSURE:

(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party tfransactions i.e. transactions of the Company of material
nature, with its promoters, the directors orthe management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have

potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large.

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conffict with the interest of the
Company. All the refated party fransactions are negofiafed on arms length basis and are only
infended fo safeguard the inferest of the company. Wherever necessary, the refated party

transactions are disclosedin Nofes to the Accounts, forming part ofthe Annual Report

(b) Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties and strictures imposed on the Company by Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related 1o capital markets, during the last three

years.

There were no instances of non-compliance of any matter refated fo the capital markets during the

fastthree years.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

Quarterly Results: The quarterly results were published in the "The Pioneer (English), New Delhi and "Dainik Aaj

(Hindi), Kanpur. The Management Discussion and Analysis (M D &A) is a part of Annual Report.

8. INSIDER TRADING:

In accordance with Securities & Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation 1992, as
amended in February 2002, the Board of Directors of the company formulated the code of conduct for prevention

of insidertrading in shares ofthe company by its employees.
10. GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

10.1: ANNUAL GENERALMEETING: Date and Time 30" September 2021 at 9:00 a.m.
Venue—187/170, Jajmau, KANPUR-208 01C.

10.2: FINANCIAL CALENDAR (1st April 2020 to 31stMarch 2021: (Tentative)

BOARD MEETINGS:

Results forthe quarter ending 30.06.2021: 2™ week of August 2021

Results forthe quarter ending 30.09.2021: 2" week of November 2021

Results forthe quarter ending 31.12.2021: 2nd week of February 2022

Results for the gquarter ending 31.03.2021: Last week of May 2022 (as per Listing Agreement.}

10.3: BOOKCLOSURE DATE/ record date: 16" September 2021 to 30" September 2021 (both days inclusive)

10.4: Dividend payment date: Credit/dispatch of divided between 17 October 2021 1o 5" October 2021

10.5: (2)LISTING OFEQUITY SHARESONSTOCKEXCHANGES AT:
1.The Stock Exchange, Mumbai, Phiroze Jegjeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, MUMBAI-400001.

NOTE: Annual Listing Fees forthe year 2021-22 as applicable has been paid to the BSE.
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(b) DEMAT ISIN NUMBERS IN NSDL & CDSL: Equity Shares INE460D01020

10.6: STOCK CODE: Trading in Mumbai Stock Exchange and Stock Code is 523842,

Performance of Company's Equity Share

Months Company's Equity Share
High Low
April 2020 1.74 1.20
May 2020 2.10 1.66
June 2020 3.64 2.03
July 2020 3.20 2.40
August 2020 3.38 2.36
September 2020 3.10 2.53
October 2020 3.04 2.36
November 2020 3.14 241
December 2020 3.80 2.53
January 2021 4.18 2.96
February 2021 3.55 2.77
March 2021 3.10 2.67
10.7: REGISTRARANDTRANSFERAGENT:
KFin Technologies Pvt. Lid.
Karvy Selenium Tower B”, Plot No 31&32, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Gachibowli,
HYDERABAD-500032 Telangana,India
Phone: 40-87162222,33211000 ; Fax:40-23420814
Email: ussing@karvy.com; mailmanager@@karvy.com
10.8: SHARETRANSFERSYSTEM:
In compliance of SEBI Circular No.D&CC/FITTC/CIR-15/2002 dated 27th December 2002, your
Company has appointed common agency to shareholders for all the work relating to share registry in
terms of both physical and electronic at single point by our Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e. KFIN
Technologies Pvt. Lid. (K.TPL.) Hyderabad. The share transfers, which are received in physical form, are
processed and the share certificates returned within a perod of 10 to 15 days from the date of receipt,
subject to the documents being valid and complete in all respect.
10.9: SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31.03.2021
S. No. | Description Cases Shares | % Equtly
1 BANKS 1 3000 0.00
2 Clearing Mmbers 9 44011 0.40
3 DIRECTORS AND THEIR RELATIVES 10 | 63481434 58.77
4 HUF 121 2627023 243
5 BODIES CORPORATES 42 3154083 2.92
8 NRI Non-Repatration 32 179884 0.17
7 NON RESIDENT INDIANS 80 442144 0.41
8 RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 6099 | 34374887 31.84
) IEPF 1 3686914 3.41
Total: 6375 | 107973360 100.00
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10.10: Distribution Schedule as on 31st March 2021:

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
DISTRIBUTION SCHEDLULE AS ON 31/03/2021
Sno | Category Cases | % of Cases Amount % Amount

1| uptol -5000 5509 8642 10599340.00 9.82
25001 -10000 488 7.65 3465605.00 3.21
310001 -20000 180 2.82 2596773.00 2.41
4 (20001 -30000 66 1.04 1681749.00 1.56
5130001 -40000 22 0.35 781166.00 0.72
6| 40001 -50000 25 0.39 1181517.00 1.09
7 | 50001 -100000 34 0.53 2339527.00 2.17
8 | 100001 & ABOVE 51 0.80 85327683.00 79.02

Total: 6375 100.00 107973360.00 100.00

10.11:DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY:
The company has entered into agreement with NSDL and CDSL for the dematerialization of its equity
shares. The equity shares of the company are frequently traded on the BSE. Approximately 91.14 % of
the equity shares issued by the Company have been dematerialized up to 31st March 2021.

10.12: OUTSTANDING GDR/ADR/WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS, CONVERSION
DATE AND LIKELY IMPACT ON EQUITY : Nil

10.13: PLANT LOCATIONS:

(a) Chrome Tannery : 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208 010
{b) Sole Tannery y (i) Mona Nagar, Jajmau, Kanpur-208 010.
: (i) 1871170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur—208 010
{c) Fashion Shoe Division 6, Akrampur, Unnao—209 801
{d) Footwear Division : 169, Jajmau, Kanpur-208 010.
(e) Safety Shoe Division : Leather Technology Park, Banthar, Unnao, U.P.

10.14: ADDRESS FORINVESTORS' CORRESPONDENCE:
Shareholders correspondence should be addressed to our Registrar & Transfer Agents at the address
mentioned above. Shareholders may aiso contact Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the
Company at:
187/170, Jajmau, Kanpur-208010
Phone: 0512-7522000371, 7522000372, 7522000373 Fax: 0152-2460792,
E-mail: share@supertannery.com; info@supertannery.com.
Website: www.supertannery.com
Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their
respective Depository Paricipant.

11. CODEOF CONDUCT:
The Company has a code of conduct applicable to its Directors and senior management personnel.
Declaration as required under the Listing Agreement:

All Directors and senior management of the company have affirmed compliance with company's Code of
Conduct forthe financial year ended 31°"March 2021.

IFTIKHARUL AMIN
Kanpur: 07.08.2021 Managing Director
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12. NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:
The company has adopted non-mandatory requirements to the following extent:
Chairman of the Board — The Company does not have a Chairman. At every Board meeling, a Director is elected
to preside over the meeting. The company has constituted Remuneration committee of the Board.

On behalf ofthe Board of Directors

Place; KANPUR IFTIKHARUL AMIN MOHD.IMRAN
Date: 07.08.2021 Managing Director Director (Finance) & CFO

19



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

industry Structure and Development:

The Indian Leather Industry plays a significant role in the Indian Economy in view of its substantial export earnings,
employment generation and growth opportunities. The export of leather and leather products has increased over
pastfew years.

The Company is striving high 1o capture over Global Market in respect of Leather and Leather Products. The
Company has taken various steps to promote company's products all overthe world and it is being done in line with
global trends to enhance scale, global competitiveness and financial flexibility and also to contribute towards
achievement of company's objective and to increase revenue, production volume, market shares and shareholder's
returns.

Your company in view of the competitive scenario has taken various steps to meet these challenges and also
capitalize on budding opportunities available. The company is regularly carrying out detailed analysis of leather
industry and has been making all possible efforts to understand the various minutiae of the emerging market
scenario. The company has been investing considerable amount of funds on its Research & Development Programs
in order to enrich and improve the quality of products.

Opportunities:

Company has gained reputation and established itself globally as Supplier of quality products. The company has
demonstrated global competitiveness and has achieved international standards for the quality of its products and its
immense capabilities provide massive opportunities in the foreign market. Company's overall strategy is to enhance
shareholder value by receiving better returns through a long-term investment.

Threat:

The company is fully aware of the factors dictating competition and has been investing with the ups and downs
through its various effective measures like cost optimization, competitive pricing, improved production process and
enhanced customer satisfaction.

Even under difficult operating conditions, company has been consistently performing at its best. It is expected that
company's sound policies, competitive cost position will enable the company tolead the market effectively.

To exist in the competitive market and improve the value of shareholder, company is consistently considering all the
significantfactors, which provide sharp edges that enable company to enhance the margin.

Out Look:

Company's maximum operational income is based on the margin on export of leather and leather products. As most
of part of the earning is realized from Export, out look depends upon the global economic scenario, global demand
and supply and International product prices. Above all the performance of your company largely depends on the Ex-
imp policy of the Union Government. Looking at the overall development of the Indian economy and the efforts of the
Central Government to achieve higher GDP, Board of directors of your company is very much optimistic to the future
ofthe Company.

Risks and Concerns:

Although Your Company does nol perceive any serious threal, siill company is taking care againstthe risk of growing
pressure of prices, foreign exchange rates variation, current and future litigation, working capital management, bad
debis etc. Foreign exchange liabiliies / revenues are mainly concerned with the company's operation. Regular
monitoring of movement of foreign exchange rates is carried out and decisions are taken as to when outstanding are
to be covered and payments are to be made. Working Capital requirement are to be kept at minimum level in order to
maintain the lowest possible interestrate.

Company has strongly prepared itself to meet cutthroat competition in global market by adhering to intemational
quality standards ofits product.

In addition to above company has overall risk management strategy, follows such practices & policies that are
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framework of efficient management to count the risk in advance.

Internal Control System and their Adequacy:

The company has made sufficient arrangement for internal control system and its monitoring for keeping proper
record of the purchase of raw materials, stores, components, plantand machineries, equipment's and all otherassets
for production and sale of finished leather and leather products. The company has clearly fixed rules and
responsibilities for all management personnel and all operational activities are well controlled. The sysiem ensures
authorization of alltransactions, records and the reports correctly and properly through computerized system.

The Audit committee of the Company also re-examines adequacy of internal controls, systems of risk management
policies adopted by the Company,

Company's Laws and Regulations are also reviewed by the internal Audit Team regularly from time to time and its
report is submitted to the promoters and put up in every Board Meeting. In order to provide sufficient support for
business promotion of the company, the finance and commercial functions have been properly set. The company
takes into account from time tolime and Analysis its progress in accordance with the Laws and Regulations set by the
intemal auditors and report to the Board in every Board Meeting in support of best practices for internal control,
standard operating norms and guidelines are being issued. The Company also incorporates all financial operating,
and information technology systems are also evaluated from time to time.

Environment and safety:

The Company feels its responsibility and is fully aware of the imporiance to achieving exhibiting healthy
environmental performance by checking effect of its activities, product or services for the environment. The
environment policy of the company fully complies with the environmental laws and prevention of water, air and noise
pollution and all efforts are made for continual improvement in the environmental performance. The Company has
also initiated focusing its attention on "Charter on Corporate Responsibility” under the policy of the Government of
India. The Company takes all measure to save and minimize the environmental effect on air, water by strictly using
and further sounding its environmental management system 1o meet its objective. The Company ensures providing
safe work place, machines and safety control measures within the organization and a sense of safety consciousness
isspread amongst all the workmen, employees and supervisors.

Industrial Relations and Human Resources Development;

The Company gives much importance to maintain good relations with its employees ensuring that employees feel
valued and energeticin creating an atmosphere and culture so thatthey can maximize their contributioninincreasing
the growth and further development of the company, and in turn the Company thinks of individual growth of its
employees for their dedicated participation in organizational development.

The company's priority is to reduce the employee's turnover ratio. The company's approach and efforts are to create
congenial work environment for individual growth, which enable the development of whole organization. Relationship
with the employees remains cordial through out the year. The company has a team of over 500 dedicated employees
working towards the company's mission.

Discussion of Financial Performance with respectto Operational Performance:

Effective working management is regulary concentrating to reduce the cost of debt as much as possible. Prudent
cash management endeavor to utilize the optimum Working Capital in order to reduce the interest cost and also to
avoid the botlleneck of company's operation.

Research & Development
The company is committed to continue technological innovation, physical and chemical standardization and
improvement to achieve high standards of product quality and customer satisfaction

Key factors that keep the company one step ahead:

Extensive interaction with the latesttechnological developments.

Presencein all majortrade fairs, seminars and workshops for optimum knowledge up gradation.
Well qualified and progressive workforce.,

Fully equipped Laboratory

coop
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The tannery units of the company work under guidance of a well-equipped laboratory conducting physical and
chemical tests. It also has a pilot tannery to conduct trials of new leathers at a small scale before its implementation in
bulk production. The laboratory has all the requisites to perform tests of leather as per EN, ISO and DIN standards.
The company is amongst few companies which provide certification as per the REACH guidelines of European
ChemicalsAgency.

Design Studio: The footwear units of the company conduct their production as per the guidance of a newly built, state
of the art designing cell, lead by well qualified shoe technologists and designers. Due to arapid change in the product
profile over the past few years, this siudio was installed keeping in mind the ever-changing tests and preferences of
the customers, while keeping time frame into consideration.

Quality Assurance: Amajor factor which keeps the company ahead is its obsession with total quality, which includes
products of the highest standards, quick and efficient customer service, leading to complete customer satisfaction,
Factors like these help the company to retain customers, some ofthem, for as long as 31 years.

Fair Participation

Asia Pacific Leather fair, Hong Kong
Lineapelle, Bologna, Italy

Moda, Birmingham, United Kindom

All China Leather Exhibition, Shanghai , China
A+ AFair, Dusseldorf, Germany

Fimec Fair, Novo Hamburgo, Brazil

Cautionary Statement:

Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report which seek to describe the company's objectives,
projections estimates, expectations and predictions may be considered to be "forward looking statements” and are
stated as required by applicable laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied.
Many factors including global and domestic demand-supply conditions, prices, raw materials availability,
technological changes, changes in Government policies, tax laws and other statues may affect the actual results,
which could be different from what the Directors' envisage in terms of future performance and outlook.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Social Responsibility:

Super Tannery Limited (STL) believes in total commitment 1o society. The promoters of the company run an
organization known as AMIN WELFARE TRUST (AWT ) which follows the motto of "Fromoting Hope in Life." This trust
has taken up number of social causes in the field of EDUCATION & HEALTHCARE.

STL nurtures relationships across the entire range of stakeholders, which has the Company understand perinent
issues, develop businesses, enhance shareholder value and manage risks better. It is the relationship, trust and
commitmentto stake holder's interest and the warm reciprocal ofthe same by the stakeholders that make STL robust,
resilient and sustainable. STL actively integrates shareholder goals with its own and then pursues them
collaboratively.

STL's commitment towards excellence in Health, Safety and Environment Performance is one of the company's core
values. The company is unwavering and its policy of, “safety of persons overrides all production targets”, which drives
all employees 1o continuously break new grounds in safety management for the benefit of the people, property,
environment and the communities in which STL operates. This is the Company's responsibility as a global corporate
citizen. The 'pursuitto achieve world class operational excellence' has been the key focus ofthe Company.

Healthcare:

AWT operates a hospital known as Chaudhry Ehsan Kareem Hospital, well equipped with the most modern
machinery and infrastructure, in the industrial area of Jajmau, Kanpur City, providing healthcare facilities in a number
of fields including Neurology, Vision, Endocrinology, Dentistry and Pre/Post Maternal Care.

STL has a program an initiative to promote healthy workplaces and reduce health and safety risks, has been
instrumental in creative a culture ofimplementing health, safety and environment project on priority basis.

This performance has also helped the Company to improve its performance on the occupational health and safety
front.

Education:

On 26" January 2010, AWT launched a state of art educational institution namely Super International School with
the aim to provide world class education at affordable cost to the middle income group. The school is affiliated with the
C.B.S.E board and is equipped with the latest infrastructure required for a healthy and constructive approach to
education. To know more, please visit www.superinternationalschool.com

Environment

When the leather industry enough developed, the pollution of air and water increased and the stage reached where
scientists started thinking on making better use or reuse of material which caused pollution keeping in mind the
economical factorelse noindustrialist would accept the change.

Special emphasis has been laid on use of low waste technology with minimum possible expenditure and maximum
quality production because il is natural for any industrialists to resist a change unless it is likely to give better quality
production with least expenditure. Pollution is given the last priority by them whereas we give it the first priority.

At STL we are very much cautious about pollution. We have our own water treatment and chrome recovery plant in
which we collect the drain water full of nickel, chromium and many more harmful substances. Our deep interestisin
green and clean environment. The chrome isused in the processing ofhides & skins in which 65% is consumed during
the process while 35% goes waste. The presence of chrome in the discharged water of tanneries is hazardous for
public health as its excessive Use can cause severe skin diseases. To minimize the danger we have water freatment
plantto purify water to its maximum possible level. We believe to contribute in safe and healthy environment. STLis an
eco friendlytannery.

Health, Safety & Environment

We at STL are committed to provide a safe and healthy working environment for our employees by adopting a
proactive approach. it is part of our work ethic to ensure that safety, health and environment safeguards are in place
right from the inception to the execution stage. We accept the need for constant up gradation of safety & health
standards commensurate with the rapid changing technology in production.
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2021
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN:- L19131UP1984PLC0O0G421
i) Registration Date:- 6™ FEB.1984
iii) Name of the Company: SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company Limited by shares
Company:
V) Address of the Registered office and 187/170,Jajmau Road Kanpur-208010
contact details Ph. : 0512-7522000370, 71, 72
Vi) Whether listed company Yes
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of KFIN Technologies Pvt.Ltd.
Registrar and Transfer Agent: Karvy selenium Towers B,Plot No 31,32, Gachibowli
Financial District, Nanakramguda Hyderabad-500032 A.P.
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated: -
Sl. No. | Name and Description NIC Code of % to total
of main products/ the product/ turnover of the
services service company
1 Finished Leather, Leather 2990 100
2 Shoes, Shoes Components 2912 100
& Others
I11. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Applicable
S.NO| ADDRESS OF THE SUBSIDIARY | shares Section
COMPANY ASSOCIATE | held
1 |Super ComporationLtd. |U19112UP2013PL| Subsidiary 52 129
D-403 White House C0B1542
Defence Colony, Kanpur
2 Aarifi Tanners Ltd. | J19112UP1996P| Subsidiary 82.52 129
187/170 Jajmau LCO19255
Kanpur
3 Secure Safety Ltd. |UP1920UP2007 | Subsidiary 63.29 129
PLC032929
4 f‘t‘éper Tannery(UK) N.A Subsidiary | 100 129
5 Super ltalia s.r.l. N.A Subsidiary
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IV.

percentage of Total Equity)

I) Category-wise Share HoldIng

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the yearlst
April 2020

No. of Shares held at the

end of the year
31.03.2021

Chan

ge
durin

Demat | Phys | Total

ical

Phy
sica
|

Dem
at

Total

% of
Total
Shar
es

A. Promoter
s

(1) Indian

g) Individual/
HUF

h) Central
Govt

i) State Govt
(s)

j)} Bodies
Corp.

k) Banks / FI

1} Any
Other....

Sub-total
(A) (1):-

(2) Foreign

636346143 Nil 63461434

63461434 Nil 63461434 58.78

63461434 Nil

63461434 Nil

63461434

63461434

58.78

58.78

INil

INil
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a) NRis -
Individuals
b) Other -
Individuals
¢) Bodies
Corp.

d) Banks / FI
e) Any
Other....

Sub-total
(A) (2):-

Total
shareholdin
g of
Promoter
{(A) =
;‘)\)(1)+(A)( 63461434 |Nil 63461434/58.78  163461434) 63461434/58.78  Nil

B. Public
Shareholdin [936876 P575050 4451192641.22  [B493687695750504451192641.22  |NIL

1.
Institutions

a) Mutual

Funds

b) Banks / FI

¢) Central
Govt

d) State
Govt(s)

e) Venture
Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FIls

h) Foreign
Venture
Capital
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Funds
i) Others

(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutio
ns

a) Bodies
Corp.

i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto
Rs. 2 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 2
lakh

c) Others

(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

34936876

9575050

44511926

41,22

34945876

9566030

@4511926

41,22

00

C. Shares
held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

00

00

00

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

98398310

9575050

107973360

100

98407310

9566050

107973360

100
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(ilShareholding of Promoters

Sl | Sharehold Shareholding at the Share holding at the end
N |er's Name beginning of the of the year31.03.2021
0. vear(01.04.2020
No. of %of Shares | No. of % %of %
Shar es Pledged / Shar es |of Shares chan
encumbe tota | Pledged / | ge in
red to total | encumbe | share
shares Sha |red to holdi
res | total ng
of shares durin
the g the
com year
1 |VEQARUL AMIN 17883900 16.56 |709 17883900 [16.56 [1.09 00
2 | IQBAL AHSAN 9142502 8.47 P.47' 9142502 847 RB.47 00
2 | IFTIKARUL AMIN p080432 841 B.41 0080432 |8.41 8.41 00
4 |MUBASHIRUL AMIN |4590000 4.25 00 K¥590000 425 Do 00
5 |UMAIRUL AMIN 14590000 4.25 00 1590000 125 PO 00
6 |TANVEERUL AMIN 4500000 4.17 00 4500000 |17 PO 00
7 | FARHA FATIMA “¥500000 417 0O 4500000 4.17 |00 00
8 | SOPHIAAMIN 3458400 3.20 B.05 3458400 320 B.O5 00
9 | ISMAT IQBAL 3082800 2.86 [2.86 3082800 DR6 .86 00
10 [RUMANA AMIN 2633400 244 00 2633400 2.44 0O 00
Total p3461434 |58.78 29 87 63461434 [58.78 P9.87 00
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(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there
is no change) There is no change in Promoters,shareholding
during the year.

Sl. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total shares
shares shares of shares of the company
the
company

At the No Change No Change No Change No Change

beginning of

the year

Date wise No Change No Change No Change No Change

Increase /

Decrease in

Promoters

Share

holding

during the

vear

specifying

the reasons

for increase

/ decrease

(e.q.

allotment /

transfer /

bonus/

sweat

equity etc):

At the End No Change No Change No Change No Change

of the year

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than

Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sl. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year

Name No. of % of total | No. of % of total

shares shares of shares shares of the
the company
company
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of the year

1. Renu Devi 1667365 1.55 1626724 1.51
Patni

2. Kishore Kumar | 1617398 1.50 1497360 1.39
Patni

3. SANGEETHAS | 1358890 1.26 1333390 1.23

4. Mahendra 209881 0.85 909881 0.85
Girdharilal

5. Updesh Kumar | 587000 0.55 883000 0.82
Kaushal.

6. Gaurav 441269 0.41 441269 0.41
Sawhney

7. Shabbir 433833 0.41 433833 0.41
Nazmuddin
Paratha

8 Bharat Bhushan| 374734 035 429082 0.40
Sawhney

98. 408965 0.38 408965 0.38
Gaurav
Sawhney

10. Naresh Jain 377331 0.35 377331 0.35
At the end As above As above As above As above
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Date wise
Increase /
Decrease in
Share holding
during the
year
specifying the
reasons for
increase /
decrease {(e.g.
allotment /
transfer /
bonus / sweat
equity etc):

At the End of
the year ( or
on the date of
separation, if
separated
during the
year)
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sk
No.

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

For Each
of the

Directors
and KMP

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of
the

company

No. of
shares

% of total shares
of the company

At the
beginning of
the year

36107034

33.44

36107034

13.44

Date wise
Increase /
Decrease in
Share
holding
during the
year
specifying
the reasons
for increase
/ decrease
(e.q.
allotment /
transfer /
bonus/
sweat
equity etc):

At the End
of the year

Ag above

As above

Az above

As above

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued
but not due for payment in lacs.

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not

Secured Unsecured | Deposits | Total
Loans Loans Indebtedness
excluding
Indebtedness at the 00 7080.30
beginning of the financial 00
year
7080.30
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due

Total (1+11+I111) 00 00 00

Change in Indebtedness

during the financial year

1186.25

Addition 1186.25 (100.00)
Reduction (100.00)

Net Change 1086.25 00 00 1086.25

Indebtedness at the

end of the financlal year {166.5

i) Principal Amount

i) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not

due

Total (I-+11+I111) 8166.55 00 00 8166.55

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuri eration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or

Manager:
Sl. Particulars of Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
no Remuneration Amount

Iftikharul
Amin,MD

Igbal
Ahsan

Veqarul
Amin

Imran
Siddiqui

Mohd.
Imran

Arshad
Khan
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1

Gross salary
(a) Salary as
per provisions
contained in
section 17(1)
of the Income-
tax Act,

1961

(b) Value of
perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-
tax Act,

1961

2400000

2400000

00

706000

399000

394000

6299000

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of
profit

Others, please

Total (A)

2400000

2400000

nil

706000

399000

394000

6299000

Ceiling as per

INA

NA

NA

INA

INA

INA

B. Remun eration to other directors:

no.

Sl Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total

Amount

3. Independent Directors

- Fee for attending board
committee meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

Total (1)

INil

Nil

INil INil
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4, Other Non-Executive
Directors

- Fee for attending board
committee meetings

- Commission

- Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the ActNA NA INA NA NA

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD

sl. Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
no. Remuneration

CEO Company | CFO | Total
Secretary
1, 204000
Gross salary

(a) Salary as per
provislons
contained in
section 17{1) of
the Income-tax
Act, 1961

(b) Value of
perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

{c) Profits in lieu of
salary under section
17({3) Income-tax
Act, 1961

2. Stock Option 00 0o 00

% 3 Sweat Equity 00 po

&, Commission 0o
- as % of 00

profit

- pthers, specify...

5. Others, please 00 00

specify

Total 204000
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of | Brief E:::ills °/f Authority |Appeal
the Description Punis;yment / [RD / NCLT made,
Companies c Z / COURT] |if any
Act om?oundmg (give

fees imposed Details)
A. COMPANY N.A
Penalty
Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS N.A

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT N.A

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding
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Form No.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2021.

[Pursuant fo section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,
SUPERTANNERY Limited
1871170, JAJAMU KANPUR
UTTAR PRADESH.

We were appointed by the Board of Directors of the Super Tannery Limited (hereinafter called the Company) o
conduct Secretarial Audit ofthe Company for the financial yearended 31st March, 2021.

We have conducted the secretarial audit compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by SuperTannery Limited. (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Auditwas conducted in
a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification, the Super Tannery Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,

We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit perod covering the financial year ended on
31st March, 2021 Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute, books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company for the financial yearended on31si March,2021 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:
(il The Securities contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder:
(iliy  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder:
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulation made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Invesiment Overseas Direcl Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:
(v) Thefollowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act'):.-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
regulation, 2011:
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 :
{c) The securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2008 —Notapplicable fo the Company for the year underreview;
{d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 : Not applicable to the Company for the year under review;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008.
Not applicable to the Company forthe year under review;
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() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue And Share Transfer Agents)
Regulation, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing With client: Not applicable to the
Company forthe year under review;

{(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Share) Regulations,2009: Not
applicable to the Company for the year underreview;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998: Not
applicable tothe Company for the year underreview;

(vi) (Mention the other laws as may be applicable specifically to the Company) N.A

we have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Company is
maintaining Minutes Book as per the norms, but notas Stated inthe §5-1 and §8-2, the company has
been suggested to comply the standard viz. numbering of Minutes Book, whether they are Board
Minutes, Committee Minutes or General Body Minutes.

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
(hereinafter called as “Listing Agreement):

During the period the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. Mentioned above, to the extent applicable:

We furtherreport that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. There is no change in the composition of the
Board of Directors during the period under review.

Adequate noticeis given to all directors to convene the Board Meeting, agenda {detailed notes on agenda were sent,
bul sometime at least seven days in advance notice were not adhered), and a system for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and recorded as part of the minutes, it was found that most of the time it was
unanimous butthe name of proposer and seconder were given in the Minutes book.

We furtherreport that
The adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines to the extent applicable.

We furtherreport that

On the basis of the questionnaire provided to the Company, during the audit period, on the basis of reply received
from the various departments, it was concluded thatthe company has complied with the following laws applicable 1o
the Company.

Forexample:
(i) Water (prevention and control of pollution) Act,1974;
(ii) Air{prevention and control of pollution)Act,1981;
(iii) Environment Protection Act,1986;
{iv) Factories Act,1948;
{v) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;
{vi) Payment of Wages Act, 1936,
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{vii) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948,
{viii) Employees State Insurance Act,1948;

{ix) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Acl, 1952,

(x) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

(xi) The Payment of Gratuity Act,1972;

{xii) The Sexual Harassment of Women atwork place, (Prohibition and Redressal)Act, 2013.
Signature:

K.N.Shridhar. &Associates
Name of Company Secretary in Practice/Firm:
FCSNo. 3882 CPNo:2612

Date : 07.08.2021

Place: Kanpur

39



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read

Statement Containing Salient Features of the Financial Statement of
Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

Part “A”; Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Details
Sl S.TUKLTD| SECURE AARIFI SUPER SUPER
Name of the Subsidiary SAFETY TANMERS | CORPOR- | ITALIA
No. LTD. LTD. ATION SRL
LTD.
1. | Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2021| 31.03.2021
the holding company's reporting period
2. | Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the GBP INR INR INR EURD
relevant Finandial year in the case of forgign subsidiaries
3. | Share capital Rs.1.52 Rs.150.00 Rs.148.07 Rs.5.00 Rs.0.75
4. | Reserves & surmplus Rs. (-)410.20| Rs.{-)26.79 Rsi-}16.44 Rs. 0.11| Rs. {-) 24.73
5. | Total assefs Rs. 50.15 Rs.100.98 Rs.15.19 Rs. 3.54 Rs. 48.58
B. | Tetal Llabilifies Rs. 50.15 Rs.100.98 Rs.16.92 Rs.3.54 Rs. 48.58
7. | Investments NIL NIL Rs.1.73 NIL NIL
8. | Turnover NIL NIL NIL NIL| Rs.1,202.77
8. | Prefit before taxation Rs.5.82 Rs.{-) 0.44 Rs.{-) 0.58 Rs.0.09 Rs, 8.85
10. | Provision for taxation NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
M. | Profit after taxation Rs.5.82 Rs.{-) 0.44 Rs.{-) 0.58 Rs.0.09 Rs. 8.85
12. | Proposed Dividend NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
13. | % of shareholding 100% 83.29% 82.52% 52% 100%

Notes: The following Information shall be furnished af the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yef to commence operations
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of associates!Joint Ventures

NIL

Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

Shares of Associatel)oint Ventures held by the company on the year end No.

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture

Extend of Holding%

Description of how there is significant influence

Reason why the associatefjoint venture is not consolidated

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Shest

Profit/Loss for the year

Considered in Consolidation

Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Mames of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Note: This Fom Is to be cerfified In the same manner Inwhich the Balance Shest is fo be cerfified.
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Form No. AOC-2

{Pursuant to cfause (h) of sub-section (3}of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

{(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of confracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms

length transactions under third proviso thereto

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions notatarm's length basis:

(@)
(b)
()
(d)
(e)
(f)
(9)
(h)

Name(s) ofthe related party and nature of relationship:

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

Duration ofthe contracts / arrangements/iransactions:

Salientterms of the contracts or arrangements ortransactions including the value, ifany:
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements ortransactions

Date(s) of approval bythe Board:

Amount paid as advances, ifany:

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188: N A

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’'s length basis:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

Name(s)ofthe related party and nature of relationship:

Nature of contractsfarrangementsftransactions:

Duration ofthe contracts / arrangements/transactions:

Salientterms ofthe contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
Date(s) of approval by the Board, ifany:

Amountpaid as advances, if any:

The Details hasbeen given underthe head notes to financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Iftikharul Amin Mohd.lmran R.K.Awasthi

M.D

Director Finance &CFO Company Secretary
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RAJEEV PREM & ASSOCIATES Off. - 0612 - 2302412

- DACCOUNTANTS W - Pty
CHARTERE : Office ' 218, Kalpana Plaza

24/147-8B, Birhana Road
Kanpur-208 001
E-mail | carajecvkapoori@gmail com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Tothe members of SuperTannery Limited
We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate govemance lyy Super Tannery Limited ("the Company”}, for the
year ended on March 31, 2021, as stipulated in regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b} to (i} of requlation 46(2) and paragraphs C,D
and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations”}.

2. Management's responsibility

The compliance of conditions of comporate govemance is the responsihility of management. This responsibility includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of intemal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of
corporate govemance stipulated inthe SEBIListing Regulations.

3. Auditors’ responsibility

Qur responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of the corporate govemance. Itis neither audit nor expression of opinion on the financial statements
of the Company.

4. We have examined the books of accounts and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the
purpose of providing reasonable assurance onthe compliance with corporate govemance requirements by the Company.

5. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAI"), the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable forthe purpose ofthis certificate and
as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purpose issued by the ICAl which requires that we comply with
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for
Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements.

7. Opinion

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanation provided to us and
representations provided by management, we cerify that the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate
governance as specified in regulation 17 to 27, clause (b} to (i} of regulation 46(2} and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable dunngthe yearended March 31, 2021.

8. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the managementhas conducted the affairs ofthe Company.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008905C

(Rajesv Kapoor}
Place: Kanpur Partner
Date: August 07, 2021 M. No. 077827

ULIN: 21077827 AAAAHASA TS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of SuperTannery Limited

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the standalone statement of change in equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the yearthen ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referredto as "Standalone Financial Statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act} inthe manner so required and give atrue and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and
profit (including other comprehensive income), change in equity and its cash flows forthe yearended on thatdate.,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements underthe provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key AuditMatters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the cumrent pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined thatthere are
no key audit matters to be communicatedin our report,

Information Other thanthe standalone Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible forthe otherinformation The other information comprises the information included in
the Annual Report, but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditors' report therson.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. |f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
otherinformation, we are required to report that fact:

We have nothing to report in this regand.

Responsibility of Management for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) ofthe Act with respect to the preparation ofthese
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, change in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, induding the accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, This respensibility alsoincludes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting pelicies; making judgments and estimates that
are reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
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standalone financial statement that give atrue andfair view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclesing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the geing concern basis of accounting unless management
gither intends toliquidate the Company orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible foroverseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalene financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue anauditor's report thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level

of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements,

As part of an auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also,

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe standalone financial statements, whether due te fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
mayinvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe ocvemride ofinternal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinicn on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place andthe operating effectiveness of such controls,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncerainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concemn. [fwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Our
condusions are based on the audit sevidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company o cease to continue as a geing concern,

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the standalone financial statements representthe underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control thatwe identify during cur audit,

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of mest significance in the

audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. YWe describe these mattersin our

auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reascnably be
expected to outweigh the publicinterest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2018 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of section 143 ofthe Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we considered
appropriate and accerding to information and explanations given to us, we give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matters
specifiedin paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 197(18} of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in
accordance withthe provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule Vto the Act,

3. Furthertoourcommentsin Annexure A, asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of cur audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper beoks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

(<) The standalcne balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
standalone statement of change in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement withthe books of account;

(d) In sur opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 ofthe Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as of March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as enMarch 31, 2021 from being appeinted as adirectorin terms of Section 164
(2) ofthe Act.

(i With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(D With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in ouropinionand to the best ofourinformation and according to the explanations given tous:
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i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements—Refer Noteno 33 tothe financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term conftracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses; and

iiil. there has been no delay in fransferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund bythe Company.

iv. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in spedified bank notes were applicable for the
period from November 08, 2016 to December 30, 2016, which are not relevant to these standalone financial
statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firmm Registration No. 008305C

Place: Kanpur

Date: 7.08.2021 (Rajeev Kapoor)

Partner
M., No, 077827
UDIN: 21077827AAAAGK4759
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date on standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2021 of Super Tannery Limited}

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and also on the basis of such checks as we considered appropnate, we
state that:

(i} {a} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including gquantitative details and situation of
its fixed assets.

(b}  All the fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is regular
program of physical verification, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of fixed assets. No material discrepancies have heen noticed in respect of the assets physically verified
duringtheyear.

(c} The Company owns immovable properties. Certain immovable properties of erstwhile Super Agro-Tech Limited
(SATL) acquired pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at
Allahabad, included in the books of the company remain in the name of SATL pending completion of the certain
formalities. Further, to aforesaid certain land at Banthar, Unnao though used for the business pumposes of the
company is lying registered in the name of one of director ofthe company.

(ii} The inventories of the Company have been physically verified by the management at regular interval during the year. in
our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonahble. As explained to us, the discrepancies noticed on verification were
notmaterial in relation to the operations of the Company.

(iii} The Company has notgranted anyloan, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liakility Partnerships orother
parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} excepting interest free
unsecured demand loan to two Wholly Owned Subsidiaries incorporated outside India and one subsidiaryincomporated in
India.

(a} Thetermsand conditions of such loan/advance are, prima facie, not prejudicial tothe company’s interest.

(b}  Asthe loans are in the nature of demand loan, no schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest have
been specified,

{c}  Thereis nooverdue in respect of suchloans and interest thereon as no demand has been raised by the company.

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making
investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

(v} In our opinicn, the Company has not accepted any deposit during the year within the meaning of Section 73 to Section 76
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Rules framed there under. Hence, paragraph 3(v) of the Orderis not
applicable.

{vi} Having regard to the nature of the Company's business / activities, the maintenance of costrecords has not been specified

by the Central Govemment under section 148(1} of the Act. Accordingly reporting under clause (vi} of paragraph 3 of the
Orderis not applicable.

{vii} (a} According tothe books and records produced and examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing
undisputed Statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Services Tax (GST}, Cess and ather material
statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities and no undisputed amount payable in respect of
aforesaid statutory dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date
they become payable.

(b} According 1o the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and GST which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.
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{viii)

(ix}

)

(d)

{xii}

(xiii)

{xiv}

(v}

(evi)

The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or bomrowings to a financial institution, bank, govemment or dues
to debenture holders during the year.

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments}
during the year. In our opinion, the term loans have been applied forthe purposes for which they were raised.

Based on the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material
fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers oremployees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration paid or provided by the company is in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule ViotheAct,

Thecompanyisnota “Nidhi Company”; hence paragraph 3(xii}the Orderis notapplicable.
In our opinion, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act where applicable
and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the

applicable Ind AS.

The company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the yearunderreview. Hence, paragraph 3(xiv} the Orderis not applicable.

In our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
him. Hence, paragraph 3(xv} the Orderisnot applicable.

In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under Section 45 |Aof the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1534.
For Rajeev Prem & Associates,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008305C

Flace: Kanpur .
Date: 0?.0§.2021 (Rajeev Kapoor)

Partner
M. No, 077827
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f} of our report of even date on the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March
31, 2021 of Super Tannery Limited}

Report onthe Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of S8ection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the intermnal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Super Tannery Limited ("the
Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such intemnal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the intemal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components ofintermnal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the intemal
control over financial reporting critenia established by the Company considenng the essential components ofintemnal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensunng the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit,
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Note"} and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable 1o an audit of Intemal
Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls
overfinancial reporting was established and maintained andif such controls operated effectively in allmaterial respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence ahoutthe adequacy oftheintemalfinancial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that amaterial weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material migstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due tofraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion cn the
Company's intemal financial controls system overfinancial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls overFinancial Reporting

Acompany's intemal financial control overfinancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in ascordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's intemnal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
proceduresthat (1) pertainto the maintenance of records that, inreasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the fransactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance thattransactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
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expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition ofthe company’s assets that could have a material effect on thefinancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls overFinancial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management ovemde of controls, matenal misstatements due to error or fraud may ocour and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
intemal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008805C

(Rajeev Kapoor}
Place: Kanpur Partner
Date: 07.08.2021 M. No. 077827
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Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in lacs Rs. in Lacs
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2{a}) 7,036.64 6,236.92
(b} Capital work-in-progress 213.74 165.08
{c) Otherintangible assets 2(b) 6.13 6.47
{d} Financial Assets
{i} Investments 3 296.76 293.20
(i} Loans 4 230.12 526.88 230.12 523.32
{e) Other non-turrent assets 5 34.99 34.52
Current Assers
{a) Inventories B 7,863.22 8,608.91
(b} Financlal Assets
{f} Trade receivables 7 5,619.45 3,687.86
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 8 183.61 345.47
{lil} Bank Balances other than [lil) above 2] 504.66 4B8.30
(lv} Other Financial Assets 10 783.25 7,090.97 303.42 4,825.05
{c) Current Tax Assets (Net) - 156.98
{d} Othercurrent assets 11 1,016.24 786.19
TOTAL ASSETS 23,788.81 21,343.54
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equity Share Capltal 12 1,074.73 1,079.73
(b} Other Equlty 13 7,569.82 8,649.55 7,093.85 8,173.58
LIABILITIES
Non current llabilites
{a) Financlal llabllities
{} Borrowlngs 14 279.73 336.48
{b} Deferred tax liabilities {net) i5 470.68 528.02
{c} Other non-current liabllitles 16 384.99 366.38
Current llabliitles
{a) Financial Nabllitles
{i  Short term borrowings 17 7,885.82 6,743.82
{ll) Trade payables 13
{a) Total Outstanding Dues to micro and small enterprises 51.39 63.73
(b) Total Outstanding Due to parties other than micro and small enterprises 4,212.75 3,387.66
{ln) Other financlal llabllites 19 998.94 13,149.50 854.48 11,049.69
{b} Other current liabllitles 20 €652.56 716.73
{c) Provislons 21 201.40 172.66
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 23,788.81 21.343.54
Significant Accounting Policies 1

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

As per our attached report of even date

For Rajeev Prem & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. G08905C

Rajeev Kapoor
Partner
M. No. 077827

Place: Kanpur
Date: 07.08 2021

Fer and on behalf of the Board

Mohd. Imran Iftikharul Amin
Diractor (Finance] & CFO Managing Diractor

R. K. Awasthl
Company Secretary
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Standalona Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Partlculars Note No. 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Laes Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

INCOME:
Revenue from Qperations
{a} Sales/income from operaticns 22(a) 18,307.91 17,298.16
{b] Other Operating Revenue 22{h) 777.59 19,085.50 936.69 18,234.85
Other Income 23 117.22 58.20
Total Income 19,202.72 18,333.05
EXPENSE:
Cost of materlals consumed 24 10,680.40 11,948.72
Purchase of stock-In-trade 5 1,648.73 1,383.82
Changes In Inventories of finished goods,
work-In-progress and stock-In-trade 26 905.21 {1,400.08)
Employee Reneflts Expanses 27 811.22 834.30
Finange costs 28 533.15 £70.33
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 29 595,30 570.28
Other Expenses a0 3,435.84 3,961.19
Total Expenses 18,609.85 17,968.56
Profit before Exceptional items and Tax 592.87 364.49
Exceptlonal items - -
Profit before Tax 592.87 364.49
Tax expense;

1. Current Tax 131.00 100.00

2. Deferred Tax {2.98) {182.99)

3, Tax adjustment relating to eardier years

Current Tax 63.26 {1.75)

Deferred Tax [58.57) 13171 - {84.74)
Profit for tha parlod 461.16 4459.23
Other comprehenshve Income
{l} temsthat will not be reclassiied to profit or loss

{a} Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 20.02 {54.83)

(i) Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (5.21) 1481 14.26 {40.57)
Total comprehensive iIncome for tha parlod 475.97 408.66
Eamings per equity share 31
(Face Value per Share Rs. 1/-)

1, Basle 0.43 0.42

2. Dlluted 0.43 0.42
Significant Accounting Polldes 1
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Rajesv Prem & Assoclates
Charterad Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008505C

Mohd. Imran Iftikharul Amin
Director (Finance} & CFO Managing Director
Rajeev Kapoor
Partner
M. No. 077827
R. K. Awasthl

Place: Kanpur Company Sacretary

Date: 7 pe.2021
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Rs. In Lacs
Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,079.73
Changes In equlty during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,079.73
Changes In equlty durlng the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,079.73
B. Other Equity
Particulars Reserve and Surplus 0C| - Other Total
Capital |Securities General Retained Other
Reserve |Premium Reserve Earnings Equity
Balance as at March 31, 2019 17.67 270.18 4,563.21 1,834.13 - 6,685.19
Profit for the year 449.23 - 449.23
Other Comprehansive Income {40.57) {40.57)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 17.67 270.18 4,563.21 2,242.79 - 7,093.85
Profit for the year 461.16 461.16
Other Comprehensive Income 14.81 14.81
|Balance as at March 31, 2021 17.67 270,18 4,563.21 2,718.76 - 7,569.82
Significamt Accounting Palicles 1

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Rajeev Prem & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. O08905C
Mohd. Imran Iftikharul Amin
Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Director
Rajeev Kapoor
Partner
M. No. 077827
R. K. Awasthi
Company Secretary
Place: Kanpur

Date: 07.08 2021
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Standalona Statement of Cash Flows for the yeaar anded March 31, 2021

Partlculars 200-21 20139 - 20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
A. CASH ALOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit befora tax 592.87 364.49
Adjustments for:
Depreclation/ Amortisation 595.30 570.28
Profit an Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments {5.75) -
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 13.73 250
Interest Income (27.37) {23.23)
Accretion In Investment and share of profit from LLP (3.55)
Finance Cost 412.25 549.79
Deferral of income on government grant {54.13) {43.60)
Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans 20,02 {54.83)
Derlvatives MtoM Provislon 36.00 23.66
Opurating profit before working capital changas 1,579.37 1,385.06
Changes in working capital:
{Increase)f Decrease In trade recelvables {1,931.58) 3011
{Increase)/ Decrease In Inventorles 745.69 {635.27)
{Increase)f Decrease In other hon current loan - {21.53)
{Increase)/ Decrease in other non current asset {0.37) {5.86)
{Increase)/ Decrease In other current financlal assets {479.83} 50.48
{Increase)/ Decrease In other current assets {230.05} 342,10
Increase/ ([Decrease) in non current liabilities 1B.61 -
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 81275 35567
Increase/ {Decrease] In other financlal llabllities 19.75 274.60
Increase/ (Decrease] In other current llabllities {64.17) 59.83
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 10.51 60.70
Cash generated from operations 480.67 1,936.49
Income taxes refunded / {pald), net {54.76) {157.93)
Net cash generated from operating activities 425,91 1,778.56
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets (1,413.57} {516.07)
Purchase of other Intanglble assets - {1.75}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 19.64 158
Increase of non-current investmants {3.56) 26.00
Interest received 27.37 23.23
Other bank balances {Margin Money) {16.36) {245.28)
Net cash {used In) / generated from Investing activities [1,386.48) {1,112.29)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/{repayment) from/of short-term loans 1,143.00 {252.73)
Proceeds/{repayment) from/of long-term loans €7.96 286,79
Finance costs pald {412.25} {549.79)
Net cash used in financing activities 798.71 {515.73)
INCREASE / {DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {161.856} 15054
Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the year 345.47 194.93
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the year 183.61 345.47
[refer Note No., 8 for break-up)
Significant Accounting Pollcles 1
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Rajeev Prem % Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. 008305C Mohd. Imran Iftlkharul Amin
Director {Finance} & CFO Managing Diractor
Rajeev Kapoor
Parther R. K. Awasthl
M. No. 077827 Company Secretary
Place: Kanpur

Date: 07 08 2021
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Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Note1:

A.CORPORATEINFORMATION

Super Tannery Limited ("the Company'} is a public limited company having its registered office situated at 187/170 JAJMAU
ROAD JAJIMAU KANPUR-208010 (U.P.}was incorporated on 06.02,1984,

The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and exports of Leather and leatherfootwear.

The Company’s equity shares are listed atthe Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

Thefinancial statements were approved forissuein accordance with a resolution of the directors on July 30, 2020,

B.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have heen prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS} notified
under the Section 133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards}
Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl} are also applied except where compliance with other statutory
promulgations require a different treatment.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost convention on accrual basis except for following
assets and liabilities which have been measured atfairvalue amount:

i}  Certain financial assets and liabilities (including denvative instruments},

i} Defined benefit plans - plan assets

Historical costis generally based on the fair value of the consideration givenin exchange of goods orservices.
Fair value is the price thatwould be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer aliability in an ordery transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whetherthat price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

Anassetis classified as current when itis:

a) expectedtoberealisedorintendedto be sold orconsumed in the nomal operating cycle,

b} held primarily forthe purpose of trading,

¢} expected toberealised within twelve months after the reporting penod, or

d} cash or cash equivalents unless restrcted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is classified as current when:

a} itis expectedto be seffledin the normal operating cycle,

b} itis held primarily forthe purpose oftrading,

¢) itis duetobe settled within twelve months afterthe reporting period, or

d} there is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

Allotherliabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle of the Company, that is, the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash orcash equivalentis 12 months.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is alsoits functional currency.

Critical estimate and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets
and liahilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
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estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The areas involving critical estimates orjudgements are:

: Employee benefits (estimation of defined benefit obligation)
Post-employment benefits represent obligations that will be seftled in the future and require assumptions to
project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is intended o reflect the recognition of future
benefit costs over the employee’s approximate service period, based on the terms of the plans and the investment
and funding decisions made. The accounting requires the Company to make assumptions regarding variables
such as discountrate and salary growth rate. Changes in these key assumptions can have a significantimpact on
the defined benefit obligations.
Estimation of expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date,
based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic
obsolescencethat may change the utility of property, plantand equipment.
Contingencies
Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty inherent
in such matters, itis often difficult to predict the final outcome. The cases and claims against the Company often
raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties and complexities,
including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case/claim, the junsdiction and the
differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business, the Company consults with legal counsel and
other experts on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an
adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss ¢an be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse
outcomeis possible or an estimate is not determinable, the matteris disclosed.
Valuation of deferred tax assets
Deferred income tax expense is calculated based on the differences between the carrying value of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary in nature.
Valuation of deferred tax assets is dependent on management's assessment of future recoverabhility of the
deferred benefit. Expected recoverability may result from expected taxable income in the future, planned
transactions or planned optimising measures. Economic conditions may change and lead to a different
conclusion regarding recoverability.

' Fairvalue measurements
When the fairvalues of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannotbe measured
hased on guoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using valuation techmques, including
market multiples model (Market Approach} and Capitalisation method (Income Approach} which involve various
judgements and assumptions.
impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, intangible assets (other than goodwill)
and Capital work-in-progress
The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU} based on future cash flows after
considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates and
anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal
forecasts. The cash flows are discounted using a suitable discount ratein order to calculate the present value.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately

identifiable cashinflows which are largelyindependent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

6. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, frade discount and rebates less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represent the camrying
value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Such cost
includes purchase price, borrowing costand any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for
its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations
attributable tothe assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
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when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be
measured reliably.

Assets are classified to the appropriate categornes of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intendeduse.

Expenses Incurred relating to project, including borrowing cost and net of income eamed during the project development
stage prior to its intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work - in -
Progress.

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to use these during
more than aperiod of 12 months.

7. Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields orfor capital appreciation or both, and thatis not occupied by the Company,
is classified as investment property. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade
discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes
deemed cost which represent the carmying value of property, plant and equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured
asper the previous GAAP. Such costincludes purchase price, borrowing costand any cost directly aftributable to bringing
the assets to its working condition forits intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising
from exchangerate variations attributable to the assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of property plant and
equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic lrenefits are expected from its use or disposal . Any
gan or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount ofthe asset) isincludedin the income statementwhen the agsetis derecognised.

8. Depreciation
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual
value. Depreciation has been provided on such cost of assets less their residual values on straight line method on the
basis of estimated useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule 1l of the Act.
Estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment as estimated by the management is the same as prescribed in
Schedule llandthe same are as follows:
Factory buildings - 30 years
Non-factory buildings -5 to 60 years
Railway sidings-15years
Plantand equipments- 15 years
Fumiture and fixtures - 8 to 10 years
Computers (included underplant and equipments) - 3years
Office equipments -5 years
Vehicles-81o10years
Freehold land is notdepreciated/amortised.
Assets held under financial leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
wherever shorter, the term of relevant lease.
Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis except that, assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 each are fully depreciated in the
year of purchase.
The estimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

S. Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated
amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, bormowing costs, and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange
contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be
measured reliably.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carmied at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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10.

11.

(Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straightline method over the period of five years,

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as on April 1, 2016
measured as perthe previous GAAP and use that carrying value asits deemed cost as of transition date.

The amortisation period and the amoriisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure
forms part of camying value of anotherasset.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets otherthan goodwill

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impaimment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU} fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Impairmentloss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessmentis made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognized impairmentlosses no longer exist orhave decreased,

If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed. The reversal is limited so that the carying amount of the asset does not exceed Its
recoverahble amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairmentloss been recognised for the asset in prioryears.

Leases

Company as aLessee

The Company assesseswhethera contract contains alease, atinception of a contract. Acontractis, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to contral the use of an identified asset for a define period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the nght to control the use of an identified assets, the Company
assesses whether: (i} the contact involves the use of an identified asset (i} the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use ofthe assetthrough the period of the lease and (jii} the Company has theright to direct the use
ofthe asset.

As alessee, The Companyrecognises arightofuse assetand a lease liability at the lease commencementdate. The right
of use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives recelved.

The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier ofthe end of the useful life of the right of use asset orthe end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right of
use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right of use assetis
periodically reduced by impairmentlosses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liahility.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's
incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis,
may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as
awhole.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in-substance
fixed payments and lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option,

The lease liability is measured atamortised costusing the effective interest method.

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have alease
term of 12 months orless and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Company applied a single discountrate to a
portiolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.
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12.

13.

14,

15.

Companyasalessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is capitalised within
property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments received under operating leases
arerecognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis overthe term ofthelease.

Inventories

Inventonies are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. The basis of determining the cost for vanous

categories ofinventory are as follows:

(a} Rawmaterials, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stock in Trade — Costincludes cost of purchase (Net
of recoverable taxes) and other costs incurred n bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Costis determined on FIFQ basis.

(B} Stockin process and finished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads.

(¢} Saleable Scrap/Waste/By products - Atestimated realisable value.

{d} Interunit gods transfer— transferprice

(e} ImportEntitlement/Licences —Atestimated realisable/Utilisationvalue

Netrealisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion

andthe estimated costs necessarytomake the sale.

Foreign Currencies

a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee
(INR/Rupees}, whichisthe Company's functional and presentation currency.

b}  Transaction and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
the transaction.
Any gains or losses arising due fo differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are
accounted forin the Statement of Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or interest cost,
asthecase may be, exceptthoserelating to long-term foreign currency monetary items.

Investmentin Subsidiaries and Associates
Investment in associates and otherrelated parties are carried at costless accumulated impairment, if any.

FairValue measurement
Fairvalue is the pnece that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed by the Company for
the assetorliability.

Thefairvalue of an asset or a hability 1Is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants actin their economic best interest.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fairvalue, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unochservable
inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as awhole:
: Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted} market prices in active markets foridentical assets orliabilities
Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly orindirectly observable
Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
uncbservable
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16.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recuming basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between |levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level inputthatis significant to the fairvalue measurement as awhole} atthe end of each reporting penod.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades} are recognised on the trade date, 1.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
theasset.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets. Based on
the husiness model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset,
the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income orfair value through profitand loss.

Debt instruments atamortised cost

Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, secunty deposits and loans given are measured at the amortised
costif both the following conditions are met:
Theassetis held within a business model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest(SPPI}onthe principal amount outstanding.
Afterinitial measurement, such financial assets are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR} method. Amortised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
Debt instruments at Fairvalue through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

A'debtinstrument’ is classified as atthe FVTOCIIf both of the following criteria are met:
The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and
The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at far
value. Fairvalue movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (QCI).
Debt instruments at Fairvalue through ProfitorLoss (FVTPL)
FVTPL s a residual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and associate companies. Any
debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categonzation as at amortized cost oras FVYTOCI, Is classified as at
FVTPL.
After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses,
impairment logses and othernetgams and losses arerecognisedin the Statement of Profit and Loss.
De-recognition
Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of afinancial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognlsed (i.e.removed from the Company's Balance Sheet)when
Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to recerve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either:
The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
The Company has neither transfermed nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset,
On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at FYOCI} and
equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Gains and losses in respect
of debt instruments measured at FYOCI and that are accumulated 1n OCI are reclassified to profit or loss on de-
recognition. Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FVOCI that are recognised and accumulated in OCl are
notreclassified to profit orloss on de-recognition.
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18.

18.

20.

Impairment offinancial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the

following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank halance.

b)  Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensiveincome.

In case of other assets (listed as a} above}, the company determines ifthere has been a significant increase in creditrisk of

thefinancial asset since initial recognition. If the credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equal

to 12-month ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, an

amount equal tolifetime ECLIs measured andrecognized asloss allowance.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All finangial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributabletransaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequentmeasurement

Themeasurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at FairValue through ProfitorLoss (EVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liahilities designated upon initial recognition as atfair
value through profitorloss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition atfair value through profit or loss are designated atthe initial date of
recognition, and only ifthe criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in QCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to
profit or loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fairvalue
of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial L iabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair
value, net of transaction cost incured. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured atamortised
cost using the Effective interest rate (EIRymethod. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisationis included as finance costs inthe statement of profitand loss.
Derecognition

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of anew liahility. The difference in the respective carmying amounts is recognised in the
staternent of profitor loss.

Derivative financialinstruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commodity price risk and exposure on account of
fluctuation in interest rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair
value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured atfair value with changes
being recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive
and asfinanscial liabilities when the fairvalue is negative,

Any gains orlosses arising from changesin the fairvalue of derivatives are taken through profit and loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings areinitially recognised at fairvalue, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs} and the redemption amount is
recognised in Profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
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21.

23.

24,

25.

establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs ofthe loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facilities will be drawn down, Inthis case, the feeis deferred until the drawdown occurs.

The borrowings are removed from the Balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the camying amount of the financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid including any noncash asset transferred or liabiliies assumed, is
recognised in profitorloss as othergains/(losses}.

Borowings are classified as currentliabiliies unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
of at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a matenal provision of a long-term loan
arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on
the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the repoiting period and
before the approval of the financial statement for issue, notto demand payment as aconsequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs

Bomrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the bormrowing of funds.
Bomrowing cost also includes exchange differencestothe extent regarded as an adjustmenttothe borrowing costs.
Bormowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the perod from commencement of activities
relating to construction/development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such assetis added to the
costoftheassets.

Interest income eamed on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on qualifying asset is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Offsetting offinancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance sheetif there
is a curently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setile on a net basis, 1o
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insclvency or bankruptey of
the company, orthe counterparty.

Claims
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debits are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts and legal
aspects of the matterinvolved.

Provisions, Contingentliabilities and Capital Commitments

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and areliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are
adjusted to reflectthe current best estimate.

If the effect of the time value of money is matenial, provisions are discounted using a cuirent pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropnate, the risks specific 1o the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of timeis recognized as afinance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the
control of the Company, or present obligations where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required, orthe
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Information on contingent liakility is disclosedin the
Notes to the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable. However, when the
realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an
asset.

Government Grant
Govemment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached

conditions will be complied with.
A govemment grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incurred in previous period(s}.

Such agrantis recognised in profit orloss of the period inwhich itbecomes receivable.
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26.

27.

Government grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Govemment grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheetas deferred income and is recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis overthe expected useful life of the related assets orotherrelevant hasis.

Government grants by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as they
become receivable.

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, itis treated as a change in estimate and
the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods and services

Revenue is recognised upon fransfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects toreceive in exchange forthose goods.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in fime when (a} control is fransferred to the customer, which is
mainly upon delivery in case of domestic sales and onissuance of Shipping Billin case of export sales.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services
rendered, netofretuns, rebates and discounts to customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Goods & Services Tax
(GST).

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued on using on a time basis by the effective interest rate with reference to the principal
outstanding.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's nght to receive paymenthas lreen established.
Exportincentives

Export Incentives are recognised when certainty of receipt is established.

Insurance Claim

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the
amountrecoverable can be measured reliably and itis reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Otherncome

Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where the receipt of income is uncertain and in such case it is
accounted foron receipt basis.

Employee benefits
The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which are mainly
administered through/by duly constituted and approved Trusts and the Government.

Defined Contribution Scheme

In case of provident fund administered through Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, the Company has no obligation,
otherthan the contribution payable to the provident fund.

In case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable to such trusts as
an expense including any shortfall in interest between the amount of interest realised by the investment and the interest
payable to members attherate declared by the Government of India.

The Company's contributions paid / payable during the year to provident fund administered through Approved Trust,
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, Superannuation Fund and Employees’ State Insurance Corporation are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling them to
contributions.

Defined Benefit Scheme
Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefit is determined on an actuarial basis at the end of the year and charged to Statement
of Profit and Loss. The cost of providing these benefits is determined by independent actuary using the projected unit
creditmethod.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling, (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and retum on plan assets}, are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a cormresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through other comprehensive income in the penod
inwhich they occur. Risincludedin retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity andin the balance sheet.
Leave encashment: Leave balance as at the end of the calendaryearis encashed and balance leaves eamed thereafter
tothe extent not availed by the employees are provided in the accounts.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research of revenue nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that of capital nature is
capitalized as fixed assets.

Taxeson Income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and otherapplicable taxlaws.

DCeferred taxis recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheetand
the coresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are
generally recognized forall deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extentthat it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward
tax losses and allowances can be utilised, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the applicable tax rates,
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, and presented asnet.

Cument and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised in reserves are recognised in reserves and notin the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there i1s convincing evidence that the Company will
pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an defemred tax asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable
that future economic benefit associated with it will flow 1o the Company.

Dividend Distribution
Lividends paid (including income tax thereon}is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by
the Board of Directors, or nrespect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows. Cash and cash
equivalents (including bank balances) shown in statement of cash flows exclude item which are not available for general
use on the date of balance sheet.

Earnings pershare

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss} after tax (including the post-tax effect of extraordinary
itemns, if any} by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per share is
computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax (including the post-tax effect of extracrdinary items, if any) as adjusted for
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential
equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamings pershare and the
weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the sonversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed 1o be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit
per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the
beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for
the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding
shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity
shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as
appropnate.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in consistent manner with the intemnal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performanceocfthe Company.

Recentindian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such

notification which would have been applicable from April 1,2021.
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Notes farming part of the standelone financlal stataments far the year anded March 31, 2021

2.7} Proparty, plant and equipment {Rs. In lacs)
Electric
Land Factory Plant & Office Furniture &
Rt Freehold building | Equipment Imh:;" Computers Equipments |  Flxtures Tl Tt
Grass carrying valus®
As at March 31, 2019 229.11 1,426.51 4,728.20 1B0.73 3845 54.73 12R.03 436.14 7,226.40
Additions - 543.79 534,38 - - - 15,91 50,22 1,248.30
Deletlons - - - - - - - [5.25) {9.25)
As at March 31, 2020 229.11 2,070.40 5,262.58 180.73 38.85 58.73 147.94 477.11 8,465.45
Additlons - 210.46 1,032.13 24.85 8.96 6.28 13.28 141.69 1,437.65
Deletions - - {38.68} - - - - {40.65) (80.33)
As at March 31, 2021 229.11 2,280.86 5,255.03 205.58 47.81 65.01 16122 578.15 9,822.77
Accumuisted Depraciation®
As at March 31, 2015 - 155.50 1,162.68 B5.85 37,54 25,73 44,87 145.04 1,664.61
Additlons - 56.88 394.81 - - - 20.22 98.06 569.97
Delstions - - - - - - - [6.05) {6.05)
As at March 31, 2020 - 21238 1,557.49 89.85 37.94 28.73 65.09 237.05 2,228.53
Additions - 63.59 409.66 13.93 166 10.33 20.62 75.17 584 96
Deletions - - {18.66) - - - - {18.70) [37.36)
As at March 31, 2021 - 275.97 1,948.49 103.78 39.50 35.06 85.71 293.52 2,786.13
Nat Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2020 279.11 1,858.02 3,705.09 90.BS 091 30.00 #2.85 240.06 6,236.92
As at March 31, 2021 229,11 2,004.89 4,306.54 101,80 821 25,95 75.51 284.63 7,036.64
Other Intangthle assats
Computer Wabsita
Particulars Software |Development Trademark TOTAL
{R5. In laca) | (Rs. inlacs) | (Rs. Inlacs) | (Rs. In |acs)
Bruss carmying velus®
As at March 31, 20159 4,325 .41 141 6.07
Additions 1.45 - - 145
Deletlons - - - -
As at March 31, 2020 5.70 0.41 141 7.52
Additlons - - - -
Deletlons - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 5.70 0.41 141 7.52
Accumulasted Depreciation *
As at March 31, 2019 0.13 0.20 0.41 0.74
[AddItIons UIT UIN U.1F U3T
Delations - - - -
As at March 31, 2020 024 0.30 0.51 105
Additlons 0.14 0.10 0.10 034
Deletions - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 038 4.40 0.61 139
Nat Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2020 5.45 0.11 0.80 6547
As at March 31, 2021 5.32 o.01 0.B0 5.13
*At deemed enst as per IND-AS 101,

2.¢] () Asants given as security for borrowings
All the items of Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been given to lenders as security for various borrewing facilities.

{R) The management has carried out an exercise of identifying the asset that may have been impaired, during the year, in respect of each cash generating unit. On
the basls of review carrled out by the management, there was no Impalrment loss on fixed assets during the year.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

3 Financial Assets: Investments - Non Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of No. of
Shares Rs. in Lacs Shares Rs. In Lacs
Equity Shares Unquoted
A, INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
(i} SUPER TANNERY (U.K.) LIMITED
Ordinary Shares of GBP 1 each fully paid up 2,100 152 2,100 1.52
(I AARIFI TANNERS LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 12,05,366 164.24 12,05,366 164.24
{ili) SUPER CORPORATION LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 26,000 2.60 26,000 2.60
{iv) SECURE SAFETY LUMITED
Equlty Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up 8,458,300 94.93 9,49,300 94.93
(v} Super [talla SRL
Ordinary Shares of Euro 1/- each fully paid up 990 0.75 930 0.75
Total - A 264.04 264.04
B. OTHERS
{i) SUPERHOUSE OVERSEAS LIMITED
Equlty Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald 5,000 0.50 5,000 0.50
(M AL-BARR FINANCE HOUSE LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 20,000 2.00 20,000 2.00
{ili} SVIT PRONEXT MACHINES PRIVATE LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 8,500 1.33 8,500 1.27
(v} INDUSTRIAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES {INDIA) LIMITED
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald 8,000 0.77 8,000 0.98
(v} KANPUR UNNAO LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD.
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 75,000 7.50 75,000 7.50
{vi) LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT
Equlty Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
{(vil) JAIMAL TANNERY EFFLUENT TREATMENT ASSOCIATION
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 26,200 2.62 26,200 2.62
Total-B 15.72 15.87
C. INVESTMENT IN PARTNERSHIP/LLP FIRM
{i) BOVINIFRILLS LLP
15% in the capital of the LLP 0.75 0.75
Share of Reserves and Surplus of the LLP 15.73 12,37
Total -C 16.48 13.12
Equity Shares Quoted
D (i) Superhouse Ltd.
Equlty Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald 5,200 0.52 5,200 0.17
Total-D 0.52 0.17
Total {A+B+HC+D) 296.76 293.20
Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments 0.52 0.17
Market Value of Quoted Investments 640 3.18
Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments 279.76 279.91
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of Investments 0.03 -
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MNotes forming part of the Standalons Anandel Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2021

Is of P 1 In LLP Rs. In Lacs
Profit
Sharing Capltal as an Capltal as an
Name of Partnens Ratio 31.03,2021 31.03,2020
1 Mr. Shahbhaz Khan 55% 275 275
2 Super Tannery Limited 15% .75 0.75
3  Mr. Htlkharul Amin 15% a7s 075
4 Mr.Igbal Ahsan 15% .75 0.75
4 Finandal Assets: Loans - Non Curment
Partculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Loans and Advances
to Subsidiarlas
Secured Considered Good - -
Unsecured Considered Good 230,12 230.12
Unsecured which have significant Increase In credit risk - -
Unsecured credlt iImpalred - -
{refer Note no. 35 for detalls) 230.12 230.12
Total 230,12 230,12
5 QOther Non Current Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Unsecured Considerad Good
Securlty Deposits 34.99 34.62
Total 34.99 34.62
6 Immntoriss (At cost or net realimable value whichwwer is lower}
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Raw Materlals 1,710.20 171157
Work in Progress 3,201.3% 3,382.71
Finished Goods 1,410.08 2,158.70
{Include Stock at port March 2021: NIL {March 2020: 148.24 Lacs) }
Lhemical, Components and spare parts 1,421.46 1,2680.57
Wagste & Scrap 120,09 95.36
Total ?:!63.22 &Eﬂ-ﬂl
fa) Al the Inventories have been hypothecated as security for varlous warking faclitties from banks,
{b) During the year Rs.11.76 lacs was recognised as expense towards write-down of inventory.
7 Finandal Assets - Current: Trede Recehmbla
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Rs. In Lacs Rs.In Lacs

Rs. [n Lacs Rs.In Lacg

Secured Considered Good -
Unsecured Considered Good 5,619.45
Unsecured which have slgnificant Increase In credlt risk -
Unsecured credit Impalred 61.51
5,680.96
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance {ECL) 61.51
Total 5,619.45

{a) All the Trade Receivables have been hypothected as security for various working facilities from banks.

3,687.86
28.58
3,716.84
28.98
3,587.86
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Notes Torming part of tha Standalons FAnanclal Statemants for the year anded March 31, 2021

8§ Financial Asgets - Current: Cash and Cash Equivalents

Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Balances with banks
on current accounts 166.37 312.22
on EEFC account 4.92 0.93
17129 313.15
Cheques and Draft on Hand/Remittance in Transit - 18.82
Cash on hand 12.32 13.50
Total 183.61 345.47
9 Financlal Assets - Current: Bank Balances other then cash and cash aquivalents
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Margin money deposits {restricted, held as llen agalnst bank guarantees) 495,65 475,84
Earmarked balances with banks - unclaimed Dividend 501 12 .45
Total 504.66 488.30
10 Other Current Financlal Assets
Partleulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured Considered Good
Export Incentlve Recelvable 380.49 221.57
Other Clalms Recelvable 12.15 423
Balance with Govt/Revenue authority 390.51 77.62
Total 783.25 303.42
11 Other Current Assets
Partleulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured Consldered Good
Advances to Trade Creditors 847,14 634,51
Advance recoverable In cash ar kind ar for value to be recelved 158 66 14061
Prepaid expenses 10.44 11.07
Total 1,016.24 785,19
12 Equity Share Caplial
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of No. of
Shares Rs. In Lacs Shares Rs. In Lacs
Authorised
Equity Shares of Rupee 1/-each 11,00,00,000 1,100.00  11,00,00,000 1,100.00
Issuad
Equlty Shares of Rupee 1/-each 10,79,73,360 1,079.73  10,79,73,360 1,079.73
Subscribed and fully pald-up
Equlty Shares of Rupee 1/-each 10,79,73,360 1,079.73 10,79,73,360 1,079.73
Total 1,079.73 1,079.73
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Notas forming part of the Standalons Finandal Statamants for the year anded March 31, 2021

{A) Reconclliztion of the number of equity shares and share capltal
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of Shares Rs.in Lags No. of Shares Rs. in Lacs

Subscribed and fully pald-up equity shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10.79.73,360 1,079.73  10,79,73,360 1,079.73
Shares Issued during the year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 10,75,73,360 1,079.73  10,79,73,3680 1,079.73

{B) Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Re. 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share, The company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors [s sublect to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensulng Annual General Meeting.

In the event of lquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recelve remaining assets of the company, after
distributlon of all preferential amounts. The distifbution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{C} Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the company

Shareholder's Name As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of Shares % No. of Sharss %
fa)  Mr. Vegarul Amin 1,78,83,900 16.56% 1,78,83,900 16.56%
{b}  Mr. Ighal Ahsan 91,42,502 8.47% 91,42,502 8.47%
{t}  Mr. Htikharul Amin 90,680,432 2.41% S0,80,432 2.41%
2020-21 2019-20
{No. of Shares) {No. of Shares}
{D} Equity Shares allotted as fully pald pursuant to contract(s) NIL NIL
{E) Equity Shares allotted as fully pald up Bonus Shares during NIL NIL
{F) Equity shares buy-back in Immediately preceding five years NIL NIL
{G) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/ar NIL NIL

{H) The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended a final dividend of Re. 0.05 per equity share (5%)] face value of Re.1 each for the
year ended March 31, 2021, subject to the approval of Shareholders.

13 Other aquity

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. [n Lacs Rs. In Lacs

{a) Capltal Reserve 17.67 17.67
{b} Securities Premium 270.18B 270.18
{c)} General Reserve 4563.21 4,563.21
{d} Retained Earnings 2,718.76 2,242.719
Total 7,565.82 7,093.85

I I

{A) Capital Resarve

It represent the galn of capltal nature which malnly Include the excess of value of net assets acquired over conslderation pald by the
company for business combination in earlier years.

{B} Securities Premlum
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares and is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

{C} Ganeral Reserve
Mandatory transfer to general reserve |s not required under the Companles Act, 2013,

{D} Retalnved Eamnings

Retalned eamings are the profits that the Company has earned tlll date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends paid or other
distributlons out of reserves to shareholders.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Finanelsl Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

14 FAnancial Liablllties - Non-current: Borrcwings

Particulars Az at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs.In Lacs Rs. In Lars
Serured
Rupee loans
Term laans from banks - INR 181.77 287.04
Vehide Term loans from banks - INR 97.96 49.44
Total .73 336.48

Repayment terms:

{a}) Secured rupee term loans from banks: Structured quarterly Instalments

{b} The dassification of loans between current liabilities and non -current liabilities continues based on repayment schedule under
respective agreements as no loans have been reczslled due to non compliance of conditions under any of the loan agreements.
{t} Interest rates: Loans availed from banks in INR carry interest rate ranging from 10.05% ta 11.65%% (March 31, 2020; 8.85% to 10.45%)

for term loans,

{d] Scheduled repayments: Contractual repayments in case of Ioans from banks {Including Current maturitfes disclosed under other

Current financlal Nabilities:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Upto three years 339.63 375.98
Between three to five years B4.81 87.05
Owaer five years - -

Refer note 35(b) {11} & (Il) on Interest rata risk and Liquidity Risk respectively.

Security detalls:-
Term Loan other than Yehide Loans

Aforesald Term Loans are secured by hypothecation/mortgage of company's moveable and Im-moveable propertias, Further secured
by the personal guarantee of promoter Directors of the company and Aarifl tanners Ltd. which Is the subsldlary of the company

¥ehicle Loans
Secured by hypothecstion of vehide financed,

15 Dafarred tax llabllitias {(Met)

{a)

{b}

Particulars As gt March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Tox effect of items constituting deferred tax Hobility
Borrowlngs measured at amortized cost
On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets 579.89 561.65
579.89 B61.65
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax ossets
Expenses allowable on payment basls and other ltems 109.21 123.63
Total Tax effect of temns constiuting deferred tax assets 109.21 133.63
Net Deferred Tax Liabllity 470.68 528.02
15 Other Non-current Labllitdes
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lags Rs. In Lacs
Deferred Revenue
Govt Grant under IDLS 175.36 215.63
EPCE Ohbilgations 208.63 150.75
Total 384.99 366.38

Government Grant under IDLS, the deferred grant Income Is recognized In Statement of Profit and Losg on a systematic basls over the
usaful life of asget on which such grant Is recelved subject ta compliance of other tarms & conditions of the schame.

Under EPCG schame, the Company Is committed ta export prescribed times of the duty saved an Import of capital goods over a
spectiled periad of ime apart from malntaining average export growth. In case such commitments are not met, the Company would
be required to pay the duty saved along with Interest to the regulatory authorties. The defarrad grant Income Is recognized In
Statement of Prafit and Loss on a systematic basls over the periads In which the related performance abligations are fulfilled.
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Notes forming part of the Standalona Finandal Stetemants for the year ended March 31, 2021

17 Financial Liabilities - Current: Short term Bormowings
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lees Rs. In Lecs

Secured
Working Capital Loan from banks
Rupee Laans
{l) CashCredit 338.53 396.29
{Il Packing Credit 5,144.67 5,575.10
{iii] Advance agaimst bills sent for collection 2,012.19 77243
7,495.39 6,743.82
Other Short term Borrowings
Forelgn Currency loan
{} Stand by line of Cred{SBLC) 391.43 -
Total 7,886.82 5,743.82
Amount of default as on the Balance 5heet date:
{a] Repayment of loan NIL NIL
(b} Interest on Loan NIL NIL
{A) Seeurity

Worldng Capital Loans are primarlly secured by hypothecation of present and future Current Asgets and Actionable Claims {viz.
Inventories, trade recetvable / book debts, cutstanding monles, recetvable clalms, bills and materlals In transit).

These are further collaterally secured by extenslon of charge over moveable and Immowveable properties of the company.
Further secured by personal guarantee of promater director(s) of the company and Aarifi tanners Itd. which is the subsidiary of the
company.

{B) Stand by Line of Credit(SBLC) are primarlly secured by hypothecatlon of Plant and machinery and raw materlal and are further
secured by personal guarantee of promoter director(s) of the company and Aarifi tanners itd. which is the subsidiary of the
company.

{C} Rate of Interest
Working capital credit facilities carry interest rates ranging from 7.20% to 10.40%.

18 Financial Uabilitles - Currant: Trade Payubla

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

(a) Total Outstanding Dues to micro and small enterprises (refer note below) 5139 683.73
[b} Total Outstanding Due to partles other than micro and small enterprises 4,212.75 3,387.66
Total 4,254.14 3,451.39

Note! The company has requested confirmation from Suppliers regarding thelr reglstratfon {filling of Memorandum) under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [the MSMED Act), According to the Information avallable with the company, the following
disclosures has been mada In respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
{a) Princlpal amount and Interest due thereon remalning unpald to any suppller at the end of
the year
Princlpal Amount 51.39 63.73
Intarest due on above 126 190
(b} Amount of Interest pald by the eompany In terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with
the amount of the payment made to the suppller beyond the appolmted day during the year NIL NIL

[c) Amount of Interest due and payable for the perlod of delay In making payment (which have

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the imerest NIL NIL
specified under the MSMED Act
[d} the amount of Interest accrued and remalning unpald at the end of the year NIL NIL

[e] the amount of further Interest remalning due and payable even in the succeeding years, untll
such date when the Interest dues ahove are actually pald to the small enterprisa, for the

NIL NIL
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expandlture under section 23 of the MSMED Act
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19 Finandal Uabliities - Current: Othar Financlal Uabliitias

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

(a) Current maturitles of long term borrowings 124.71 126.55
(b} Book overdraft from hanks BAS 144
{c} Unclaimed Dividend * 9.01 12.46
{d) Other Liabllitles B56.73 714.03
Total 998.94 854.48

* Represents dividend amounts either not claimed or kept in abeyance in accordance with Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013

20 Other Current Llablittias

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs, in Lacs Rs. In Lacs
{a] Advance from customers 323.45 38177
(b} Advance agalnst sale of fixed assets 293.10 293.10
) MTM valuation on forward cover 36.01 41.86
Total 652.56 716.73
21 Current Liabllies: Provislons
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Provision for Gratuity 183.17 172.66
Provision for taxation 18.23 -
Total 201.40 172.66
22 Revemnue from operations
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs

(a) Sales/Income from operations
{i) Sales (Export)
{) Exchange Fluctuation on Sales {Export)
(lil) Sales {Indlgenous}
{refer Note {c] below for break-up}
{b} Other operating revenue
Export Incentives {refer Note (d] below for break-up}

Revenue from operatlons {gross)

{c) Breakup of Sales
Finlshed Leather {Including Spilt)
Leather Shoe and components
Total

15,251.40
156.91
2,899.60
18,307.91

77159
19,085.50

10,458.35
7,849.56
18,307.91

13,447.24
37047

3,480.45

17,298.16

935,69
18,234.85

9,396.31
7,901.85
17,298.16
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{d} Details of other operating revenue
Export Incentives

Duty Draw Back 568.69 372.73
Other export Incentlves/licences 208.90 563.96
Total 777.59 936.69
23 Other Income
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
{a) Interest income
- from Fixed Deposit with Banks 797 23,23
{b} Proflt on Sale of Property Plant & Equipments 575 -
{c) Miscellaneous Income 25.59 27.25
{d} Deferred revenue on EPCG & IDLS Subsidy 54.13 43.60
{e) Liabilities/provisions no longer required 0.83 -
{fi Share of profit from the LLP .36 4.04
{g) Accration In Invastment 0.19 0.08
Total 117.22 98.20
24 Cost of materlal consumead
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Raw Material consumed
(a) Raw Hide for sole 143.01 361.60
(b} Raw Hide for chrome 2,996.47 3,944.90
{c) Wet Blue Leather Chrome 206.94 190.47
(d) Upper for safety shoes 04748 1,126.80
{e} Finlsh laather for shoe upper and shoes 1,578.53 1,441.31
{f) Others 104.26 134.49
Raw Material consumed 5,976.69 7.189.57
Chemicals consumed 3,054,983 3,244.19
Stores & Spares consumed 1,648.73 1,504.96
Total 10,680.40 11,548.72
25 Purchase of stock In trade
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
{a) Finished Leather {Including Split) 634.10 674.77
{b} Shoe Upper 1,014.63 709.05
Total 1,648.73 1,383.82
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26 Increase/decrease in Inventories

Particulars 2020-21 2018-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Inventories at the commencement of the year
Finished Goods 2,158.70 1,947.18
Work in process 3,382.71 1,963.95
Waste & Scrap 95.36 325.56
TOTAL'A’ 5,636.77 4,236.69
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods 1,410.08 2,158.70
Work In process 3,201.39 3,382.71
Waste & Scrap 120.09 95.36
TOTAL'® 4,731.56 5,636.77
Decrease/[Increase) in Stocks [A-B) 905.21 1,400.08
27 Employee beneflt expense
Particulars 2020-21 2015-20
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Salary and Bonus 605.91 638.20
Directars Remuneratlon 63.21 5815
Contribution to Provident and ather funds 62.77 67.05
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 45.53 4087
Workmen and Staff Welfare expenses 33.80 30.03
Total 811.22 B34.30
28 Finance cost
Particulars 2020-21 2018-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Interest on
- Term Loan 2.70 3.92
- Others 408.55 545.87
412.25 549.79
Bank Charges 106.20 104.06
Forelgn Bank Charges 14.70 16.48
Total 533.15 670.33
29. Depreciation and Amortisation Expensas
Partlculars 2020-21 2015-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Depreciation/Amortisation on Tangible Assets 594.96 569.97
Amortisation of Intangible assets 0.34 0.31
Total 595.30 570.28
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30 Other expenses

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Manufacturing Expenses
Job Work Charges 982.10 1,505.08
Power and Fuel 525.73 529,92
Pollution Control Expenses 146.34 1593
Repalrs and Malntenance
- Building 28.33 25.45
- Machinery 122.75 93.44
1,805.25 2,169.82
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Freight, Handling and Cther Sales and Distribution Expenses 818.00 753.55
Commission on Sale 157.55 234.71
Advertisament and Publicity 512 4,78
Bad Debts - Provislon/write off 68.39 90.75
Expected credit loss 32.53 11.76
1,081.59 1,095.55
Establishment Expanses
Rent 11.66 16.17
Rates and Taxes 38.80 68.35
Insurance 26.20 24.34
E.C.G.C Premium 90.34 73.60
Communicatlon cost 19.02 32.41
Travelling and Conveyance 66.76 171.04
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 47.03 56.58
Printing and Statlonery 9.88 13.73
Legal and Professional Charges 42.44 32.99
Auditor's Remuneration {refer Note (a) below} 3.20 330
Miscellaneous Expenses 121.63 145.68
Research & Development Expenses 1.79 2.68
C5R Expenditure 18.74 2113
Subscription and Donation 744 11.77
Loss on Sale of Property Plant & Equipments 13.73 2.50
Exchange Fluctuation 30.34 19.55
549.00 695.82
Total 3,435.84 3,961.19
{a) Auditor's remuneration comprises:
As auditor 3.20 3.30
Cartification - -
Total 3.20 3.30
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Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
31. Eamning per shara [EPS)
{a) Profit for the year [Rs. In Lacs) 461.16 449,23
{b) Weighted average number of equlty shares for the purpose of 10,79,73,360 10,79,73,360
of calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS
{c) Nominal value of equity shares {Rupees) 1.00 1.00
{d) EPS- Basic and diluted (Rupees per share) 043 042
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
32. cCapital and other commitments
.  Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capltal
account {net of advances) 35.72 193.04
Il.  Other Commitments NIL NIL
33. Contingent liabilitles
{i} Contingent Liabilities in respect of:
{a) Letter of Credit opened and outstanding 972.47 84258
[b} Clalms agalnst the company not acknowledged as debt NIL NIL

3. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits™:
[a) Defined Contribution Plan

The employees of the Company are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plans namely Provident fund and Penslon and
Employee State Insurance (ESl} operated by the Government of India. The Company is required to contribute a specified percentage

of payroll costs to the retirement benefit and ES| schemes.

The only cbligation of the company with respect to such retirement and other benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.
The Company has recognized the followlng amounts In the Income Statement during the year under 'Contribution to staff provident

and other funds' {refer note 27)

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 |
Employer's contribution to PF and FPF 47.97 50.62
Employer's contribution to ESIC 14.80 16.43
Total 62.77 67.05 |
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{b) Defined Benefit Plan
The employees Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is a defined benefit plan, is managed by the trust maintzined with LIC. The present valua
of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service
as giving rise to additional untt of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to bulld up the final obligation.
Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Gratuity {Funded) Gratuity (Funded)
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
[A) Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
Obligations as at beginning of the year 294.26 229.02
Currant service cost 34.13 30.02
Interast cost 19.42 17.17
Curtailment cost/{credit) - -
Settlement cost/{credIt) - -
Current service contribution- employee - -
Past Servica Cost = =
Plan amendment - -
Acquisitions - -
Remeasurement {or Actuarial {galn)/Loss} arising from - -
- change in demographic assumption - 0.03
- change in financlal assumption {4.48) 18.28
= experlence varance {15.58) 38.13
- others - -
Benefits paid {21.83) {38.39)
Presant value of defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 305.92 294,26
(B} Movemnents in the fair value of plan assets
Falr value of plan assets at beginning of the year 121.60 117.05
Investment income 8.03 B.78
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognisad in net Interest expense {0.04) 161
Actual contributions by the employer 15.00 32.55
Actuarlal galn/loss on plan assets - -
Fund transferrad - -
Employee contribution - -
Beneflts pald {21.83) {38.39)
Falr value of plan assets as at and of the year 122.76 121.60
{C} Amount recognized in the balance sheet
Present value of defined beneflt obligation as at end of the year 305.92 29426
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 122.76 121.60
Funded status {Surplus/{deficit}} {183.16) {172.66)
Effect of balance sheet asset limit - -
Unrecoghised past service cost - -
Net asset/{liability) recognised in balance sheet {183.16) {172.66)
Net asset/{llabllity] recognised In balance sheet at beginning of the year (172.66) {111.98)
Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 4553 38.42
Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {20.02) 54.83
Actual contributlons by the employer 15.00 32.55
Net acquisition/business combination - -
Net asset/{liability) recognised in balance sheet at end of the year (183.17) {172.66)
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L)

3]

(F)

]

{H)

n

i)
1y

v}
v)

vi}

vin)

Amourts recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 34.13 30.02
Interest cost 11.40 10.85
Lossf{galn) on settlement - -
Past service cost - -
Total 45.53 - 40.87

Amounts recognised In other comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gain) / loss due to

- change In demographlc assumptlan - 003
- change In financial assumption {4.48) 18.28
- experlence varlance {15.58) 3813
- others - -
Returmn on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net Interest expense 0.04 {1.561)
Remeasurement (or actuartal {gain)/loss) arising due to asset celling
Total {20.02) 54.83
Category of plan assets
Funds managed by Insurer 100.00% 100.00%
Sensitivity analysls
DBO on base assumptions 305.92 294.26
A Discount Rate
1. Effect due to 1.00% increase in discount rate -6.64% 285.62 -6.85% 27412
1. Effect due to 1.00% decvease In discount rate 7.86% 32997 8.11% 31812
B. Salary Escalation Rate
1. Effect due to 1.00% Increase In salary escalation rate 7.08% 327159 7.59% 316.59
2. Effect due to 1.00% decrease in salary escalation rate -6.16% 287.07 -6.61% 27483
€. Withdrawal Rate
1. Effect due to 50% Increass in withdrawal rate 0.51% 304.36 -0.99% 291.36
2, Effect due to 50% decrease in withdrawal rate 0.56% 307.64 1.11% 297.53
D. Mortallty Rate
1. Effect due to 10% increase in mortality rate -0.06% 305.73 0.13% 293.88
2. Effect due to 10% decrease In mortallty rate 0.07% 306.14 0.13% 294.66

Risk Exposure - Asset Volatflity
The plan llabllitles are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond ylelds; if plan assets underperfarm this yleld, this
will create a deficit. Most of the plan asset Investments Is In fixed income securities with high grades and In government securities.

These are subject to Interest rate risk and the fund manages Interest rate risk derhvatives to minimize risk to an acceptable level. A
portion of the funds are Invested in eguity securitles and In alternative investments % which have low correlation with equity
securitles.

The equity securitles are expacted to earn a return in of the discount rate and contribute to the plan deficit.

Actuarlal assumptlans
Artuarial valuation as at the year-end was done in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plans based on the following assumptions:

General assumptlons

- Discount rate (per annum) 6.80% 6.60%
- Withdrawal rate 2.00% 2.00%
- Rate of Increase In compensation 8,50% B.50%

Mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the India Assured Lives Mortality {2012-14) Ultimate.
Leave policy: Leave balance as at the valuation date and each subsequent year following the valuation date to the extant not availed
by the employee accumulated up to 31st December 2020 Is avallahle for encashment .

The discourt rate should be based upon the market ylelds aveilable on Government bonds at the accounting date with 8 term that
matches that of the llabllides.

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the year, for retums over entire |ife of
the related obligation.

The assumption of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion, supply
and demand and other relevant factors.

Liability on account of long tenm absences has been actuarlally valued as per Projected Unit Credit Method.

viii) Short term compensated absences have been provided on actual basis.
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)]

Defined beneftt llabllity and employer contributions:
1) Expected contributlons to post-employment beneftt plans In next year
i} The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 12 years. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity

NIL NIL

Rs. in Lacs
Period 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
1 Year 100.32 90.13
210 5Years 68.09 65.92
6to 10 Years 101.11 89.60
More Than 10 Years 340.22 325.03
Total 609.74 580.67

35. Disclosure as per clause 34{3) and 53{f} of the SEBI (LIsting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations 2015 and Section 186 {4}

of the Companlas Act, 2013:
{a) Loans to subsidiaries: {Rs. In Lacs)
Relationship Amount cutstanding s on Maximum amount outstanding at any time
Name of the company March 31 during the year
2021 2020| 2021 2020
Super Tannery {U.K} Ltd Subsidiary 130.04 130.04 130.04 130.04
Secure safety [imited Subsldlary 12.49 12.49 12.49 12.49
Super italla SRL Subsldlary 87.59 87.59 87.59 87.59

b}

&)

d)

The aforesaid advances has been given to meet the working capltal requirements and the same has been utilised for the same

puUrposes,
Investmants:

Guarantee given

refer Note No. 3 {A)

The company has not given any corporate guarantee, for securing the credit facility.

Security provided:

The company has not provided any cther security toffor any of its subsidiaries and associates.
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36. Expenditure on Corporate Sodial Responsibility (CSR)
The amount recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on CSR related activitles is Rs. 18.74 Lacs {previous year: Rs. 21.23
Lacs} detalled as under;

Rs. In Lacs
|Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Paid Yet to be pald Total Paid Yet to be pald Total
CSR Expenditure 18.74 - 18.74 21.23 - 21.23
Total 18.74 - 18.74 21.23 - 21.23
37. Expenditure on Research and Development
Rs. In Lacs
|Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Revenue Expenditure 1.79 2.68
Total 1.79 2.6B

38. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 "Leases™;

(a)

(b)

Where the company is Lessor

The company has not entered Into any Lease amrangements,

Where the company is Lessee

The company has not entered Into any Lease amangements,

39. Finandal Instruments

U]

Capltal Management

The Company’s capital management Is Intended to create value for shareholders by facllitating the meeting of long-term and short-

term goals of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basls of annual operating plans and long-term product and other
strategic Investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity and other long-term/shart-term borrowings. The
Company's policy is aimed at combination of short-term and long-term borrowings.
The Company monltors the capital structure on the basis of total debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio

of the Company.

The capltal structure of the company consists of debt, which [ncludes the borrowings Including temporary overdrawn balance , cash
and cash equivalents including short term bank deposits, equity comprising issued capital, reserves and non-controlling interests. The

gearing ratlo for the year is as under:

{Rs. In Lacs)
|Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Debt 8,291.26 7,206.85
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 183.61 345.47
Net debt (A} 8,107.65 6,861.38
Total equity (B) 8,649.55 8,173.58
Debt Equity Ratio (A/B) 0.94 0.84
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(m

[{)]

Categorles of financlal Instruments

Caleulatlon of Fair Values

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments:

a) The falr values of Investment In quoted Investment In equlty shares Is based on the current bid price of respective Investment as at
the Balance Sheet date.

b} The fair value of the long-term borrowings carrying floating-rate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will
not be significantly different from their carrying amounts as there is no significant change in the under-lying credit risk of the
Company (since the date of inception of the loans).

c) The fair value of loans from banks and other financial indebtedness as well as other nen current financial liabilities is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt or similar terms and remaining maturities.

d) Cash and cash equlvalents, trade recelvables, other financlal assets, trade payables, and other flnancial liabllities have falr values
that approximate 1o thelr carrying amounts due to thelr short-term nature.

{Rs. In Lacs)
|Particulars Az at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Carrying value Fair value Camrying valua Falr value

Financlal Assets

Financlal assets measured at falr value

Investmeants measured at

I. Falr value through other comprehensive Incame

11, Fair value through profit and loss 0.52 0.17
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Trade Receivables 5,619.45 3,687.86

Cash and cash equivalents 133.61 345.47

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 504.66 488.30

Other financial assets 783.25 303.42

Total 7,090.97 0.52 4,825.05 0.17
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Bomrowings 8,291.26 7,206.85

Trade payables 4,212.75 3,387.66

Other financlal Ifabllides 998.94 854.48

Total 13,502.95 5 11,448.99 Z
Incame, expenses, galns or [osses on financlal Instruments Rs. In Lacs
|Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Allowances for doubtful receivables {32.53} {11.76)
Financial assets measured at fair value through Profit and Loss {D.22} 0.08
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income - -

Falr valug measurements recognized In the balance sheet:

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is ocbservable.

-Level 1 fair value measurements are those derlved from quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabllities.

=Level 2 falr value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or [labliity, elther directly {l.e. as prices) or Indirectly {l.e. derlved from prices).

-Level 3 falr value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liabllity that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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{iii) Financial risk management chjectives:
The Company’s princlpal financlal llabliites comprise of loan from banks and financlal Institutions, and trade payables. The maln
purpose of these financlal liabllitles Is to ralse finance for tha Company’s operations. The Company has varlous financlal assets such as
trade receivables, cash and short term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.
The maln risks arising from Company’s financlal Instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, market risk, Interest rate risk and
liquidity risk. The Board of Directors review and agree policles for managing each of these risks.

{a) Credlt risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other
bank balances. The maximum exposure to credlt rsk In case of all the financlal Instruments covered below Is restricted to thelr
respective carrylng amount.

Trade and Other recelvables

Customer credit is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policies, procedures and control relating to
customer credht sk management. Trade recelvables are non-Interest bearing and are generally on 90 days credit term. Credit limits
are established for all customers based on Intemnal rating erterla. Outstanding customer recelvables are regularly monitored.

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade receivables based on historical trend, Industry practices and the business
environment In which the entity operates. Loss rates are based on actual eredit loss experlence and past trends.

Expected credit loss assessment for customers:
The company Is making provislons on trade recelvables based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The reconclllatlon of ECL Is as

follows:
{Rs. In Lacs)
|Particulars 2020-21 2018-20
Impalrment loss as per ECL recognised/{reversed) 32.53 11.76
Additlonal Pravision/write off 62.39 90.75
Amount debited to Profit and Loss 100.92 102.51

Other financlal assets

The Company malntalns exposure In cash and cash aquivalents, tarm deposits with banks and derlvative eontracts.

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 183.51 Lacs at March 31, 2021 {March 31, 2020; Rs. 194.93 Lacs). Cash and cash
equivalents are held with reputable and credlt-worthy banks.

Individual risk limits are set for each counter-party based on financlal position, credit rating and past experlence. Credlt [imits and
concentration of exgosuras are actlvely monltored by the Management of tha Company.

Other than trade and ather recelvables, the Company has no other financlal assets that are past due but not Impalred

{b) Market risk:
Market Rlsk Is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financlal Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market
prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

{1) Forelgn currency risk

The Company is exposed to currancy risk on account of its operating and financing activitles. The funetlonal currency of the Company
is Indian Rupee. Company's exposure is mainly denominated in USD, GBP and Euro. The exchange rates have changed substantially in
recent periods and may continue to fluctuate substantlally In the future. The Company has put In place a Financial Risk Management
Pollcy to Identlfy the most effectlve and efflclent ways of managing the currency risks. The Company uses derlvative |nstruments
{mainly forgign exchange forward contracts) to mitlgate tha risk of changes in forelgn currency exchange rate.

The Company do not use derivative financlal instrumenits for trading or speculative purposes.

{1} Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk Is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity Tor changes In varlable Interest rates. Any movement In the reference
rates could have an impact on the Company's cash flows as well as costs, The Company also uses a mix of Interest rate sensltive
financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations like short-term loans.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Interest rate sensitivity analysis:

As at March 31, 2021 interest bearing flnanclal llabllity {secured loan from banks) stood at Rs. 8291.26 Lacs, was subject to variable
Interest rates. Increase/decrease of 50 basls points In Interest rates at the balance sheet date would result In decrease/Increase In
praofit before tax of Rs. 41.46 Lacs.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basis points interest rate. This calculation also assumes that the change
occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end
balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, In particular forelgn currency rates, remain constant.

Fair value of financial Instruments:

All financlal assets are Inltlally recognized at fair value of consideration paid. Subsequently, financial assets are carried at falr value or
amortized cust less impairment. Where non = derivative financial assets are carried at fair value, gains and losses on re- measurement
are recognized directly in eguity unless the financial assets have been designated as being held at fair value through profit or loss, in
which case the gains and losses are recognized directly in the standalone statement of profit and loss. Financial assets are designated
as belng held at falr value through proflt or loss when It Is necessary to reduce measurement Inconsistency for related assets and
llabllitles. All financlal Nabllitles other than dertvatives are Inltlally recognized at falr value of conslderation recelved net of transacton
costs as appropriate {Inktial cost} and subsequently carrled at amortized cost.

{111} Liquidtty risk:

The Company follows a Conservative policy of ensuring sufficient liquidity at all times through a strategy of profitable growth,
efficient liquidity at all times through a strategy of profitable growth, efficient working capital management as well as prudent capital
expenditure. The Company has a overdraft facllity with banks to support any temporary funding requirements.

The Company belleves that current cash and cash equivalents, tled up borrowing lines and cash flow that Is generated from
operations Is sufficient to meet requirements. Accordingly, llquidity risk 1s perceived to be low.

Liqulidity table:
Liquidity tables drawn up based on the cash flows of financial llabllitles based on the earliest date on which the Company can be
required to pay is disclosed at Note no. 49.

{IV) Other price risk:

v

The Company Is not exposed to any slgniflcant equity price risks arlsing from equity Investments, as on 31st March 2021. Equity
investments are held for strategic rather than trading purposes. The Company does not actively trade these investments.

Equlty price senshtivity analysis:
There is no expasure to equity price risks as at the reporting date or as at the previous reporting date.

40. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 27 "Separata Finandal Statements”
Investments In followling subsldlarles and assoclates Is accounted at cost:

|s. Name of Subsldlary company / As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. Assodiate Company Effectiva Effective Effectiva Effactive
Principal Place O1
Business proporton of proportionof | proportion of propartion of
ocwnership voting power cwnership voting power
interest {%) Interest (%) interest {3} Interest (%)
{A} Wholly Owned Subsldlarles (Forelgn)
. SuperTannery (U.K. Ltd. UK 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
il. Super Halia SRL Haly 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Subsidiaries (India)

Aarifl Tanners Limited India 82.52% 82.52% 82.52% 82.52%
Super Corporation Limited Indla 52.00% 52.00% 52.00% 52.00%
Secure Safety Limited Indla 63.29% 63.29% 63.29% 63.29%
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

41, There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund as at March 31, 2021.

42. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingant Liabilitles and Contingant assats":
The company has recognised contingent liabillties as disclosed In Note 33 above and as such no provislon Is required to be made. No
provislon was outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the year.

43, Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 105 “Non-currant assets held for sale and discontinued operations®:
There are no such asset hald for sale and discontinued aperations on 31 March 2021,

44. Tax Expenses

(a) Amounts recognized in profit and loss (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Current tax expense
Current year 131.00 100.00
Changes in estimates relating to prior years 3.69 -
134.69 100.00
Deferred tax expense (2.98} {182.99)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Recognition of praviously unrecognized tax losses - -
(2.98) {182.59)
Tax expense recognized In the Income statement 131.71 | (82.99)
{b) Amounts recognized In other comprehenslve income (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 2020-21 2018-20
htems that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
= Remeasurements of the defined beneflt plans 20.02 {54.483)
Tax Expense/{Benefit) {5.21) 14.26
Net of Tax 14.81 {40.57)
{c} (i) Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the Balance Sheet NIL

{l) Unrecognised deductible temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset Is recognised In Balance Sheet  NIL

{d] Components of deferred tax {assets) and liabilities recognised in Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit or Loss:

Particulars Balance Sheet as at Statement of Proflt & Loss
31.03.21 31.03.20 2020-21 2019-20
Difference betwean book balance and tax balance of fixed assets 579.89 661.65 (81.76) {206.09)
Others {109.21) {133.63) 24.42 885
Net Deferred Tax (asset) liabllity 470.68 528.02
Deferred Tax expense/{Income) 57.34 {57.34) (197.24)
- Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss {62.55} (182.99)
- Recognised In Other Comprehensive Income 5.21 {14.26)
(e} Reconciliation of deferred Tax {Asset) Liability
Partculars 2020-21 2019-20
Opening Balances 523.02 725.26
Tax (income)/expense during the period recognised in:
- Statement of Profit and Loss In Profit or Loss section (62.55}) {182.99)
- Staternent of Profit and Loss under OCI section 521 {14.25)
Closing Balances 470.68 528.02

45, Financial Statements of the subsldiary companies and related detalled information will be made available to the Investors, of the company
and subsldlary companles, sesking such Information. The financlal statements of the subsidlary companles are also kept at Reglsterad

Office of the company and that of subsidiary companies for inspection of investors of the company and subsidiary companies.

83



SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Standolons Finencial Statemants for tha yasr andad Manch 31, 2021

46 Dis

{A) Name of Aelated Partlas and neturs of relationship
[

party =

I pursent to ind AS 24 "Relsted Party Disclosures™

Reluted parties over which conirol exdst [Subsidiaries)

a) Super Tannery (U.K.) Ltd
bj Super [taka SRL
¢] Aartfi Tanners Ltd

IL Jolnt Vertures

H. Koy M R
a) M, Ifdkharul Amin —-Managing Director

| {KMP) & Rasbarti

b)] Mr. Igbal Ahsan — Director

and Non Ing

Director

c] Mr. Vegarul Amin- Non B

d) Mr. Imran Skddiqui — Whola tima Directar
8] Mr. Arshad Khan —Whale time Director
] Mr. Mohd Irmran — Whiole time Director
£ Mr. R. K. Awasthl - Company Secretary

d Super Corparation LUmited

) Sacurs Safuty Lid.

NIL

ldozsaz

¢ Others: Emerprise over which KMP or relatives of KMP are able to exerdse significant Influence:
£] Industrial Infrastructune Sendess (1) Ltd

®

®)

a) Amin Tanrary Lid

Mr.Y 5 Kailyar - Non Executive Independent Director
Mr. Mubashirul Amin {5on of Mr. Iqbal Ahsan)
Mr. Tanveerul Amin {San of Mr. Hikharul Amin)
Mr. Khalld Sayasd {Erathar of Mr. Imman Slddiqul}
Mr. Umairul Amin {Son of Mr. Ighal Ahsan)

Mir. Ahmad Faraz Amin {5on of Mr. Hifkhand Amin}

b) + dustrial Palktinn Comtrod Company d] Bovinl Frills LLP
(I} Disch of related party ions during the year {In ordinary course of | at arm length price} Y.
Transactiors Subskilarfes Associates Other related parties KMP and Relatives
As at f for the year ended As at / far the year ended As at [ for the year ended As ot / for the year ended
310321 310320 Jlo3n 310320 310821 3103.20 31031 31.04.20
Purchases of materials / finished goods - - - - 382,19 0.05 - -
Sale of matertals f finished goods 1,178.11 929,05 - - 17593 5741 - -
Services {Job Work) - - - - 630 200 - -
Donation E 4 = - 1874 2133 - -
Rent recehed - - - - 72 72 - -
Remuneration/sitting fee - - - - - - 100.52 90,95
Recelvables (Net) 43736 34370 - - 2657 50.54 - -
Payabhes {Trade payabla & other Tabifthes) 1542 1592 - - 11209 432 14.12 10.80
Laeng and Advarces n0az 2342 - - 189 Q.69 - -
Invesiments refer Note No. 3
{Il} Datall of ralated party transactions during the vear (In ordinery course of busk at arm length price)
Name of related party & Transactions Subskilaries Associates Other related parties KMP and Relstives
#s 3t / for the year ended As at f for the year ended As at / for the year ended As at / for the year ended
31.0321 31.03.20 310311 31.0320 31.03.21 3108.20 31034 31.03.20
Purchasas of matarals / finlshed goods
Amin Tannery Lid, - - - - 382,19 - - -
Bowvind Frills LLP & @ @ P & 0.05 & 3
- - - - 382.19 0.05 - -
Sala of materlak / finlshed goads
Amin Tarmaery Lid, - - - - 4566 108,73 - -
Super [talia SRL 117811 929,05 - - - - - -
Bowvind Frills LLP - - - - 7937 145,68 w -
1,17811 925,08 - - 13543 5741 - -
Sarvices Uk Worl)
Amin Tannery Lid - - - - 6.30 096 - -
Bowinl Frills LLP - - - - - 1.04 - -
— - - - 630 2.00 — -
Ramunuerationfsitting fee
Mr. Ifdkharul Amin - - - - - - 2400 2100
Mr. Igbal Ahsan - - - - - - M2 nn
Mr. Imran Skidique - - - - - - 706 7ii
Mr. Arghad Khan - - - - - - 394 441
Mr. Mohd Imran - - - - - - 38 441
Mr. Mubashirul Amin - - - - - - 1251 13.86
Mr. Ahmad Faraz Amin - - - - - - 35 3.40
Mr. Tarnmarul Amin - - - - - - 12.16 711
Mr. Khalld Sayeed - - - - - - L.68 169
Mr. Umalrul Amin - - - - - - 487 441
Mr. R K Awasthl - - - - - - 253 233
- - - - - - 104.52 80.85
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Dongtion
Amin Walfare Trust - - - - 1874 21.33 - -
= = - - 1874 21.33 - =
Rent rcelved
Bovinl Frills LLP - - - - 072 072 - u
- - - - 072 .72 - -
€} Outstansine balances with related oartes:
i Becehmbles (Net)
Super Corporation Ltd. 028 0.26 - - - - - -
Super Tannery UK Lrd 63,60 63.28 - - - - - -
Super Italla SAL 367.66 279,94 - - - - - -
Aarifi Tanners Led, 081 022 - - - - - -
Amin Tannery Led - - - - 347 12.35 - -
Bowvind Fril LLP i i @ 3 2310 3§19 3 a
437.36 43,70 - - 26557 50.54 - =
(I  Pavables (Trade oavable B other lablliies)
Bovini Frilx LLP - - - - - 005 - -
Amin Tannery Ltd - - - - 12208 427 - -
Aerifl Tanners Lid. 436 3486 = - = = - =
Secyura safety Limitad 12.06 12.06 = z 2 2 z _
Mr. fdkharul Amin - - - - - - 2.00 200
Mr. lqbal Aksan - - - - - - 20m 002
Mr. Imran Siddiqua - - - - - - 138 .89
Mr. Arshad Khan - - - - - - O.58 0sg
Mr. Mot Imran - - - - - - .64 0.8%
Mr. Mubashind Amin - - - - - - 183 254
Mr. Ahmad Farsz Amin - - - - - - .73 058
Mr. Tarvesrul Amin - - - - - - 2,88 139
Mr. Khalid Sayeed - - - - - - Q44 Q38
Mr, Umalrul Amin - - - - - - .93 0.8z
Mr. R K Awasthl - - - - - - .63 043
1542 15.92 - - 12208 432 14.12 1080
(Nt Leans ard Advances
Super Italla SAL 87.59 87.59 - - - - - -
Secure safety Limited 12,49 12,49 - - - = - =
Super Tannery UK 130.04 130.04 - - - - - -
Amin Welfare Trust - - - - 189 .69
230.12 230.12 - - 189 0.69 - -
(0} Noamount has been written off/back or provided as doubrtful debits during the year In respect of related parties.
(E] Key Monagerial Personnel are entitied to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits ized as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’ In the financlal
A thess employes benefits are lump sum amounts provkied an tha basls of actuarial valustion, the seme s not inchided above.
47. Remunsration to Whaols Tims Directors
F k 2020-21 2018-20
{a} Short Term Employee Benefits {Salary)} 62,36 57.21
(b) Comtribution to dafined comtribution plan (PF) .85 0.94
Total 63.21 58.15
I N
48. (5) Forelgn Currency Exposure hedged and un-hedged a5 at the balance sheet date bs a5 under:
PARTICULARS LSD EURDO GHEP S5GD
3103.21 31.08.20 3io321 31.0820 31.03.21 31.04.20 31.03.21 AL03.20
Dubtars d6.22 a4 1451 1464 220 - - 337
Cradditors 505 6.13 860 a7 - - - -
Other Payables 258 1.80 oog 068 004 - 0.06 0.06
Advances ar7 077 0.55 0485 - - - -
Cash & Bank Balance oge . . & - - - -
Letter of Credit 463 3.26 7.20 653 - - - -
*raprasants less than 0.01 Lacs
{b} Derivative Instrument Outstanding (Forward Contract for hedging) {Forelgn Currency amount In Loes)
PARTICULARS UsD / INR EURO / INR
2000-21 2e-m 20201 X15-20
Agalnst exports 27.85 435 383 3.82
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49. Distloture pursuant to Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements”.

{a} Current liabilities and borrowings expected ta be recovered within twehe months and after twehve months from the reporting date:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Within After Total Within After Total
twelve twele twelve twelve
months muonths months months
Borrowings B,011.53 279.73 B8,291.26 6,870.36 336.47 7,206.83
Trade and other payables 4,264.14 - 4,264.14 3,45140 - 3,451.40
Other financlal llablitles $74.23 = £74.23 727.93 - 727.93

{b] Current assets expected to be settled within twelve months and after twelve months from the reporting date:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Wihhin After Total Whhin After Totzl
twelve twehe twelve twelve
months months months months
Imventories 7,863.22 - 7,863,22 B,608.91 - 8,608.91
Trade Recehable 5,619.45 - 5619.45 3,687.56 > 3,687.85
Other Financial Assets 783.25 - 783.25 303.42 - 303.42
Other Current Assets 1,016.24 - 1,016.24 786.19 - 786,19

5. The Company has made detalled assessments of COVID-13 the pandemic on recoverablity and carrying values of its assets comprising property, plant
and equipment, Inventories, recalvables and other current assets as at the balance sheet date and on the basls of avaluation, has conduded that no
material adjwstments are required In the standalone financlal statements and it will not have any materlsl Impact an Golng Concen assumptian. The
Company Is taking all the necessary steps and precautionary measures to ensure smooth functioning of Its oparations and to ensure the safety and well-
being of all s employees. Glven the critkcalities assaclated with nature, conlitlon and durstion of COVID-18, the Impact assessment on the Company’s
financlal statements will be continuoushy made and previded for as required.

§1. Flgures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever required In order to make them comparable with those of current year. Flgures
have been rounded off to the nearest rupees in lacs.

As per our attached report of even date

For Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 008905C

Rajesv Kapoor
Partner Mohd Imran Iftikharul Amin
M. No. 077827 Diractor{Financa) & CFO Managing Diractor

Place: Kanpur
Date: 07.08.2021 R. K. Awasthl
Company Secretary
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sl Mob. © 05415051670
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Ta The Members of Super Tannery Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinionh

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the "Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries
(Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notesto the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafterreferred to as “the consolidated financial statemenis”).

I our opinion and to the bast of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration of reports of other
auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by the other auditors, as refeired to below in other matters
paragraph, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of
the Group as atMarch 31, 2021, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Acl. Qur responsibilities under
those SAs are further describred in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our reporl, We are
independent ofthe Group and its associate companies in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accord ance with the provisions ofthe Act, We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinicn

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the context of our audit ofthe consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our repoit,

Information Otherthan the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Holding Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Holding Company's annualreport, bul does nol include the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon,

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other infomation and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
therson.

I connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
othenvise appears to be materially misstated. If, based onthework we have performed and hased on the work donef audit reports of other auditors,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing te reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance forthe Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consclidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specifisd under Section 133 of the Act The respective
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Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible formaintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iivegularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of Directors of the companies included inthe Group are
responsible for assessing the ahility of each company to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative butto do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Groug is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each
company.

Auditor's Responsibilities forthe Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance ahout whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when il exists,

Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror and are considerad material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese consolidated financial statements.,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exgarcise professional jud gment and maintain professional skepticismthroughout the audit. We also:

; Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

design and perform audil procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a2 material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from ewor, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.
Obtain an understanding of intemal contiol relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 14 3(3){f} of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing cur opinion on whether the Holding
Company and such companies incorporated in Indiawhich are its subsidiary companies have adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
Evaluate the appropriatengss of accounting policies used and the reasonahlengss of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management,
Conclude on the appropriatensss of management's use of the going concern hasis of accounting in preparalion of consolidated
financial statements and, based on the audil evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
of, if such disclosures are inadequate, o modify our opinion, Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group {Company and its subsidiaries) as well as
its associates to ceaseto continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, stiucture and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a2 manner thal achieves fair
presentation,
QObtain sufficient appropiiate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by
other auditers, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Cur responsibilities in this regard are further described in para (g) ofthe
section titled 'Cther Matters' in this audit report.

We believe thatthe audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports ofthe other auditors referred toin sub-paragraph (&)
of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with govemance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencigs ininternal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on ourindependence,
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and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We desciibe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determing that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterest henefits of such communication.

OtherMatters

(a)

{b)

We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries, whose financial statements (before eliminating inter-company balances)
reflect total assets of Rs, 364,10 Lacs as al March 31, 2021, total revenues (before eliminating inter-company transactions) of Rs, 0.40
Lacs and nel cash outflows amounting te Rs. 0.86 Lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statemeants. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose repoits have been furnished to us by the Holding
Company's managaemenl and our opinion onthe consolidated financial statements, in so far asit relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the audit reports of other auditors.

We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of two subsidiaries, whose financial statements (before eliminating inter-
company balances) reflect total assets of Rs. 514 84 Lacs as at March 31, 2021, total revenues (hefore eliminating inter- company
transactions)ofRs. 1208.90 Lacs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 82.53 Lacs for the year ended onthat date, as considered inthe
consolidated financial statements. These unaudited financial statements have been furnished to us by the Holding Company's
Managemenl and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as il relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinicn and according te the information and explanations
given to us by the Holding Company's Management, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and ourreport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiraments below, is not modified
in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statements/financial information certified by the Holding Company's Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration of the report of the statutory auditors of such
subsidiaries incorporated in India not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by holding company, its subsidiaries is
inaccordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 147 of the Act.

Asrequired by Section 14 3(3) ofthe Act, based on curaudit and on the consideration of repoits ofthe otherauditors on separate financial

statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph, we repoit, to the extent

applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the hest of our knowledge and belief were necessary
forthe purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

143] In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have heen kept so far as it appears from our examination of those hooks and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The consolidated balance sheel, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
consolidated statemeant of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows deall with by this Report are in
agreementwith the relevant books of account maintained forthe purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind A2 specified under Section 133 ofthe Act,

) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as of March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India, none ofthe directors of the Group companias incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a directorin terms of Section 164(2) ofthe Act,

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and
its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A’

gl With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audil and
Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the 'Cther
Matters' paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2021 on the consolidated
financial position ofthe Group. Refer Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
ii.  The Group companies incorporated in India did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-tem contracts including
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derivative contracts.

iii. Therehas beennodelay in transferring amountsto the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company or
its subsidiary companias incorporated in [ndia during the year ended March 31, 2021,

iv. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were applicable for the period
from November 08, 2016 to December 30, 20186, which are not relevant to these consolidated financial statements. Hence,

repoiting underthis clause is not applicable.

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008%05C

Place: Kanpur (Rajeev Kapoor}

Date: 07.08.2021 Partner
M. No. 077827

UDIN: 2107 7827AAAAGL3936
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RAJEEV PREM & ASSOCIATES Off - 0612 - 2302412

: Mob. - 08415051670
CHARTERED ACCODUNTANTS Office - 216, Kaipana Plaza

24/147-B, Birhana Road
Kanpur-208 001
E-mail , cargjeevkapoor@gmall com

ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2{f) under 'Report on Cther Legal and Regulatory Reqguirement section’ of our report of even date on the consolidated
financial statements of Super Tannery Limited {the Holding Company) forthe financial yearended March 31, 2021}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”’}

Opinion

In conjunction with cur audit of the consolidated financial statements of Super Tannery Limited {"the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2021, we have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and
such companigs incorporated in India underthe Companies Act, 201 3which are its subsidiary companies, as ofthat date,

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary companias bave, in all material respects,
adequate intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such intemal financial controle were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by
such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
OverFinancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note”),

Management's Res ponsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, are
responsibile for establishing and maintaining intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the criteria
astablished by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were opearating effectively for
ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeneass ofthe accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financialinformation, as required underthe Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act”)

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements hased on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143{10} of the Acl, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, Those Standards and the Guidance
MNote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequats
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in allmaterial respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements and their operating effectivenass. Qur audil of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements included obtaining an understanding ofinternal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk
thal a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the intemal controls based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statemeants, whether due tofraud or ervor.

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies
incorporated in India in terms of their reports referved to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the intemalfinancial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference te Consolidated Financial Statements

Acompany's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial repoiting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
acceplad accounting principles, Acompany's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies
and procedures thal (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to pemit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not he detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future pericds are subject to the
risk that the intermal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statemente may hecome inadeqguate because of changes in
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conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters
Ouraforesaid report under Section 143(3){i) ofthe Acl on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to subsidiaries companies incoiporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of

the auditors of such companies. Quropinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

For Rajeev Prem & Associates,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 008905C

Place: Kanpur
Date: 07.08 2021
{(Rajeev Kapoor)
Partner
M. No. 077827
UDIN: 21077827AAAAGL3936
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Conzolldated Balanca sheet &s at March 91, 2021 -

Particulars Note As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
ASSETS
Nen-cumrent assats
{al Property, Plant and Equipment 2(a) 7.251.37 6450.55
{b) Capital work-in-progress 213.74 165.08
{c) Goodwill 2[b) 43.70 43.70
{d) Other Intangible assets 2l 6.13 647
{e} Financial Assets
{i} Investments 3 34.45 30.90
(i) Loans & 338.02 372.47 145.98 176.88
{f} Cther non-current assets 5 35.12 37.62
Current Assets
(2} Invernories ] 8,045.60 8,683. 10
{b) Financlal Assets
(i) Trade recelvables 7 5,387.04 3,628.00
{1} Cash and rash equivalents ] 308.40 38993
(I Bank Balances other than {ll] above ] 504 66 50581
{v] Other Financlal Assets 10 F87.47 6,988.57 315.08 4,842 B3
{c) Current Tax Assets (Net) = 155.98
{d) Other current assets 11 1,052.28 794.96
TOTAL ASSETS 24,008.98 21,358.77
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EqQUITY
{a] Equity Share Capltal 12 1,079.73 1,079.73
{b) Other Equity 13 7,091.78 65,600.83
Equity attributable to the owners of the company 817151 7,680.56
Non Controlling Intarest 64.09 64.36
TOTAL EQUITY 8,235.60 7,744.92
LIABILITIES
Non asrent llabilities
{a) Financlal llabllitles
{l) Borrowings 14 279.73 335.48
{b) Deferred tax llabilitles {net) 15 47177 525.11
{c) Other non-current liabllities 16 38499 366.38
Current Nabliltes
{a) Financlal llabllites
{l) Borrowings 17 7.886.82 6,743.82
{I} Trade payables 18
{a} Total Qutstanding Dues to micro and small enterprises 51.39 63.73
(b} Total Ouistanding Due to parties other than micro and small enterprises 4,662.79 3,682.93
{lii} Other financlal liabilities 19 1,077.16 13,678.16 896.16 11,386.64
{b) Other current liabilitles 20 757.31 822.58
{c) Provisions 21 201.42 172.66
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 24,008.98 21,358.77
Slgnificant Accounting Pollcles 1
See accompanylng notes to the consolidated financlal statements
As per our attached report of aven date For and on behalf of the Board
For Rajeev Prem B Assotiates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 008905C
Mohd, Imran Iftikharul Amin
Director {Finance} & CFO Managing Director
Rajeev Kapoor
Parmer
M. No, 077827
R K. Awasthl
Place: Kanpur Company Secretary

Date: 47.08.2021
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Lonsolidated Statament of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars Note No. 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

INCOME:
Revenue from Operations
{a) Sales/Income from operations 12(a) 18,339.79 17,641.44
(b) Other Operating Revenue 22{h) 777.54 536.69
Total Revenue from operations 19,117.38 18,578.13
Other Income 3 117.82 106.95
Total Income 19,235.20 13,685.08
EXPENSE:
Cost of materials consumed 24 10,680.40 11,548.71
Purchase of stock-In-trade 25 1,648.73 1,383.81
Changes In Inventorles of finished goods,
work-In-progress and stock-In-trade 2% 797.62 {1,152.24)
Employee Beneflts Expenses 7 B33.70 BA5.78
Finance costs 28 535.15 674.65
Depreclation and Amortization Expenses 595.51 570.73
Dther Expenses » 3,536.48 413757
Total Expenses 1B,627.59 18,409.05
Profit before Exceptional ttems and Tax £607.61 276.03
Exceptlonal Items - -
Profit before Tax £07.61 276.03
Tax expense:
1. Current Tax 15429 100,00
2. Deferred Tax {62.55} -182.99
3. Tax ad)ustment relating to earller years - [1.75)
131.74 -B4.74
Profit for the pariod 475.87 350.77
Proft/(Loss) transfer to Minority Imterest 0.27 {18.54)
476.14 342.13
Other comprehensive Income
() Items that will not be reclassifiad to profit or loss
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans 2002 {54.83)
(I} Income tax related to ftems that will not ba reclassified to profit or loss {5.21} 1481 14.26 {40.57)
Total comprehenshve Income for the period 490.95 356
Eamings per equity share 30
{Face Value per Share Rs. 1/-}
1, Basic 0.44 0.33
2, Dilutad 0.44 0.33
Significant Accounting Pollcles 1
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Rajeev Prem 5 Associates
Chartered Accourtants
Firm Registration No. 008905C
Mahd. Imran Iftikharul Amin
Director {Finance) & CFO Managing Director
Rajeev Kapoor
Partner
M. No. 077827
Place: Kanpur R. K. Awasthi
Date: 17 08 2021 Company Secratary
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Cansolidated Statamant of Changas In Equity for tha year ended March 31, 2021

A. Equity Share Capital

Partlculars Rs. In Lacs
Balance as at March 21, 2019 1,079.73
Changes in equlty during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,079.73
_Changes in equlty during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,079.73
B. Dther Equity Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total
Capital Securities General Retained Other
Reserve Premlum Reserve Eamings Equity
Balance as at Aprll 01, 2019 29.59 270.18 4,563.21 1,436.29 6,299.27
Profit for the year - - - 342,13 342.13
Dthar Comprehensive Income - - - {40.57) {40.57)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 29.59 270.18 4,563.21 1,737.85 6,600.83
Profit for the year - - - 476.14 476.14
Other Comprehensive Income - - - 14.81 14.81
Balance as at March 31, 2021 29.59 270.18 4,563.21 2,228.80 7,091.78
Significant Accounting Policlas
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
As perour attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Rajeev Prem & Assodiates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. GOB905C
Mohd. Imran Iftikharul Amin
Director (Rnance) & CFO Managing Director
Rajeev Kapoor
Partner
M. No. 077827
Place: Kanpur R. K. Awasthl
Date: 07 (08 2021 Company Secretary
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Consolidated Staternent of Cash Howa for the year ended March 31, 2021

Partlculars Nate 2020-21 2019-20
No. Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit bafore tax 607.61 76.03
Adjustments for :
Depreclation/ Amartisation 59551 57073
Profit/{Loss) on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 7.98 250
Interest income {22.27} {23.49)
Finance Cost 412.25 674.69
Deferral of Income on government grant {54.13) -43 60
Remeasurement of net defined benaflt plans 2002 {54.83)
Share of prafit from firm {3.36) (4.04)
Derivatives of MTM Provision 36.00 23.66
Operating profit before working capltal changes 1,594.61 142165
Adjustment for {Increase)/decreass In operating assets
(Increase)f Dacrease In trade recetvables {1,759.03) 294.64
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories 638,10 {384.25)
{Increase)/ Decrease in other non current loans f assets (192.04) {38.08)
{Increase)f Decrease In ather non current assets 2.50 -5.86
(Increasa}f Decrease In other current finandal assets [458.38) 7B.66
{Increase)f Decrease In other current assets [257.32) 368.90
{Increase)f Decrease in non current liabilities 18.61 -
Increase/ {Decrease) in trade payables 567.52 10.06
Increase/ {Decrease} In other finandlal llablittles 215.55 {BL59)
Increase/ (Decrease) In other current llabllittes {65.27) 5988
Increase/ {Decrease} In Provisions 28.76 B0.70
Cash ganerated from oparations 723,60 1,780.71
Income taxes refunded / {paid), net 102.27 {157.53)
Net cash generated from operating activities 225,87 16178
B. CASHRLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipments {1,413.58) [(916.07)
Purchase of ather intangible assets - {1.75)
Proceeds from sale of PPE 19.64 153
Purchase of non current Investments (3.56) {4.13)
Adjustment on consolidation [211.32) 14198
Interest recelved 27.27 23,49
Other bank balances (Margin Money & others) 115 (253.27
Net cash {used in} / genaratad from Investing activities (1,580.40) {1,008.17)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long-term loans [Net) {56.75) 374.54
Praceeds/{repayment) from/of working capital loans 1,143.00 (25070
Finance costs pald [412.25) (674.69)
Nzt cash used In financing activities 674.00 {552.47)
INCREASE / [DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {80.53) 62.12
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 389,93 327,81
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30940 385.93
{refer Note No. 8 for break-up)
Signficant Accounting Polldes 1
See sccompanying notes to the consolldated financlal statements
As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Arm Reglstratlon No. 008905
Mohd. Imran Htlkharul Amin
Mrector {Finance} & CFO Managing Director
Rajeev Kapoor
Partner
M. No. 077827
R. K. Awasthi
Place: Kanpur Company Secratary
Date: 0708 2021
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Motes forming part of consolidated financial statementforthe yearended March 31, 2021

Note 1!

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Super Tannery Limited (the company/parent company) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, "the Group") forthe year ended March 31, 2021, Group is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading
of Leather and Leather Goods.

The Company is a public limited company having its registered office situated al 187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur — 208010 (UP). The Company's
equity shares are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

Thefinancial statements were approved forissue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on July 30,2020,

E. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

Statement of compliance

Thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of
the Act. In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (|CAl) are also applied
exceptwhere compliance with other statutory promulg ations require a different tre atment.,

Basis of preparation

Thefinancial statements have heen prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for following assets and liahilitie s
which have been measured at fair value amount:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments),

i) Defined benefit plans - plan assets

Histarical costis generally based on the fair value ofthe consideration given in exchange of goods or services,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether thal price is directly ohservable or estimated using another valuation
technique.

Consolidation procedure

] The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, For this
purpose, an entity which is, directly orindirectly, controlled by the Parent Company is treated as subsidiary, The Parenl Company
together with its subsidiaries constitute the Group. Control exists when the Parent Company, directly orindirectly, has power over
the investes, is exposed to variable retums from its involvement with the investee and has the ahbility to use its power to affect its
retums.

(i) Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, loses control of the subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Parent
Company, directly or indirectly, gains control until the date when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, ceasesto control the
subsidiary.

(i) The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
line-kwy-line by adding together the like items of assets, liahilities, income and expenses. Allintra-group assets, liahilities, income,
expenses and excepl unrealised profits/losses on intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been hamonized, to the extent possible, to ensure the consistency with the policies adopted by the
Parent Company. The consolidated financial statements have heen presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as
Parent Company's standalone financial statements.

{iv) Non-controlling interest represents thal part of the total comprehensive income and nel assets of subsidiaries attributable to
interests which are not owned, directly orindirectly, by the Parent Company.

{v)  In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets (except
fixed assets and share capital) and liabilitiss are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year, Exchange differences
arising on consolidation is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Investments in 100% foreign subsidiaries have heen
eliminated with the corresponding Share Capital and Share Premium, if any, of the subsidiarny company.

{vi) Incaseofassociates, where the company directly or indirectly through subsidiaries holds more than 20% of equity {i.e. where the
Group has significant influence ), investments are accountad for using equity method except where the associate operates under
severe long-termrestrictions that significantly impair its ability to transfer funds to the parent Company

(vil) The difference hetween the cost of investment in the subsidiaryfassociates, over the net assets of the subsidiary/associates is
recognized in the consolidated financial statemeants as goodwill or capital reserve, asthe case may be.

(viii) Aninvestment in associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group's share of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of associate.

(x) Asfaraspossible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and
otherevents in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company's separate financial statements,
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4.

Operating Cycle forcurrent and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Shestbased on currentnon-cuirent classification.

An assetis classified as currentwhenitis:

a) expected toha realised or intendad to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle,

) held primarily for the purpose oftrading,

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

d) cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliahility is classified as currentwhen:

a) itis expectedto be setlled in the normal operaling cycle,

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

&) it is dug to be setlled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) there is nounconditional right to defer settlement ofthe liability for atleasttwelve months after the reporting period,

All other liabilities are classifisd as non-currant.

The operating cycle ofthe Company, thatis, the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash

egquivalentis 12 months.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are classified as non-cuent,

Financial statemeants are presented in Indian Rupees, which is alsoits functional currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest
rupeesinlacs

Critical estimate and Judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS reguires managemeant to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenseas during the
year, Actualresulis could differ fromthose estimates, The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis,
Theareas involving oritical estimates orjudgements are:
Employee benefits (estimation of defined benefit obligation)
FPost-employment benefits represent obligations thal will be setiled in the future and require assumptions to project benefit
obligations. Post-employment henefit accounting is intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit costs over the employee's
approximate service period, based on the terms of the plans and the investment and funding decisions made. The accounting
requires the Company to make assumptions regarding variables such as discount rate and salary growth rate, Changes in these
key assumptions can have a significant impact on the defined benefit obligations
Estimation of expected usefullives of property, plant and equipment
Managemenl reviews its estimate of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date, based on the
expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic ohsolescence that may change
the utility of property, plant and equipment.
Contingencies
Legal proceedings covering a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters,
itis often difficult to predict the final outcome, The cases and claims against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual
and legal issues that are subject to many uncertainties and complexitias, including hut nol limited to the facts and circumstances
of gach particular casefslaim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law, In the normal course of business, the Company
consults with legal counsel and other experts on matters related to litigations The Company accrues a liahility when it is
determined thatan adverse outcome is probable and the amount of theloss can he reasonably estimated., In the event an adverse
outcome is possible or an estimate is not determinahble, the matier is disclosed.
Valuation of deferred tax assets
Deferred income tax expense is calculated hased on the differences hetween the camrying value of assets and lighilities for
financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases that are considered temporary in nature, Valuation of deferred tax
assets is dependent on management's assessment of future recoverahility of the deferved benefit, Expected recoverahility may
resull from expected taxable income in the fulure, planned transactions or planned optimising measures . Economic conditions
may change and lead to a different conclusion regarding recoverahility.
Fairvalue measurements
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on
gquoted prices in active markeats, their fair values are measured using valuation technigues, including market multiples model
{MarketApproach) and Capitalisation method (Income Approach) which involve various judgements and assumptions.
impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, intangible assets (other than goodwill) and Capital work-in-
progress
The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future cash flows after considering current
economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and
regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using intemal forecasts, The cash flows are discounted using a
suitable discount rate in orderto calculate the present value:
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10.

For the purpose of assessing impaimment, assets are grouped at the lowestlavels for which thers are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely indepandent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets,

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the period in which the estimate is revised if the ravision affects only
that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future periods ifthe revision affects both cuirent and future periods.

Property, plantand equipment (PPE)

Property, plantand equipment are stated at cost, net ofrecoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represent the carrying value of propeity, plant and
equipment recognised at 1st Apiil 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP, Such cost includes purchase price, bowrowing costand any
cost directly attiibutable to bringing the assetstoits working condition forits intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included inthe asset's camrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropiiate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably,

Assets are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipmentwhen completed and ready forintended use,
Expenses incuired relating to project, including borowing cost and net of income earned during the project development stage prior toits
intended use, are considered as pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Capital Work -in - Progress

Spare parts are capitalized when they meet the definition of PPE, i.e., when the Company intends to use these during more than a period
of 12 months.,

Investment property

Froperty that is held for leng-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as
investment property. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated depreciation and impaiment losses, ifany. Forthis purpose, costincludes deemed costwhich represent the carrying value
of property, plantand equipment recognised at 1st April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP, Such cost includes purchase price,
homrowing cost and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition Tor its intended use, net charges on foreign
exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate varialions attributable to the assets,

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognised of such item of property plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the income statementwhen the assetis derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciable amount for assetsisthe cost of an asset, orother amount substituted for cosl, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation
hasbeen provided on such cost of assets less their residual values on straight line method on the basis of astimated useful life of assets
as presciibed in Schedule || of the Act. However, in case of foreign Wholly Owned Subsidiary (WOS) the depreciation (including on
Investment property) or amortisation is accounted for in accordance with the relevant statute / applicable accounting standard of the
country,

Freshold land is not depreciated/famortised,

Assets held under financial leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets of, wherever
shorter, theterm of relevant lsase.

Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata basis except thal, assets costing upto Rs. 5,000 each are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase,

The astimated useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition nel of recoverable taxes, hrade discounl and rebates less accumulated
amaortisation/depletion and impaiment loss, ifany. Such costincludes purchase price, bomrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable
o bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising
from exchange rate variation s attributable to the intangible assets,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as appropiiate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the itemwill flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried al cost less any accumulated amotisation and accumulated impairment
losses, ifany.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the camying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Losswhen the assetis derecognised,

Intangible assets being computer software is amortised on straight line method overthe period of five years.

The Company has elected to continuewith the carrying value of all of its intangibles assets recognised as on April 1, 2018 measured as
perthe previous GAAP and use that caying value as its deemed cost as oftransition date.

The amortisation pericd and the amortisation method for anintangible asset are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.
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The amottisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statemeant of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carying value of anotherasset,

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets otherthan goodwill

The Company assasses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impaimment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal andits value in use.

Impaiment loss is recognized when the carying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognized impairmeant losses no longerexist or have decreased,

[fsuch indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's ar CGU's recoverable amount. A praviously recognised impaiment loss is
reversed, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impaiment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years.

Leases

Companyas alessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, atinception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the confract
conveys the right to control the Use of an identified asset for a define period oftime in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a
contract conveys the rightto control the use of an identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an
identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and
(iii) the Company has therightto directthe use ofthe asset.

As alessee, The Company recognises aright of use asset and a leass lighility atthe lease commencement date. Tharight of use assetis
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liahility adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incuved and an estimate of costa to dismantle and remove the underlying asseat or to
restore the underlying assetor the site onwhich itis located, less any lease incentives received.

The right of use asset is subsaquently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier ofthe end of
the useful life of the right of use asset arthe end of the leaseterm. The estimated useful lives of right of use assets are determined on the
same hasis as those of property and equipment. 0 addition, the right of use assel is periodically reduced by impaiment losses, ifany, and
adjusted for certain remeasuremeants of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are nol paid al the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, ifthat rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing
rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopl either the incremental
homrowing rate specifictothe lease or the incremental borrowin g rate for the portfolio as a whole,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments
and lease payments in an optional renewal period ifthe Company is reasonably certain o exercise an extension option;

The lease liahility is measured at amortised costusing the effective interest method.

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lsase liahilities for shorf-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments assaciated with these leases as an
expense on astraight-line basis over the lease term. The Company applied a single discount rate to a poitfolio of leases of similar assets
in similar economic environment with a similar end date.

Company as alessor

Leasesinwhich the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Where the Company is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is capitalised within property, plant and equipment and
depreciated over its useful economic life, Payments received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight-line basis overthetermofthe lease.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable valug, whichever is lower. The basis of determining the cost for various categories of

inventory are as follows:

(a) Rawmaterials, Chemicals, Components, stores & spares and Stockin Trade— Costincludes cosl of purchase (Net of recoverable
taxes) and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condilion, Costis determined on FIFO
hasis.

{b)  Stockin process andfinished goods- Direct cost plus appropriate share of overheads,

(c) Saleable ScrapfWaste/By products -At estimated realisable value.

{d) Intergroup goods transfer — transfer price

(g} Import Entitltement/ Licences —At estimated realisable/Ulilisation value
Net realisable valug is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary tomake the sale,

Foreign Currencies
a) Funclional and presentation cumrency
ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the curency of the primary economic environment in which the
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entity operates (the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR/Rupees), which s the
Company's functionaland presentation curency.

) Transaction and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction,
Ay gains orlosses arising due to differences in exchange rates at the time of translation or settlement are accounted forin the
Statement of Profit & Loss either under the head foreign exchange fluctuation or interest cost, as the case may be, exceptthose
relating to long-term foreign currency monetary items.
[nvestment in overseas Wholly Owned Subsidiaries are carried in Balance Sheet at the rates prevailing on the dates of
transaction.

FairValue measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordeily transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:
: Inthe principal market for the asset arliability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market which can be accessed by the Company for the assel or
liability,
The fair value of an asset or a liahility is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset orliahility, assuming that market participants act in their economic bestinterest.
The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilitizs for which fair valug is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are calegorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fairvalue measurement as awhole:
Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted ) market prices in active markets foridentical assats or liabilities
Level 2 Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
ohservable
: Level 3 Valuation technigues for which the lowest levelinput that is significant to the fair value measurementis unchservable
For assets and liahilities that are recognised in thefinancial statements on arecurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have cccurred between levels inthe hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement asawholg)at the end of each reporting period.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Allfinancial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets notrecorded at fairvalue through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of thefinancialasset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place {regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i &, the date thatthe Company commits to purchase or sell the assel,
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement is detemmined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets, Basad on the business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset, the Company classifies
financialassets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit
andloss.
Debt instruments atamortised cost
Debt instruments such as trade and other receivables, security deposits and loans given are measured at the amortised cost if hoth the
following conditions are met:
The assetis held within a business model whose objective isto hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP()
on the principal amount outstanding,
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subseqguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amaortised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thatare anintegral
parl of the EIR. The EIR amaitisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The lossas arising from impairment are
recognised in the profit or loss.
Debt instruments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive income (FVOCI)
A'debtinstrument'is classified as atthe FVTOC| if both of the following criteria are met:
The objective ofthe business model is achieved hoth by collecting contraciual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI
Debt instruments included within the FYTOC| category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI),
Debt instruments at Fair value through Profitor Loss (FVTPL)
FVYTPL is a residual category for debt instruments excluding investments in subsidiary and associate companies. Any debt instrument,
which does not meetthe eriteria for categorization as at amortized costor as FVTOC|, is classified as at FVTPL.
After initial measurement, any fair value changes including any interest income, forgign exchange gain and losses, impaiment losses
and othernet gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 10% are measured at fair valug. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at
FVYTPL, For all other equity instiuments, the company decides to classify the same gither as al FVTOC| or FYTPL. The company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instiument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured atfairvalue with all changes recognized in the Profit orloss,
De-recagnition
Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of afinancial asset or part of a group of similarfinancial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed fromthe Company s Balance Sheet) when
: Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company hastransferred its rights to receive cash fiows from the asset orhas assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'passthrough’ arrangement; and either
The Company has transferred substantially allthe risks and rewards of the asset, or
The Company has neither transferred norretained substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe asset, but has transferred control of
the assat.
On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at FYOC ) and equity instruments
{(measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses in respect of debl instruments measured at
FYQCI| and thal are accumulated in OC| are reclassified to profil or loss on de-recognition, Gains or losses on equity instruments
measured at FYOC| that are recognised and accumulated in ©Cl are notreclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

Impairment offinancial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial

assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured al amoitised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade
receivables and bank balance.

) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
In case of other assets {listed as a) above), the company detemmines if there has been a significant increase in credit visk of the
financial asset since initial recognition. [Fthe credit risk of such assets has not increased significantly, an amount equalte 12-month
ECL is measured and recognized as loss allowance, However, if credil risk has increased significantly, an amount equal to lifetime
ECLIis measured and recognized as loss allowance.,

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Allfinancial liakilities are recognised initially at fair value and, inthe case ofloans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs,

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and bowowings including bank overdrafts, and derivative
financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liahilities atFair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial liahilitizs at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilitiss designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit orloss.

Financial liakilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 10% are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk is recognized in QC|, These gains/ lossas are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss, However, the company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liahility are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial Liabilities atamortised cost

Financial liabilities classified and measured at amortised cost such as loans and borrowings are initially recognized al fair valug, net of
transaction cost incurred, After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measuraed at amortised cost using the Effective
interest rate (EIR) method Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
EIR amoitisation process.

Amoitised costis calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acduisition and fees or costs thatare an integral part ofthe
EIR, The EIR amortisation ig included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition

Afinancialliability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liahility are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition ofthe original iability and the recognition of a new liability. The
differencs in the respective canrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profitor loss,

Derivative financial instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage the commodity price risk and exposure on account of fluctuation in interest
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rate and foreign exchange rates. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized al fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently measured at fair value with changes heing recognized in Statemeant of Profit and
Loss Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabililies when the fairvalug is negative.
Any gains or losses arising from changes inthe fairvalue of derivatives are taken through profit and loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair valug, net of transaction costs incurred ., Borrowings are subsequently measured at amoitised
cost. Any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Profit or loss overthe
period of the borrowing using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn down,  In this case, the fee is
deferred untilthe drawdown oceurs,

The borrowings are remaoved from the Balance sheat when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liahility that bas been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid inchiding any noncash assettransferred orliabilities assumed, is recognised in profit orloss as other gains/{losses).
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unlessthe group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the lighility of at least 12
months afterthe repoiting petiod. Where there is a breach of 2 material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of
the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
liahility as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for issue, not to
demand payment as a consequence of the breach,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interast and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds

Borrowing costalse includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,

Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from commencemean! of activities relating to
constiuction/development of the qualifying asset upto the date of capitalisation of such asset is added to the cost of the assets.

Interest income eamed on temporary investment of specific borrowing pending expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the
horowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Allother bomrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur,

Offsetting offinancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liakilities are offset, and the net amount is repoited in the standalone balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and thereis an intention to settle on a nel basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilitizs simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company, or the counterpaity.

Claims
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as dehts are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts and legal aspects of the
matterinvolved,

Provisions, Contingentliabilities and Capital Commitments

Provisions are recognized when there is a present abligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, il is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount ofthe obligation, Provisions are reviewed ateach halance sheetdate and are adjusted toreflect the cuirent hest estimate.,

[fthe effecl of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a curent pre-tax rate thal reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost.

Contingent liahilities are possible obligations whose existence will only be confirmed by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company, or present obligations where it is not probable thal an outfiow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed when the inflow of economic benefits is probable. However, when the realisation of
incomeis virtually certain, thenthe related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset,

Government Grant

Govemment grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with,

A govemment grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses incuired in previous period({s). Such a grant is
recognised in profit orloss of the period inwhich il becomes receivable,

Govemment grants shall be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as
expenses therelated costs for which the grants are intended to compensate,

Govemment grants related to assets are presented in the balance sheel as defered income and is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic rasis overthe expected useful life of the related assets or other relevant basis.

Govemment grants by way offinancial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as they become receivable,
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In the unlikely event that a grant praviously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change in estimate and the amount
cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods and services

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expectstoreceive in exchange forthose goods,

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when (&) control is transferred to the customer, which is mainly upon
delivery in case of domestic sales and on issuance of Shipping Billin case of export sales.

Revenue is measured al the fair value of the congideration received or receivable for goods supplied and services rendered, nel of
returns, rebates and discounts to customers

Revenue fromthe sale of goods excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties, such as Goods & Services Tax {GST).

Interest Income

Interestincome is acerued on using on a time basis by the effective interestrate with referen ce to the principal outstanding.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has heen established,
Exportincentives

Export Incentives are recognised when certainty of receiptis established.

Insurance Claim

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent thal the amount
recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expectultimate collection.

Otherlncome

Otherincome is accounted for on accrual bhasis except wherethe receipt of income is uncertain ans in such cases it is accounted for on
receipt hasis,

Employee benefits

The Company makes contributions to both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes which are mainly administered through/by
duly constituted and approved Trusts and the Govemment.

Defined Contribution Scheme

In case of provident fund administered through Regional Providenl Fund Commissioner, the Company has no obligation, otherthan the
contribution payable to the provident fund.

I case of members of constituted and approved trusts, the Company recognises contribution payable to such trusts as an expense
including any shortfall in interest between the amount of interest realised by the investment and the interest payable to members at the
rate declared by the Government of India,

The Company's contributions paid/ payable during the yearto provident fund administeraed through Approved Trust, Regional Provident
Fund Commissioner, Superannuation Fund and Employess' State Insurance Comporation are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as an expense when employeeas have rendered services entitling them to contributions.

Defined Benefit Scheme

Gratuity: Cost of providing the Benefit is determined on an actuarial basis at the end of the year and charged to Statement of Profit and
Loss, The cost of providing these benefits is determined by independent actuary using the projected unit creditmethod.,
Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling, (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined henefil liability and return on plan assets), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding dehit or oredit to retained earnings through other comprehensive incomein the period in which they occur. ftisincludedin
retained garnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Leave encashment: Accrued Leaves are encashed annually at the end of the calendar year and not accumulated. Provision for the
sameis done onthe basis of leaves acerued as at the end of the reporting period,

Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research of revenus nature is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss and that of capital nature is capitalized as fixed
assels.

Taxes onlncome

Current taxis the amount of tax payable determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and provisions ofthe Income Tax Act,
1461 and other applicable tax laws.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences hetween the carrying amounts of assets and lizhilities in the Balance sheet and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferved tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances tothe extent that it is probable that future taxahble profits will be available
againstwhich those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can he ulilised, Deferred tax assets and
liakilitizs are measured at the applicable tax rates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, and presented asnet.
Cuent and deferred taxes relating to items directly recognised in reserves arerecognised inreserves and notin the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to
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future income tax liahility, is considerad as an assel if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax,
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an deferred tax assetin the Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit associated
with itwill flow to the Company,

Dividend Distribution
Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the Board of
Directors, orin respect ofthe final dividend when approved by shareholders.

Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method specified in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flows. Cash and cash equivalents (including
hank halances) shown in statement of cash flows exclude itemwhich are not available for general use on the date of balance sheet,

Eamings pershare

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) aftertax {including the post-tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by
the weighted average number of equity shares ocutstanding during the yvear, Diluted eamings per share is computed by dividing the profit/
(loss) after tax {including the post-tax effect of extracrdinary items, ifany) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other chargesto expense
orincome (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the nel profil per share from
continuing erdinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning ofthe period, unless they
have been issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the procesads receivable had the shares been
actually issued at fair valug {i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits
freverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Segment Reporting
Cperating segments are reported in consistent mannar with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM) ofthe Company. The CODMis responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance ofthe Company.

Recentindian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is na such notification which
would have been applicable from April 1, 2021,
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Notes forming part of tha consolldatad financlal statemants for the yaar andad March 31, 2020

2 ({(a) Property, plant and equipment {Rs. In lacs)
; Elactric
Land Factory Plant & Office  |Furnkure &
Particulars Freshokd bullding | Machinery Installation | Computer Equipment| Foxtures Vehkde Total
& Flttings
Gross carrying value
As gt March 31, 2019 77.19( 1,737.63| 4,749.73 196.16 4227 54.33 130.35 44022 | 7,438.37
Addttlons 643.79 490.75 19.91 50.22| 1,204.67
Adjustment/{Deletions) 42.21 [9.25)] 32.96
As at March 31, 2020 77.19 238142 5,282.69 196.16 42.27 64.53 150.26 48119 B,676.00
Accumulatad
Depradation/Amartisation
As at March 31, 2019 - 164.73| 1,156.83 84.67 38.14 28.75 45.74 132.22| 1,661.08
Depreclation for the year 56.88 395.26 20.22 98.06 570.42
Adjustment/{Deletions) - [6.05) {6.05)
As st March 31, 2020 - 221.61| 1,552.09 54.67 38.14 28.75 65.96 224.23| 2,225.4%
Net Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2019 77.19 1,572.50 3,552.90 10149 4.12 36.08 B4.51 308.00 5,777.29
As ot March 31, 2020 77.19 2,159.81 3,730.60 10149 4.13 35.08 B4.30 256.96 §,450.55
(b) Goodwill - Goodwlll on Cansolidation
[Rs. In lacs)
Particulars
Carrying value
As at March 31, 2019 £9.94
Addition during the year | (26.24)
As at March 31, 2020 43.70

[t} Other Intangibla axsets

Computer
Particulars Saftware Wabsite | Trademark| TOTAL
{Rs. In lncs) | {Rs. In lacs) | (Rs. In lacs} | {Rs. In lacs]
Grass carrying value
As at March 31, 2019 i1.35 0.41 141 6.17
Addttions 145 - - 145
AdJustment/{Deletions) - - - -
Deletions - -
As at March 31, 2020 5.80 0.41 141 7.62
Accumulated Depreciation -
As at March 31, 2019 0.23 0.20 0.41 0.84
Depreclation for the year 0.11 0.10 0.10 0.31
Adjustment/{Deletions) - -
As at March 31, 2020 0.34 0.30 0.51 115
Net Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2019 4.12 0.21 100 5.33
As st March 31, 2020 5.46 0.11 0.90 647

[d) Assets given as security for borrowings
0 All the items of Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been given to lenders as security for various borrowing fadilities.

{ii} The management has carrled out an exercise of Identifying the asset that may have been Impalred, durlng the year, In respect of each cash generating unit.
On the basls of revlew carrled out by the management, there was no Impalrment loss on fixed assets during the year.
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3 Financial Assats: Investments - Non Current

Fartlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs.in Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Equity Shares Ungquoted
A. OTHERS
(i} SUPERHOUSE OVERSEAS LIMITED
5,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 0.50 0.50
{l) AL-BARR FINANCE HOUSE LIMITED
20,000 Equlty Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald 2.00 2.00
{iii} SVIT PRONEXT MACHINES PRIVATE LIMITED
8,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 1.33 128
{lv} INDUSTRIAL INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES (INDIA) LIMITED
25,200 Equlty Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald 2.50 271
{v) KANPUR UNNAO LEATHER CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT CO. LTD.
75,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 7.50 7.50
{vl} LEATHER CLUUSTER DEVELOPMENT
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald 1.00 1.00
{wii) JAIMAL TANNERY EFFLUENT TREATMENT ASSOCIATION
26,200 (Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 262 2862
Total-A 17.45 17.61
Equity Shares Quoted
B. (i) Superhouse Limited
5,200 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully pald 0.52 0.17
Total-B 0.52 0.17

Investment In Partnership Firm
C  Bovinl Frills LLP

15% in the capital of the LLP 0.75 0.75
Share of Reserves and Surplus of the LLP 15.73 12.37
Total-C 16.48 13.12
Total {A+B+C} 34.45 30.90
Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments 0.52 0.17
Market Value of Quoted Investments 6.40 3,18
Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments 17.45 17,61
Rs. In Lacs
Profit
Sharing Capitalason Capltal as on
Name of Partners Ratlo 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
1 Mr. shahbhaz Khan 55% 275 275
2 Super Tannery Umited 15% 0.75 0.75
3 Mr. Iftikharul Amin 15% 0.75 0.75
4 Mr. Ighal Ahsan 15% 0.75 0.75
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4 Financlal Assets: Loans - Non Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured Considered Good
Loans & Advances 338.02 145,98
Tatal 338.02 145.98
5 Other Non Current Assets
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured Considerad Good
Preliminary Expenses 0.13 0.13
Security Deposits 3499 37.49
Tatal 35.12 37.62
6 Inventories (At cost or net realisabla value whichever 1s lowar)
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs.In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Raw Materials 1,710.20 1,711.57
Work In Prograss 3,201.39 3,382.71
Finished Goods 1,592.45 2,233.49
{Including stack at port Rs NIL {March 2020: Rs 148.24 Lacs)} -
Chemical, Components, Stores and spares 1,421.46 1,260.57
Waste & Scrap 120.08 95.36
Total B,045.60 8,683.70
T I

{a) All the Inventories have been hypothecated as security for various working facilities from banks.
{b}) Duringthe year Rs. 11.76 Lacs was recognised as expense towards write-down of inventory.

7 Financlal Assets - Current: Trade Recelvable

Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs
{a) Secured Consldered Good - -
{b) Unsecured Consldered Good 5,387.04 3,628.01
{¢) Unsecurad which have significant Increase In credit risk - -
{d} Unsecurad credit Impaired 61.51 28.58
5,448.55 3,656.99
Less: Impairment loss allowance (ECL) 61.51 28.98
Total 5,387.04 3,628.01
{a) All the Trade Receivables have been hypothecated as security for various working facilities from banks.
8 Financlal Assets - Current: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Balances with banks
on current accounts 278.22 350.95
on EEFC accounts 492 093
on fixed deposit - 522
Cheques and Draft on Hand/Remittance in Transit - 18.82
Cash on hand 26.26 14.01
Total 309.40 389.93
I I
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9  Financial Assets - Current: Bank Balancas othar than cash and cash sguhmalents

Partloulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Margin money deposits 495.65 493.36
{restricted, held as lien agalnst bank guarantees/LCs)
Earmarked balances with banks - unclaimed Dividend .0 12.45
Total 504.66 505.81
10 Other Current Hnanclal Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Unsecured considered good
Export Incentive Racelvable 380.49 221.57
Other Claims Receivable 12.15 4,23
Balance with Govt/Revenue authority 394,83 93,28
Total 787.47 319.08
11 Other Current Assets
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Unsecured considered good
Advances to Trade Creditors 847.14 634,51
Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be recelved 194.70 149.10
Prepaid expenses 10.44 11.35
Total 1,052.28 794.96
12 Equity Shara Capital
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of No. of
Shares Rs. in Lacs Shares Rs. in Lacs
Authorisad
Equity Shares of Rs. 1/-sach 11,00,00,000 1,100.00  11,00,00,000 1,100.00
Issued
Equlty Shares of Rs. 1/~each 10,79,73,360 1,079.73  10,79,73,360 1,079.73
Subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity Shares of Rs, 1/-each 10,79,73,360 1,079.73 10,79,73,360 1,079.73
Total 1,079.73 1,079.73
{A) Recondllation of the number of equlty shares and share capltal
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of No. of

Shares Rs. in Lacs

Shares Rs. in Lacs

Subscribed and fully pald-up equity shares
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

10,79,73,360 1,078.73

10,79,73,360 1,079.73

10,79,73,360 1,078.73

10,75,73,360 1,079.73
I fe———osey
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(B} Tarms and rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one dass of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entltled to one vote per share. The
company declares and pays dividends In Indlan Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders In

the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to recelve remaining assets of the company, after distribution of

all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{C) Detalls of sharehqlders halding more than 5% shares In the company

Partleulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of No. of
Shares % Shares %
{a) Mr.Vegarul Amin 1,78,83,900 16.56% 1,78.83,900 16.56%
{b) Mr. Igbal Ahsan 91,42,502 8AT% 91,42,502 8.47T%
{c) Mr. iftTkharul Amin 90,80,432 8.41% 90,80,432 8.41%
2020-21 2019-20
{No. of Shares) {No. of Shares)
{D) Equity Shares allotted as fully paid pursuant to contract{s) without payment being received C
In cash during the immedlately preceding five years NI o
{E} Equlty Shares allotted as fully pald up Bonus Shares during the Immediately preceding five NIL NIL
years
{F} Equity shares buy-back In Immediately preceding flve years NIL NIL
(G) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or thelr subsidiaries/ associates NIL NIL

(H) The Beard of Dirsciors of the Company has recommendsd & final dividend of Re. 0.05 per equity share {5%) face value of Re.1 sach for the year andad

March 31, 2021, subject to the approvel of Sharsholders.

13 Othar equity
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Capital Reserve 29.59 29.59
Securitles Premium 27018 270.18
General Reserve 4,563.21 4,563.21
Retained Earnings 2,228.80 1,737.85
Total ?‘091.78 siam.aa

(A} Capltal Reserve

It represent the gain of capital nature which mainly include the excess of value of net assets acquired over consideration paid by the company for

business combinatlon In earller years.

(8) Securities Premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(C) General Reserva

The Company has transferred a portlon of the net profit of the Company before dedaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earller provisions

of Companies Act, 1956. Mandatory transfer tu general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013,

(D) Ratainad Eamings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfars to general reserva, dividends paid or other distributions out of

reserves to shareholders.
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14 Financial Liabliities - Non-currant: Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs._in Lacs
Secured
Term loans from banks - INR 181.77 287.04
Vehicle Term loans from banks - INR 97.96 49,44
Total 279.73 336.48
Amount of default as on the Balance Sheet date:
{a} Repayment of loan NIL NIL
{b) Interest on Loan NIL NIL

Repayment terms:

(a) The dassification of loans between current liabilities and non —current liabilities continues based on repayment schedule under respective

agreements as no loans have been recalled due to non compliance of conditions under any of the loan agreements.

[b) Scheduled repayments: Contractual repayments in case of loans from banks {including Current maturities disdosed under other Current financial

liahil ties:

Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs.in Lacs

Upto three years 338.63 37598

Between three to five years 64.81 82.04

Over five years - -

{c) Secured by hypothecatlon of vehicle financed and are repayable In 36 to 60 Equated Monthly Instalments (EMIs)

15 Dafarred tax Habliides (Nt}

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 21, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Tax effect of tems constituting deferred tax labllity
On difference between book balance and tax balance of fixed assets 580.98 662.74
Total Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability 580.08 662.74
Tax effect of ftems constituting deferred tax assets
Expenses allowable on payment basls and other Iltems 109.21 133.63
Total Tax effect of Items constiuting deferred tax assets 109.21 133.63
Net Deferred Tax Liability 471.77 529.11
16 Other Non-current Liabllities
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Deferred Revenue
Govt Grant under IDLS 175.36 215.63
EPCG Obligations 209.63 150.75
Total 384.99 366.38

(a) Govemment Grant under IDLS, the deferred grant income is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of

asset on which such grant Is recelved subject to compllance of other terms & condltions of the scheme.

{b} Under EPCG scheme, the Company Is committed to export prescribed times of the duty saved on Import of capital goods over a specified perlod of
time apart from malntalning average export growth. In case such commltments are not met, the Company would be required to pay the duty saved
along with interest to the regulatory authorltles. The deferred grant Income Is recoghlzed in Statement of Proflt and Loss on a systematic basls over

the periods in which the related performance obligations are fulfillad.
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17 Finandial Liabllides - Current: Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs

Secured
Bomrowlngs from banks
{a) Cash Credit 33853 396.29
{b) Packing Credit 5,144.67 5,575.10
[c) Advance against bills sent on collection 2,012.19 772.43 6,743.82
d) Stand By line of Credit{ SBLC) 39143 7,886.82

Total 7,886.82 6,743.82
Amount of default as on the Balance Sheet date:
{a) Repaymentofloan NIL NIL
{b) Interest on Loan NIL NIL

{A) Security
Working Capltal Loans are primarlly secured by hypothecation of present and future Current Assets and Actlonable Clalms (viz. Inventories, trade
recelvable / book debts, outstanding monles, racelvable claims, bills and materials In transit).
These are further collaterally secured by extenslon of charge over moveable and Immeoveable properties of the company.
Further secured by personal guarantee of promoter director(s) of the company and Aarlfi tanners Itd, which Is the subsidiary of the company.

{B} Stand by Line of Credit{SBLC) are primarily secured by hypothecation of Plant and machinery and raw material and are further secured by personal
guarantee of promoter director(s) of the company and Aarifl tanners ltd. which 1s the subslidlary of the company,

{C} Rate of Interest
Working capltal credit faclitles carry Interest rates ranging from 7.20% to 10.40%.

18 Financlal Liabllitdes - Current: Trade Payable

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in lacs Rs. in Lacs
{a} Total Outstanding Dues to micro and small enterprises {refer note below]) 51.39 63.73
{b)] Total Outstanding Due to parties other than micro and small enterprises 4,662.79 3,682.93
Total 4,714.13 3,746.66
I N

Note: The company has requested confirmation from Suppliers regarding their registration [filling of Memorandum) under the Micra, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {the MSMED Act). According ta the Informatlon avallable with the company, the following disclosures has been made In

respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises:

Particulars As at March, 2021 As at March, 2020
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
{a) Principal amount and interast due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year
Principal Amount 5139 63.73
Interest due on above 2.26 1.90

{b) Amount of interest paid by the company in tanms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount

of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year NE. Fil
{c] Amount of Interest due and payable for the perlod of delay In making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appolnted day during the year} but without adding the Interest spacified under the MSMED NIL NIL
Act
{d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year NIL NIL

{e} the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the Interest dues above are actuslly pald to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of NIL NIL
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
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19 Ananclal Lipbilltles - Corrent: Qther Finandal Uablittes

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. In Lacs
{a) Current maturities of long term borrowings 12471 126.55
{b) Book overdraft from banks 8.49 144
{¢) Unclalmed Dividend* 9.01 12.45
{d) Other Liabilities 934.95 755.72
Tortal 1,077.16 896.16
* Represents dividend amounts aither nat claimed or kept in abeyance in accordance with Section 126 of the Companies Act, 2013
20 Other Current Liabliities
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
{a) Advance from customers 323.45 382.87
{b) Advance against sale of fixed assets 393.10 393,10
(c) M-to-M valuation on forward cover 36.01 41.86
{d) RentInAdvance 4.75 475
Total 757.31 822.58
21 Current Labllitles: Provisions
Partlculars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2020
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Provision for Gratulty 183,17 172.66
Provislon for current tax 18.25 -
Total 201.42 172.66
22 Revenue from operations
Partlculars 2019-20 2018-19

RS. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Rs. in Lacs RS. in Lacs

{a) Sales/ Income from operatlons
{1} Sales {Export & Overseas)
{ii) Exchange Fluctuation on Sales (Export)
{iii) Sales {Indigenous)
{refer Note (c] below for break-up}
(b} Other operating revenue

Export Incentives {refer Note (d) below for break-up}

Revenue from operations {(gross)

15,251.40
156.91
2,931.48

18,328.79

777.58

15,117.38

12,635.10
37047
4,635.87
17,641.44
936.69
18,578.13
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Particulars 2020-21 2018-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
{c} Breakup of Sales
Finlshed Leather 10,458.35 9,739.59
Leather Shoe and components 7,692.32 7,641.59
Others 189.12 260.26
Total 18,339.79 17,641.44
{d) Detalls of other operating revenue
Export Incentives
Duty Draw Back / ROSL 568.69 azrn
licences/Entttlements 208.90 563.96
Total T77.59 936.69
23 Other Income
Particulars 2020-21 2018-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Interest income
- from Fixed Deposkt with Banks 27.37 23.49
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 575 -
Deferred revenue on EPCE & |DLS Subsidy 54.13 43.60
Liabilitias/provisions no longer required 0.83 -
Exchange Fluctuation 0.60 -
Miscellaneous Income 25.59 35.74
Share of profit from the firm 336 4,04
Accretion in Investment 019 0.08
Total 117.82 106.95
24 Cost of material consumed
Particulars 2020-21 2015-20

Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

Raw Material consumed

(a} Raw Hlide forsole 143.01 361.60

{b) Raw Hide for chrome 2,996.47 3,944.90

{c} Wet Blue Leather Chrome 206.94 150.47

{d] Upper for safety shoes 947.48 1,126.80

{e) Flnish leather for shoe upper and shoes 1,578.53 1,441.31

{f) Cthers 104.25 134.49

Raw Material consumed 5,976.69 7,199.57

Chemicals consumed 31,05498 3,244.15

Stores 8 Spares cansumed 1,648.73 1,504.95
Total 10,680.40 11,548.71

25 Purchase of stock In trade
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

{a} Finlshed Leather {Including Spiit} 634.10 674.77

{b) Shoe Upper 1,014.63 705.04
Total 1,648.73 1,383.81

e I
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26 Incraase/ducreasa In Invantories

Particulars

2020-21
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

2019-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Inventories at the commencement of the year

Finished Goods 2,233.49 2,269.81
Work In process 338271 1,963.95
Scrap 95.36 3235.56
TOTAL'A 5,711.56 4,559.32
Inventories at the end of the year
Finlshed Goods 1,592.46 423349
Work In process 3,201.39 3,382.71
Scrap 120.09 95.36
TOTAL'B' 4,913.84 571156
Decreasef{Increase) In Stocks {A-B) 797.62 {1,152.24)
27 Employee benefit expense
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Salary, Wages and Bonus 52839 649.68
Directors Remuneration 63.21 58.15
Contribution to Provident and other funds 62.77 67.05
Contribution to Gratutty Fund 45.53 4087
Workmen and Staff Welfare expenses 33.80 30.03
Total 833.70 845.78
28 Finance cost
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Interest on
- Term Loan 2.70 3.92
- Others A09.55 545.86
41225 549.78
Bank Charges 108.20 108.43
Foreign Bank Charges 14.7D 16.48
Total 535.15 674.69
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259 Other axpenses

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Manufacturing Expenses
Job Work Charges 982.10 1,505.08
Power and Fuel 52573 529.92
Effluent Treatment Expenses 146.34 15.93
Repairs and Maintenance
- Building 28.33 25.45
- Machinery 122.75 93.44
1,805.25 2,169.82
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Freight, Handling and Other Sales and Distribution Expenses 218.00 782.86
Commisslon on Sale 169.50 234.71
Advertisement and Publicity 512 4,78
Expected Credit Loss 32.53 1176
Bad Debts - Provislon/write off 68.39 90.75
1,083.54 1,124.86
Establishment Expenses
Rant 2277 27.12
Rates and Taxes 29.76 £8.43
Insurance 27.90 26.09
E.C.G.C Premium 90.34 73.60
Communication cost 19.02 32.77
Travelling and Conveyance 66.76 17104
Repalrs and Maintenance - Others 47.16 57.62
Printing and Statlonery 9.88 13.73
Legal and Professional Charges 47.19 34.99
Auditor's Remuneration {refer Note [a) below} 349 3.68
Miscellaneous Expenses 187.60 276.69
Research & Development Expenses 1.79 2.68
Exchange Difference 34.12 15.05
Charity and Donatlon 7.44 11.77
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipments 13.73 2.50
Corporate Social Responsibllity Expenses 18.74 21.13
637.69 842.89
Tertal 3,536.48 4,137.57
{a} Auditor's remuneration comprises:
As audltor 348 3.68
Total 3.48 3.68
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Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs Rs.in Lacs
30 Eaming per share (EPS)
{a} Profit for the year (Rs. In Lacs) 475.87 360.77
(b} Welghted average number of equity shares for the purpose of
of calculation of Baslc and Dilluted EPS 10,79,73,360 10,79,73,360
{¢} Nominal value of aquity shares (Rupees) 1.00 1.00
[d} EPS- Basic and diluted {Rupees per share) 0.44 0.33
31 Capltal and othar commitmants
i. Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account {net of advances) 39.72 193.04
Il. Other Commitments NIL NIL
32 mtingent liabilit
() Contingent Labllitles In respect of:
{a) Letter of Credit opened and outstanding 972.47 84258
(b} Claims against the cormpany not acknowledged as debt NIL NIL

33 Disclosure pursuant to ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits™:
{2} Defined Contribution Plan

The employees of the Company are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plans namely Provident fund and Pension and Employee State
Insurance {ESl} operated by the Government of Indla. The Company Is required to contribute a spectled percentage of payroll costs to the

retirement benefit and ES| schemes.

The only obllgation of the company with respect to such retirement and other benefit plan |s to make the specified contributlons.
The Company has recognlzed the following amounts [n the Income Statement during the year under 'Contribution to staff provident and other

funds’ (refer note 27)

Rs.In Lacs
Particulars 2020-21 2018-20
Employer’s contribution to PF and FPF 47.97 50.62
Employer’s contribution to ESIC 14.80 16.43
Total 52.77 67.05 |

(b} Dafined Benafit Plan

The employees Gratulty Fund Scheme, which Is a defined benefit plan, Is managed by the trust malntained with LIC. The present value of obligation
Is determined based on actuarlal valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each perod of service as glving fise to additlonal
unit of employee benefit entitement and measures each unit separately ta build up the final obligation.
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Partlculars Gratulty (Funded) Gratulty {(Funded}
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

{A} Movements In present value of defined beneflt obligation
Obligations as at beginning of the year 294.27 229.02
Current service cost 34.13 30.02
Interest cost 19.42 17.18
Current service contrlbutlon- employee - -
Past Service Cost > E
Plan amendment - -
Remeasurement {or Actuarial {gain)/Loss} arising from - -
-change In demographic assumption - 0.03
- change In financlal assumptlen -4.48 18.28
- experience variance {15.58) 38.13
- others - -
Benefits pald {21.83) {38.39)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 305.93 294.27

{8} Movements in the fair value of plan assets
Falr value of plan assets at beginning of the year 121.60 117.05
Investment Income 303 878
Returm on plan assets, excdluding amount recognised in net Interest expense {0.04) 1.61
Actual contributions by the employer 15.00 3255
Employee contribution - -
Benefits pald {21.83) {38.39)
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 122.76 121.60

{C) Amount recognlzed In the balance sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at end of the year 305.93 294,27
Fair value of plan assets as at end of the year 122.76 121.60
Funded status {Surplus/{deflcit}} {183.17) {172.67)
Effect of balance sheet asset limit - -
Unrecognised past service cost - -
Net asset/{liability) recognised in balance sheet {183.17) {172.67)
Net asset/{llabliity) recognised In balance sheet at beginning of the year {172.66) {111.96)
Expense recognised [n Statement of Profit and Loss 45.53 3842
Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {20.02) 54.83
Actual contributions by the employer 15.00 3255
Net acquistion/business comblnation - -
Net asset/(llablitty) recognised In balance sheet at end of the year {183.17) {172.66)

{D) Amounts recognized in the statement of proflt and loss
Current service cost 34.13 30.02
Interest cost 11.40 8.40
Loss/{gain) on settlement - -
Past service cost = -
Total 45.53 38.42

(E) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarlal {gain) / loss due to
- change In demographic assumption - 0.03
= change In financlal assumption {4.48) 18.28
- experience variance {15.58) 38.13
- others - -
Retumn on plan assets, excluding amount recognised In net Interest expense 0.04 -161
Remeasurement {or actuarial (gain}/loss) arising due to asset celling - -
Total {20.02) 54.83
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Notss farm| rt of the Consolidated Financlal Statemernts for the ysar ended March 31, 2021

{F) Category of plan assets

Funds managed by Insurer 1009 100%

{G) Sensitivity analysis
DBO on base assumptions 305.93 29427
A. Discount Rate
1. Effect due to 1.00% increase in discount rate -6.64% 285.62 -6.85% 274.12
2_Effect due to 1.009% decrease in discount rate 7.86% 32997 B8.10% 318.12
B. Salary Escalation Rate
1. Effect due to 1.00% Increase In salary escalation rate 7.08% 327.58 7.58% 316.58
2. Effect due to 1.00% dacrease In salary escalation rate -6.16% 287.07 -6.61% 274.83
C, Withdrawal Rate
1, Effect due to 50% Increase In withdrawal rate -0.51% 304.35 -0.99% 291.36
2. Effect due to 50% decrease In withd rawal rate 0.56% 307.64 1.11% 297.53
D. Mortality Rate
1. Effect due to 10% Increase In mortality rate 0.07% 305.73 0.13% 292.88
2. Effect due to 10% decreasa In mortality rate 0.07% 306.14 0.13% 294.56

{H} RIsk Exposure - Asset Volatllty
The plan llabilitles are calculated using a discount rate set with reference 1o bond yields; If plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a
deficit. Most of the plan asset Investments Is In fixed Income securities with high grades and In government securitfes.

These are subject to interest rate risk and the fund manages intarest rate risk derivatives to minimize risk to an aceeptable level. A portion of the
funids are invested in equity securities and in alternative investrments 9% which have low correlation with equity securities.

The aquity securitles are expected to earn a return In excess of the discount rate and contribute to the plan deficit.

i} Actuarfal assumptions
Actuarfal valuation as at the year-end was done In respect of the aforesald defined benefit plans based on the following assumptions:

1} General assumptions

- Discount rate {per annum) B6.80% 6.60%
-Whthdrawal rate 2.00% 2.00%
- Rate of Increase In compensation 8.50% 8.50%

1} Mortallty rates considered are as per the published rates In the Indla Assured Lives Mortality {2012-14) Ultimate.
1} Leave encashment: Leave balance as at the end of the calendar year Is encashed and balance leaves eamed thereafter to the extent not avalled by
the employees are provided In the sccounts.
v} The discourrt rate should be based upon the market yields svailable on Government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of
the liabilities.
v} The expected rate of return on plan assets Is based on market expectation, at the beginning of the year, for retums over entire life of the related
obligation.
vl} The assumption of future salary Increases, considered In actuarlal valuation, takes account of inflation, senlority, promotion, supply and demand
and other relevant factors,
vii} Lablilty on account of long term absences has been actuarially valued as per Prolected Unit Credit Method.
viii} Short term compensated absences have been provided on actual basls.

{l) Defined benefit lablity and employer contributions:

1} Expected contributions te post-employment beneftt plans In next year NIL NIL

M} The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13 ye=ars. The expected maturity analysis of undiscourtted gratuity benefits is as
fallows:

Rs. In Lacs

_Pearicd 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
1 Year 100.32 90,13
210 5 Years 63.09 65.92
6 to 10 Years 10111 99.60
More Than 10 Years 340.22 325.03
Total 609.74 580.67

34 Disclosurs pursuant to Ind AS 108 "Oparating Segmernt™
The company Is operating malnly in single segment Le.. Leather and leather products: hence no disclosure Is required in terms of Ind AS 108.

35 Expenditure an Research and Develapment

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Capital Expenditure - -
R Expanditure 1.79 268
Total 1.79 268
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

36 Disclosura pursuant to Ind AS 116 "Leases™:
(a) Where the company is Lessor
The company has not entered Into any Lease arrangements.

(b} Where the company is Lessee
The company has nat enterad into any Lease arrangements.

37 Finandal Instrumants
{i} Capital Management

The Company’s capltal management |5 Intended to create value for shareholders by facllitating the meeting of long-term and short-term goals of
the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term product and other strategic
investment plans. The funding requireaments are met through equity and other long-term/short-term borrowings. The Company's policy is aimed at
combination of short-term and long-term borrowings.

The Company monitors the capital structure on the basls of total debt to equity ratio and maturity proflle of the overall debt portfolic of the

Comnany.
The capital structure of the company consists of dabt, which includes the borrowings incdluding temporary overdrawn balance , cash and cash

equlvalents Including short term bank deposits, equity comprising Issued capital, reserves and non-controlling Interests, The gearing ratio for the
year Is as under:

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Debt 8,291.26 7,206.85
Less: Cash and cash equivalent 309.40 38003
Net debt {A) 7,981.86 6,816.92
Total equity (B) B,17151 7,680.56
Debt Equity Ratio {A/B) 0.98 0.89

(I} Categorles of financlal Instruments
Calculation of Fair Values
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are defined as the price that would be received to sall an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transactlon between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair

values of financlal Instruments:
a) The fair values of investment in quoted investment in aquity shares is based on the current bid price of respective investmant as at the Balance

Sheet date.

b} The fair value of the long-term borrowings carrying floatingrate of interest is not impacted due to interest rate changes and will not be
slgnificantly different from thelr carrylng amounts as there I5 no significant change In the under-lying credit risk of the Company {since the date of
Inception of the leans).

c) The fair value of loans from banks and other financial indebtedness as well as other non current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting
future cash flows using rates currently available for debt or similar terms and remalning maturitles.
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Notas forming part of the Consolldated Financlal Statsments for the year endad March 31, 2021

d) Cash and cash equlvalents, trade recelvables, other financlal assets, trade payables, and other financlal Nlabllitles have falr values that
approximate to thelr carrying amounts due to thelr short-term nature.

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Carrying value Falr value Carrying value Falr value

Financial Assets
Financial assets measured at falr value

Investments measured at

|. Falr value through other comprehensive Income

il. Fair value through profit and loss 0.52 0.17
Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Trade Recelvables 5,387.04 3,628.01

Cash and cash equivalents 309.40 389,93

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 504.66 505.81

Other finandal assets 787.47 319.08

Total 6,988.57 052 4,842.83 0.17

Financlal Liabllitles
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Borrowings 8,291.26 - 7,206.85 -
Trade payables - - 3,682.93 -
DOther finandal llabilitles 952.45 - 769.61 -
Total 9,243.71 - 11,659.39 -
(Il Income, expenses, galns or losses on financlial Instruments Rs. In Lacs
Partlculars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Financlal assets measured at amortized cost
Allowances for doubtful recelvables {32.53} {11.76)
FInanclal assets measured at falr value through Profit and Loss {0.22} 0.08

Financial assets measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income - -

Falr value measurements recognized In the balance sheet:

The following table provides an analysls of financlal Instruments that are measurad subsequent to initial recognition at falr value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the falr value 1s observable.

-Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices {unad]usted} In active markets for Identical assets or llabliitles.

-Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

-Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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Notes forming part of the Consolldated Finandal Statemeants for the year ended March 31, 2021

{iv) Financial risk management objectives:
The Company’s princlpal financlal [labllitles comprise of loan from banks and finandal Institutlons, and trade payables. The maln purpose of these
financlal liabllities is to ralse finance for the Company’s operations. The Company has varlous financlal assets such as trade recelvables, cash and
short term deposits, which arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from Company’s finandial instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. The
Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks.

{a) Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. The maximum exposure
to credlt risk In case of all the financlal Instruments covered below Is restricted to thelr respective carrving amount.

Trade and Other recetvables

Customer credit is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policies, procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 80 days credit term. Cradit limits are established for all
customers based on Internal rating criteria. Outstanding customer recelvables are regularly monftored,

The Company measures the expected credit loss of trade recelvables based on historical trend, Industry practleas and the business environment In
which the entity operates. Loss rates are based un actual credit loss experience and past trends.

Expected credit loss assessment for customars:
The company Is making provisions on trade receivables based on Expected Credit Loss {(ECL) model. The reconciliation of ECL s as follows:

{Rs. In Lakhs)
|Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
|impairment loss as per ECL recognised/{reversed) 32,53 11.76
Additional Provision f write off 68.39 890.75
Amount deblted to Profit and Loss 100.92 102.51

Other finandal assets

The Company maintalns exposure In cash and cash equivalents, term deposits with banks and derlvative contracts.

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 309.40 Lacs at March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: Rs. 389.93 Lacs). Cash and cash equlvalents are
held with reputable and credit-worthy banks.

Indlvidual risk limits are set for each counter-party based on financlal position, credit rating and past experlence. Credtt limits and concentration of
exposures are actively monitored by the Management of the Company.
Qther than trade and other recelvables, the Company has no other financlal assets that are past due but not Impalred

(b) Market risk:
Market Risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, Interest rate risk and price risk.

(1) Forelgn currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its operating and financing activities. The functional currency of the Company iz Indian
Rupee. Company's exposure Is malnly denominated in USD, GBP and Euro. The exchanga rates hava changed substantially In recent perlods and
may continue to fluctuate substantlally In the future. The Company has put In place a Financlal Rlsk Management Pollcy to Identify the most
effective and efficlent ways of managing the currency risks. The Company uses derivative Instruments {malnly forelgn exchange forward contracts)
to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rate.

The Company do not use derfvative financial Instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

{Il]) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes In varlable Interest rates. Any movement In the reference rates could
have an impact on the Company’s cash flows as well as costs. The Company also uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial instruments ta
manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations |ike short-term loans.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Ananclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Interest rate sensitivity analysls:

As at March 21, 2021 interest bearing financial liability (secured loan from banks) stood at Rs. 8291.26 Lacs, was subject to variable interest rates.
Increasefdecrease of 50 basls polnts In Interest rates at the balance sheet date would result In decrease/increase In profit before tax of Rs. 41.46
Lacs.

The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 50 basls points Interest rate. This calculation alse assumes that the change occurs at the
balance sheat date and has been Glculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period and balances are not necessarily
representative of the average debt outstanding during the period.

This analysls assumes that all other varlables, In particular forelgn currency rates, remaln constant.

Falr value of flnanclal Instruments:

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value of consideration paid. Subsequently, financial assets are carried at fair value or amortized
cost less Impalrment. Where non — derlvative financlal assets are carrled at falr value, gains and losses on re- measurement are recognized directly
In equity unless the financlal assets have been designated as belng held at falr value through profit or loss, In which case the galns and losses are
recognized directly in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Financial assets are designated as being held at fair value through profit or loss
when it is necessary to reduce measurement inconsistency for related assets and liabilities. All financial liabilities other than derivatives are initially
recognlzed at falr value of conslderation recelved net of transactlon costs as approprate (Inttlal cost) and subsequently carred at amortized cost.

{11 Ugquidity risk:

The Company follows a Conservative policy of ensuring sufficient liquidity at all times through a strategy of profitable growth, efficient liquidity at
all times through a strategy of profitable growth, efficient working capltal management as well as prudent caplital expenditure. The Company has a
overdraft faclllty with banks to support any temporary funding requirements.

The Company belleves that current cash and cash equlvalents, tled up borrowling lines and cash flow that Is generated from operations Is sufficlent
to meet requirements. Accordingly, liquidity risk Is percelved to be low.

Uquldity table:

Liquidity tables drawn up based on the cash flows of financial liabilities based on the aariest date on which the Company can be required to pay is
disclosed at Note no. 43.

{V) Other price risk:
The Company Is not exposed to any significant equity price risks arising from equity Investments, as on 31st March 2021, Equity Investments are
held for strateglc rather than trading purposes. The Company does hot actively trade these Investments.

{V1} Equity price sensitivity analysls:
There Is no exposure to equity price risks as at the repaorting date or as at the previous reporting date.

33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabiifes and Contingent assets":
The company has recognised contingent liabliities as disclosed In Note 32 above and as such ho provision [s required to be made. No provision was
outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the year.

39 Disclosura pursuant to Ind AS 105 “Non-currant assats hald for sale and discontinusd oparations”:
There are no such asset held for sale and discontinued operations as on March 31, 2021
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year anded March 31, 2021

40 Disdosure of related partiesfrelated party transactions/balances pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disciosures™

{A) Name of Related Partles and nature of relationship
i. Joint Vantures

Il. Assedstes with whom transactions were carried out during the year

iii. Key Management Personnel (KMP) & Relatives:
a) Mr, Iftlkharul Amin—Managing Director
b) Mr. Igbal Ahsan—Director
¢} Mr. Vequarul Amin- Non Bxecutive and Nan Independent Director
d) Mr. Imran Siddiqul — Whole time Director
&) Mr. Arshad Khan — Whole ime Director
f) Mr. Mohd Imran — Whole ime Director
m) Mr. Ahmad Faraz Ahmad [Son af Mr. Hikharul Amin)

sSEc oIl

Mr. R. K. Awasthl - Company Secretary
Mr. ¥ S Katiyar - Non Executive Independent Director
Mr. Mubashirul Amin (Son of Mr. igbal Ahsan)

Mr. Tanveerul Amin (Son of Mr. Iftlkharul Amin)
Mr. Khallid Sayeed (Brother of Mr. Imran Siddiqul)
Mr. Umalrul Amin {Son of Mr. Iqbal Ahsan)

Iv. Others: Enterprise over which KMP or relatives of KMP are able to exercise significant Influence:
a) Amin Tannery Ltd ) Industrial Infrastructure Services (1) Ltd
b) Amin Colonizers & Deviapers Ltd =) Bowini Frills LLP

¢) Banthar Industrial Pollution Control Company

{8) () Disclosure of related party transactions during the year {In ordinary course of business at arm lenghth price) Summary:

Transactions Assoclates Other related partles KMP and Relatives
As at / for the year ended As at / for the year anded As at / for the year anded
31321 31.3.20 31.3.21 31320 31321 31320
Purchases of materlals / finlshed geods - - 382.19 0.05 - -
Sale of materlals / finlshed goods - - 125.93 257.41 - -
Services {lob work) - - 6.30 2.00 - -
Donatlon - - 18.74 2133 - -
Rent recetved - - 0.72 072 - -
Remuneration/sitting fee - - - - 100.52 90.95
Receivables {Net) - - 26.57 50.54 - -
Payables {Trade payable & other llabllities) - - 122.09 432 14.12 10.80
Investments refer Nete No. 3
(i} Detail of related party transactions during the year {in ordinary course of business at anm lenghth price}
Name of related party & Transactions Assoriates Cther related parties KMP and Relatives
As at / for the year ended As at / for the year ended As at / for the year ended
31.3.21 31.3.20 31.3.21 31.3.20 31.3.21 31.3.20
Purchases of materials / finished goods
Amin Tannery Ltd - - 382.19 & = =
Bovlnl Frills LLP - - - 0.05 - -
- - 382.19 0.05 - -
I materlals / finish:
Amin Tannery Ltd = = 46.66 108.73 - -
Bowinl Frills LLP - - 79.27 14B.68 - -
- - 125.93 257.41 - -
Services {lob Worl)
Amin Tannery Ltd - - 6.30 0.96 - -
Bowinl Frills LLP - - - 1.04 - -
- - 6.30 2.00 - -
Donatlon
Amin Welfare Trust - - 18.74 21.33 - -
- - 1B.74 21.33 - -
Rent recelved
Bovinl Frills LLP - - 0.72 0.72 - -
- - 0.72 0.72 - -
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Name of related party & Transactions Associatey Other related parties KMP and Relatives
31.3.21 31320 31.3.21 31.3.20 31321 31320
Remuneration/sitting fee
Mr. Iiftikharul Amin - - - - 24.00 21.00
Mr. Igbal Ahsan - - - - 24.21 21.23
Mr. Imran Siddique - - - - 7.06 710
Mr.Arshad Khan - - - - 394 441
Mr. Mohd Imran - - - - 3.99 441
Mr. Mubashirul Amin - - - - 1251 13.86
Mr. Ahmad Faraz Amin - - - - 352 340
Mr. Tanveerul Amin - - - - 12.16 711
Mr. Khalld Sayeed w “ a % 1.68 1.69
Mr. Umairul Amin - - - - 4.87 4,41
Mr. R.K. Awasthl - - - - 2.58 2.33
- - - - 100.52 90.95

{C) Outstanding balances with relatad parties:
{i) Receivables (Net)

Amin Tannery Ltd - - 347 1235 - -
Bovinl Frills LLP - - 23.10 38.19 - -

w = 26.57 50.54 s 2

(il Pavables [Trade payable & ather liabilities}

Amin Tannery Ltd - - 122.09 4.27 - -
Bovinl Frills LLP - - - 0.05 - -
Mr. ifdkharul Amin - - - - 2.00 2.00
Mr. Igbal Ahsan - - - - 2.02 0.02
Mr. Imran Siddigue - - - - 138 0.89
Mr.Arshad Khan - - - - 0.58 .59
Mr. Mohd Imran - - - - 0.64 0.9
Mr. Mubashirul Amin - - - - 1.83 264
Mr.Ahmad Faraz Amin - - - - 0.73 0.68
Mr. Tanveerul Amin - - - - 2.88 139
Mr. Khalid Sayeed - - - - 044 038
Mr. Umairul Amin - - - - D.o3 0.89
Mr. R.K Awasthl - - - - 0.69 0.43

- - 122.09 432 14.12 10.80

{D} Noamount has been written off/back or provided as doubtful debts during the year in respect of related parties.

{E) Key Managerlal Personnel are entltled to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits recognized as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee
Benefits’ In the finandial statements. As these employee benefits are lump sum amounts provided on the basls of actuarfal valuation, the same s not
included above.

41 Remuneration ta Whole Time Directors

Partlculars 2020-21 2019-20
{a) Short Term Employee Benefits (Salay) 62.36 55.20
(b} Contribution to defined contribution plan (PF} 0.85 0.04

Total 63.21 56.14
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42 Additional Information pursuant to Schaduls 1l to the Act for the year anded March 31, 2021 of antarprises consolidated as subsidiary

and assodates
Net Assets |.e, total Share In Profit or {Loss) Share In Other Share In Total
Name of the company assets minus total Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income
liabilltles
As%of |Amount As % of Amount As%af Amount As % of Amount
consolldst |(Rs. In Lacs) |consolidated | (Rs.In | consalidated | (Rs- In Lags) | consolidated  |(Rs. In Lacs)
ed net profit or Lacs) other total
assets loss comprehensi comprehensl
ve income ve lncame
|Parent Company
Super Tannery Limited 105.03% 8,649.55 96.85% 451.16 100.00% 14.81 96.95% 475.97
Subsidiaries - Foreigh
Euper Tannery (UK.} L. -1.98% {410.20) 1.22% 5.83 - - 1.15% 5.83
Super Tannery UAE FZE 0.00% - 0.00% - - - 0.00% -
Super Hallla SRL -0.30% {24.72) 2.07T% 9.86 - - 2.01% 9.86
Subsidiaries - Domestlc -
Aarifl Tanners Lid 0,205 {16.44) £0.12% (0.58) - - -0.12% (0.58)
Secure Safety Ltd -0.33% {26.79) -0.09% {0.44) -0.09% {0.44)
Super Corparation Limitad 0.00% 011 0.01% 0.04 - - 0.01% 0.04
Total Subsidlaries 99,22% §,171.51 99.945% 475.87 100% 14.81 99,94% 490,68
Non controlling interest in all the
subsidiaries 0.78% 64.09 0.06% 02 % ) 0.05% 0.27
Total 100% 8,235.60 100% 476.14 100% 14.81 100% 490.55
43 Disclosure pursuant to ind AS 1 *Presentation of Financial Statements”.
{a} Current liabllities expected to be settled within twelve months and after twelve months from the reporting date:
Rs in Lacs
|Particulars Note As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. Within After Total Within After Total
twelve twelve twelve twelve
months months manths months
|Borrowings 8,011.53 279.73 8,291.26 6,870.37 236.48 7,206.85
Trade and other payables 4,714.18 - 4,714.18 3,746.66 - 3,746.66
Other finandal llabllitles 952.45 - 952.45 769.61 - 769.61
{b) Current assets expected to be recovered within twelve months and after twelve months from the reporting date:
Rs In Lacs
|particulars Note As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. Within After Total Within After Total
twelve twelve twelve twelve
months months months months
inventories 8,045.60 - B,045.60 8,683.70 - 82,683.70
Trade Receivable 5,387.04 - 5,387.04 3,628.01 - 3,628.01
Other Financlal Assets 787.47 - 787.47 219.08 - 319.08
Other Current Assets 1,052.28 - 1,052.28 794.96 - 794.96
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44 The Company has made detailed assessments of COVID-19 the pandemic on recoverability and carrying values of its assets comprising property, plant and
equipment, inventories, receivables and other current assets as at the balance sheet date and on the basis of evaluation, has concluded that no
ad|ustment Is required In the censolldated financlal statements and it will not have any materlal Impact en Golng Concern assumption. The Company Is
taking all the necessary steps and precautionary measures to ensure smooth functioning of Its operations and to ensure the safety and well-belng of all tts
employeas, Given the criticalities associated with nature, condition and duration of COVID-19, the impact assessment on the Company's finandal
statements will be continuously made and provided for as required.

45 Flgures of the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever required In order to make them comparable with those of current vear. Figures
have been rounded off to the nearest rupees In lacs.

As per our attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Rajeev Prem & Assodates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No. 008905C

Mohd. Imran Iftikharul Amin
Director (Finance) & CFO Managing Director
Rajeev Kapoor
Partner
M. No. 077827
R. K. Awasthl
Place: Kanpur Company Secratary

Date: (7 08 2021
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Annual Report.

ATTENDANCE SLIP
| hereby record my presence at the 37" Annual General Meeting of the company held on 30th September 2021,
Regd Folic No DP ID*
No.of shares Client (D*

Name of the Share holder {in block letters)

Signature of the sharehclder or proxy

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronie form.

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

CIN:L19131UP1984PLCO0G4 21
Regd. Office :187/170,Jajmau Kanpur-208010

PROXY FORM { FORM NO:MGT-ll
{Pursuant to section105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 1%(3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rule,2014).

e-mail Id:

Nams of the memberi(s}): Folio No,* Client Id
0l1o INO 1E11 x

Registered Address
*DPId:
|'We, being the memberi(s) of of shares of Super Tannery Limited, hereby appoint:
1. __of having e-mail id or failing him
2. of having e-mail id or failing him
3. of having e-mail Id

and whose signature(s) are appended below as myfour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on my/ our behalf at the
37" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, September 30'2021 at 09.A.M. at 187/170 Jajmau, Kanpur,

208010 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

** | wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:

Resolutions For Against
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. Adoption of Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended
March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors.
2. Re-appointment of Mr. Imran Siddiqui, who retires by rotation and heing eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment.
3. Declaration of Dividend
4. Appointment of M/s Rejeev Prem & Associates Chartered Accountants
(Registration No (008905C} as auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration.
SPECIAL BUSINESS (Ordinary Resolutions)
5.Donation to charitable and other funds not directly related to the business of the Company.
*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.
Affix
Signed day of 2021 Revenue
Signature of Shareholder Stamp
Signature of first proxy helder Signature of second proxy holder Signature of third proxy holder
NOTE:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited atthe Registered Office of the Company notless
than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

AProxyneednotbe a member ofthe Company.

Aperson can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company cairying voting nghts. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a sngle person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person of
shareholder.

Thisisonly optional. Please put a’X'in the appropriate column againstthe resolutions indicated inthe Box. Ifyou leave the'For or
‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as hefshe thinks
appropriate.

Appointing a proxy does not prevent a memberfrom attending the meeting in person if he sowishes.

Inthe case of joint holders, the signature of any one holderwill be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be stated.
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
CIN : L19131 UP 1984 PLC 006421
Registered Office : 187/170, Jajmau Road, KANPUR - 208 010.
Phone No. : 7522000370, 371, 372 Fax No.: 91-512-2460792
Website | www superdannerv.com E-mail ; share@supertannery.com

BALLOT FORM

1. Name and Registered address of the
Sole/First named Shareholder
(In block letters)

2. Name of the Joint Holders, if any

3. Registered Folio No./DP ID No*
(*Applicable to investors holding Shares in Demat Form)

4. Number of Equity Shares held

5. |IMVe hereby exercise my /Our Vote(s) in respect of the following resolutions to be passed at the 37th Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 30th September, 2021 for the business stated in the
notice dated 7" August, 2021 by sending my/our assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the (X) at the
appropriate box below.

Please mention No. of Shares

Resolutions For Against Abstain

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoptiocn of Audited Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended March 31, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and

Auditors' thereon.

2. Declaration of Dividend

3. Re-appointment of Mr, Imran Siddiqui, who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

4. Appointment of M/ s Rajeev Prem & Associates
Chartered Accountants as Auditor of the Company and
fix their remuneration.
SPECIAL BUSINESS (Ordinary Resolutions)
5 Donation to charitable and other funds not directly related to the business of the

Company.

“Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

Place- Kanpur
Date.30.09.2021

Signature of Shareholder
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SUPER TANNERY LIMITED

Note:

1.

This form should be completed and signed by the members. In case of Joint holding this form should be
completed and signed (as per the specimen signature(s) registered with the Company) by the first named
member and his absence, by the next name member. Unsigned ballot form will be rejected.

The Vote may be accorded by recording the assent in column'For'or dissent in column' AGAINST' by placing
an Xmarkin the appropriate Column.

In case of Shares held by Companies, Trust, Society, etc.the duly completed ballot Form should be
accompanied by a cerified copy of Board resolution.

The Scrutinizers decision of the validity of the ballot form shall be final.

The Company is also offering e-voting facility as an alternate, for all the members to enable them to casttheir
vote electronically instead of dispatching physical ballot form. The detailed procedure of e-voting is sert to
you along with notice of this Annual General Meeting.

If a member has opted for e-voting, then hefshe should not vote by physical ballot also and vice-versa.
However, in case members cast their vote both via physical Ballot and e-voting then voting through e-voting
shall prevail and voting done by physical ballot be treated as invalid.

A member desiring to exercise vote by physical ballot may complete this ballot form and send it 1o the
Scrutinizer Mr.K.N .Shridhar &Assocites 111&108, Chandralok Complex Birhana Road Kanpur 208001.

Members may please note to bring copy of this ballot form to the meeting hall if they are coming to attend the
Annual General Meeting personally.
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BOOK POST

If Undelivered, Please return to :
SUPER TANNERY LIMITED
187/170, Jajmau Road, Kanpur-208010

designed by: skadverisers@gmail.com
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